
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
MAY 9, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

May 9, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Robin Beltramini – Mayor-Pro-Tem 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Jamie Martone – 2005 State Swimming Champion – 50 Yard Freestyle.............. 1 
b) National Association of Letter Carriers – Food Drive Day – May 14, 2005........... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 No Public Hearings Scheduled 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Postponed Items 1 

CONSENT AGENDA: 1 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 2 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 2 



E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 2 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 2 

a) Jamie Martone – 2005 State Swimming Champion – 50 Yard Freestyle.............. 2 
b) National Association of Letter Carriers – Food Drive Day – May 14, 2005........... 2 
c) Arson Awareness Week – May 1 – 7, 2005.......................................................... 2 

E-4  Standard Purchasing Resolutions 2 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 05-2 – 
Section 23 Pavement Replacement ..................................................................... 2 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Two (2) Air 
Compressors ........................................................................................................ 3 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 05-3 – 
Coolidge, North of Wattles Reconstruction........................................................... 3 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 
Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products ..................................................... 3 

E-5 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Storm Sewer and 
Watermain – Michael Agnetti – Northeast Corner of Wattles Road and Northfield 
Parkway – Sidwell #88-20-17-454-016 and -017 4 

E-6 Request for Acceptance of Three Permanent Easements for Public Utilities and a 
Warranty Deed for Street Right-of-Way – Birchwood Estates Site Condo – Sidwell 
#88-20-24-226-026, 027, 047, 046, and 045 4 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer – Dequindre 
Sewer Project No. 02.406.5 – Jaroslaw N. and Irene W. Mikulak, Sidwell #88-20-
13-429-021 4 

E-8 Request for Acceptance of a Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit for 
the Troy Court Water Main Project #01.502.5 – Section 34 5 

E-9 Request for Acceptance of Conditioned Purchase Offer for Maple Road/Coolidge 
to Crooks Watermain and Sidewalk Project #01.501.5 – General Development 
Company No. 5, L.L.C., 1765 West Maple, Sidwell #88-20-32-226-028 5 

E-10 Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreements for Right-of-Way: 
Sidewalk Gap Project, Sidwell #88-20-01-476-088 and 087 5 

E-11 Requested Partial Release of Retained Public Utility Easement at 94 Hickory – 
Sidwell #88-200-27-156-029 – Daniel Bousho, Owner 5 

E-12 Proposed Rezoning (Z-680) – Proposed Choice Cluster Development, East Side 
of Finch, South of Wattles, Section 21 – R-1B to CR-1 6 



E-13 Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor License – Delaware 
California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. (Somerset North) 6 

E-14 Private Agreement for Troy Medical Offices – Project No. 04.915.3 6 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 7 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 7 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Senior Citizens; Cable Advisory Committee; Charter Revision Committee; Historic 
District Commission; Personnel Board 7 

F-2 Proposed Membership Contract Between the City of Troy and Southeastern 
Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) 11 

F-3 Proposal From Mr. Ed Barlow to Facilitate a Futuring and Strategic Planning 
Process for the City of Troy 11 

F-4 Big Beaver Corridor Study 12 

F-5 Options/Ramifications for Proposed I-75 Crooks / Long Lake Interchange 
Improvement Project 13 

F-6 Temporary Aid Agreement 14 

F-7 Final Site Plan Approval – Proposed Maplewood Site Condominium – South Side 
of South Boulevard, West of Rochester Road – Section 3, R-1C 14 

F-8 Flags 15 

F-9 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Process Award – Troy Daze 
Fireworks 15 

F-10 Sole Source – US Filter HRR Enhancer and Pulsar Plus Briquettes 15 

F-11 Bid Waiver – Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal for Fiscal Year 
2005/2006 16 

F-12 Bid Waiver – Skate Park Equipment 16 



F-13 Petition Analysis, Paving of Tacoma SAD #05.202.01 17 

F-14 Petition Analysis, Paving of Olympia SAD #05.201.1 18 

F-15 Charter Revisions – 2005 Proposed Charter Committee Referrals 19 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 19 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 19 

a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal, Renewal – 6881 Westaway - May 16, 2005 ......... 20 
b) Parking Variance – 3290 W. Big Beaver – May 16, 2005................................... 20 
c) Rezoning Application – South Side of Henrietta Avenue, South of Big Beaver 

Road and East of Rochester Road, Section 27 – R-1E to P-1 (Z-695) – May 
16, 2005 ............................................................................................................. 20 

d) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 2150-A) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and 
Provisions – May 16, 2005 ................................................................................. 20 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 20 

a) Purchase of Jensen Property Sidwell #88-20-16-478-027 ................................. 20 
b) Revisions to Chapter 97 and Chapter 60 of the Troy City Code......................... 20 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 20 

H-1  No Council Referrals 20 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 20 

I-1  No Council Comments 20 

REPORTS: 20 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 20 

a) Troy Local Development Finance Authority/Draft – June 29, 2004..................... 20 
b) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – December 16, 2004...................... 20 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Amended/Final – February 

9, 2005 ............................................................................................................... 20 
d) Troy Historic District Commission/Final – February 15, 2005............................. 20 
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizen/Final – March 3, 2005............................ 20 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – March 9, 2005......... 20 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 14, 2005 ........................................... 20 
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – March 15, 2005............................................... 20 



i) Troy Historic District Commission/Final – March 15, 2005 ................................. 20 
j) Planning Commission Special-Joint Meeting/Draft – March 28, 2005 ................ 20 
k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – April 5, 2005 ............................................ 20 
l) Planning Commission Special Meeting/Draft – April 5, 2005.............................. 20 
m) Planning Commission Special-Study Meeting/Draft – April 5, 2005 ................... 20 
n) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – April 6, 2005 ........................................ 20 
o) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – April 7, 2005 ............................ 20 
p) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – April 11, 2005.............................................. 20 
q) Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Draft – April 12, 2005 ........................... 20 
r) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – April 13, 2005 ......... 20 
s) Troy Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – April 21, 2005 ...................................... 20 
t) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – April 26, 2005 ....................................... 20 

J-2 Department Reports: 21 

a) Councilmember Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for the National League 
of Cities’ “The Power of Democratic Governance” Conference .......................... 21 

b) Councilmember Beltramini’s Report from “The Power of Democratic 
Governance” Conference ................................................................................... 21 

c) Memorandum from City Management Answering Questions Raised by 
Council Members During the Budget Session .................................................... 21 

d) Bidcorp On-Line Auction – Workstations – Parts/Fixtures – Unassembled and 
BidNet On-Line Auction – Monroe 3250 Detacher – Twenty-five (25) 
Computers – Two (2) Boxes of Cables and Modems – Final Reporting ............. 21 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 21 

a) Letter of Thanks to Officers Mark Cole and Rick Sewell from Leona L. Slone 
and Family .......................................................................................................... 21 

b) Letter of Thanks to Officer Kaptur from the Troy Middle School Health 
Teachers ............................................................................................................ 21 

c) Letter of Thanks to Detective James Mork from David J. Easterbrook............... 21 
d) Letter of Appreciation to Officers Scott LaMilza and Steve Zagacki from Lyn 

S. Visner ............................................................................................................. 21 
e) Letter of Thanks to Detective James Mork from Rabbi Aaron Starr of 

Congregation Shir Tikvah ................................................................................... 21 
f) Letter of Appreciation to the Troy Community Center From State 

Representative Robert Gosselin for the “Operation Kicks for Kids” Donation 
Drive ................................................................................................................... 21 

g) Letter of Appreciation to Carol Anderson from Ryan Mandziara Regarding the 
Removal of Ash Trees ........................................................................................ 21 

h) Letter of Thanks to Detective James Mork from Schroeder Elementary School 
PTO President, Julie Papandrea ........................................................................ 21 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 21 

(a) Resolution from City of Royal Oak Calling on Governor Jennifer Granholm to 
Establish a Commission to Study the Financing of Health Care......................... 21 

(b) Resolution from City of Rochester Hills Supporting of Municipalities 
Maintaining Local Control of Liquor Licenses ..................................................... 21 

J-5  Calendar 21 



J-6  Troy Chamber Economic Development Master Plan 21 

J-7  SAD Interest Rate 21 

J-8  William Beaumont Research Study 21 

J-9 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Action on Budget 21 

STUDY ITEMS: 21 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 21 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 22 

CLOSED SESSION: 22 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 22 

RECESSED 22 

RECONVENED 22 

ADJOURNMENT 22 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 23 

Tuesday, May 10, 2005: 7:30 PM Special/Study City Council............................... 23 
Monday, May 16, 2005 Regular City Council ........................................................ 23 
Monday, May 23, 2005 Regular City Council ........................................................ 23 
Monday, June 6, 2005 Regular City Council ......................................................... 23 
Monday, June 20, 2005 Regular City Council ....................................................... 23 
Monday, July 11, 2005 Regular City Council......................................................... 23 
Monday, July 18, 2005 Regular City Council......................................................... 23 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Robin Beltramini – Mayor-Pro-Tem 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
 
a) Jamie Martone – 2005 State Swimming Champion – 50 Yard Freestyle 
b) National Association of Letter Carriers – Food Drive Day – May 14, 2005  
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings Scheduled 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of April 18, 2005 at 7:30 
PM; the Minutes of the Special/Study Meeting of April 25, 2005 at 6:30 PM; the Minutes of the 
Regular Meeting of April 25, 2005 at 7:30 PM; and the Minutes of the Special/Study Meeting of 
May 2, 2005 at 6:30 PM be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
a) Jamie Martone – 2005 State Swimming Champion – 50 Yard Freestyle 
b) National Association of Letter Carriers – Food Drive Day – May 14, 2005 
c) Arson Awareness Week – May 1 – 7, 2005  
 
E-4  Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 05-2 – 

Section 23 Pavement Replacement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 05-2, Section 23 Pavement Replacement, be AWARDED to 
Florence Pavement Providers, 12798 23 Mile Road, Shelby Township, MI 48315 at an 
estimated total cost of $839,557.35; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Two (2) Air 

Compressors 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish and install two (2) Air Compressors for the Fire 
Department is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Douglass Safety Systems of Rhodes, MI, 
for an estimated total cost of $33,800.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
March 23, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 05-3 – 

Coolidge, North of Wattles Reconstruction 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That Alternate “B”, Option #1 of contract No. 05-3, Coolidge, north of Wattles 
reconstruction, be AWARDED to Six-S, Inc., 2210 Scott Lake Road, Waterford, MI 48328 at an 
estimated total cost of $1,242,223.51; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to purchase 2005 seasonal requirements of Turfgrass protection 
products are hereby AWARDED to the low bidders meeting specifications as follows: 
 
 
BIDDERS ITEMS 
 
Tri-Turf of Farmington Hills, MI. 1,2,5,6,16,20,22,29,30,33 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

 
Verdicon/UHS of Linden, MI.   3, 4, 7,19, 21,37 
 
Great Lakes Turf LLC., of Grand Rapids MI. 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 15,18, 24, 34, 35, 36 
 
Turfgrass Incorporated, of South Lyon MI. 14,17, 23, 25, 26, 27, 28, 31, 32 
 
for an estimated total cost of $156,785.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
March 23, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
E-5 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Storm Sewer and 

Watermain – Michael Agnetti – Northeast Corner of Wattles Road and Northfield 
Parkway – Sidwell #88-20-17-454-016 and -017  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Storm Sewer and Watermain Easement from Michael Agnetti, owner of 
property at the northeast corner of Wattles Road and Northfield Parkway, having Sidwell #88-
20-17-454-016 and -017 is hereby ACCEPTED for the operation, maintenance and repair or 
replacement of storm sewer and watermain; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Request for Acceptance of Three Permanent Easements for Public Utilities and a 

Warranty Deed for Street Right-of-Way – Birchwood Estates Site Condo – Sidwell 
#88-20-24-226-026, 027, 047, 046, and 045  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That the three (3) permanent easements for public utilities and the warranty deed 
for street right-of-way from Elro Corporation, owner of property in the northeast ¼ of Section 24, 
having Sidwell # 88-20-24-226-026, 027, 047, 046, and 045, are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
attached to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer – Dequindre 

Sewer Project No. 02.406.5 – Jaroslaw N. and Irene W. Mikulak, Sidwell #88-20-13-
429-021  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer from Jaroslaw N. and Irene W. 
Mikulak, owners of 39917 Dequindre, having Sidwell #88-20-13-429-021 is hereby ACCEPTED; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Request for Acceptance of a Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit for 

the Troy Court Water Main Project #01.502.5 – Section 34  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit from property owners 
Elerious and Priscilla King, having Sidwell #88-20-34-152-017, with a consideration of $500.00, 
is hereby ACCEPTED, and payment of the stated consideration is APPROVED, for the 
construction, operation, maintenance and repair of the Troy Court Water Main Improvement 
Project; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a copy of said document shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Request for Acceptance of Conditioned Purchase Offer for Maple Road/Coolidge 

to Crooks Watermain and Sidewalk Project #01.501.5 – General Development 
Company No. 5, L.L.C., 1765 West Maple, Sidwell #88-20-32-226-028  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between the City of Troy and General 
Development Company No. 5, L.L.C., having Sidwell #88-20-32-226-028 for acquisition of right-
of-way in the amount of $56,000.00, plus closing costs, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
E-10 Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreements for Right-of-Way: 

Sidewalk Gap Project, Sidwell #88-20-01-476-088 and 087  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That the two (2) Agreements to Purchase between Sharon Manning, owner of the 
properties having Sidwell #88-20-01-476-088 and 087, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition 
of right-of-way for a Sidewalk Gap Completion Project, is APPROVED in the amounts of 
$21,760.00 and $12,840.00, respectively, plus closing costs. 
 
E-11 Requested Partial Release of Retained Public Utility Easement at 94 Hickory – 

Sidwell #88-200-27-156-029 – Daniel Bousho, Owner 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That the west 10 feet of the 50 foot wide public utility, storm drain/sewer 
easement retained over vacated Mastin Street, recorded in Liber 16413, page 860 of Oakland 
County Records, and abutting Lot 66 of Greenough Heights Subdivision, being part of Sidwell # 
88-20-27-156-029, commonly known as 94 Hickory Street, is hereby RELEASED AND 
ABANDONED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD this 
resolution with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be attached to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
E-12 Proposed Rezoning (Z-680) – Proposed Choice Cluster Development, East Side of 

Finch, South of Wattles, Section 21 – R-1B to CR-1 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning (Z-680) - Proposed Choice Cluster Development, east 
side of Finch, south of Wattles, Section 21, from R-1B to CR-1, is hereby REMOVED from City 
Council consideration at the request of the petitioner. 
 
E-13 Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor License – Delaware 

California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. (Somerset North) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from DELAWARE CALIFORNIA PIZZA KITCHEN, INC. (A 
DELAWARE CORPORATION), to transfer ownership through merger of a 2004 12 months 
Resort Class C licensed business [MCL 436.1531(4)]; non-transferable with official permit 
(food), located at Somerset Collection North, 2800 W. Big Beaver, Space N 126, Troy, MI 
48084, Oakland County, from California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. (A California Corporation), be 
CONSIDERED for approval. 
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application be recommended for issuance. 
 
E-14 Private Agreement for Troy Medical Offices – Project No. 04.915.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Charter Building & Development is hereby 
APPROVED for the installation of paving and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent right of 
way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of 
which shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Senior Citizens; Cable Advisory Committee; Charter Revision Committee; Historic 
District Commission; Personnel Board 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments – No appointments scheduled 

 
(b) City Council Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Berar, James 04/30/07 
Black, Burdette L. Jr. 04/30/07 
Dixon, Merrill W. (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Hoag,Marie 04/30/06 
Noce, Pauline Y. 04/30/07 
Ogg, David S. 04/30/05 
Rhoads, Josephine 04/30/05 
Thompson, JoAnn 04/30/06 
Weisgerber, William (Does not seek reappointment) 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Buchanan, Cynthia 06/07/00 06/07/00 
Burt, Susan 09/24/01 10/01/01 
Connor, Kathleen Ann 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Freliga, Mary E. 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Freliga, Victor P. 04/19/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Lang, Victoria 06/16/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Pietron, Dorothy A. 12/21/98-07/10/01 07/23/01 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Sastry, Shiva Shakara K. 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Schafer, Donald E. 06/08/04-06/2006 06/21/04 
Solarte, Remedios 09/15/04 09/20/04 
Wheeler, Nancy 03/108/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
 
Cable Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 02-28-2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

Bixby, Jerry L 02-28-06 
Butt, Shazad 11-30-05 
Hughes, Richard 02-28-06 
Marinos, Penny 02-28-07 
Manzon, Alan 09-30-06 
Lin, Fan (Student) 07-01-05 
Voigt, W Kent 02-28-07 
Wehrung, Bryan H (Seeking Reappointment) 02-28-05 
  
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Godlewski, W S 12/28/01-07/01/03- 

07/2005 
01/07/02- 
07/07/03 

Kuschinsky, Dick 10/11/01-06/19/03 
06/2005 

11/05/01 

Payne, Timothy P 02/25/04-02/2006 03/08/04 
Powers, Brian M 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Solomon, Mark R 01/21/05 02/07/05 
Victor, Robert 06/03/03-06/2005 02/02/04 
Wattles, Brian J 07/10/01 07/23/01 
Weisgerber, William 07/14/03-07/2005 07/21/03 
Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Charter Revision Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Barno, Lillian April 30, 2006 
Bliss, Daniel H. April 30, 2006 
Bloom, Jerry E. April 30, 2007 
Kanoza, Shirley April 30, 2007 
Noce, Robert April 30, 2006 
Solomon, Mark R. April 30, 2005 
Wilsher, Cynthia A. (Seeking Reappointment) April 30, 2005 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Almassian, Carolyn 04/22/02-04/2004 05/06/02 
Baughman, Deborah L. 06/18/01-06/09/03-05/2005 07/09/01-06/16/03 
Courtney, Kenneth 03/12/04-03/2006 03/15/04 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Schepke, Gordon 03/22/05 04/04/05 
Silver, Neil S. 06/09/03-05/2005 06/16/03 

Weisgerber, William 04/23/01-07/14/03-03/07/05-
07/2007 04/23/01-07/21/03 

Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 

Ziegenfelder, Peter F. 12/07/00-06/11/01-06/11/03-
05/2005 12/18/00-07/09/01-06/16/03 

  
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 
 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 
  Term expires 03-01-08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Wilson Deane Blythe (Does not seek reappointment) 03/01/05 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/08 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/08 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
Vilin Zhang (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED  APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kerry S. Krivoshein 08/12/99-06/14/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Personnel Board 
Appointed by  Council (5) - 3 years 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008  
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Baughman, Deborah L. April 30, 2005 
Nelson, Albert T. Jr. April 30, 2006 
Patrick, Stephen Jr. April 30, 2006 
Tschirhart, Ronald L. (Seeks reappointment) April 30, 2005 
Vanderbrink, James E. April 30, 2006 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Bluthe, Wilson Deane 03/06/02 03/18/02 
Calice,  Mark A. 06/10/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Freliga, Victor P. 11/28/04-11/2006 12/06/04 
Hall, Patrick C. 06/16/03-05/2005 07/07/03 
Howrylak, Frank J. 06/11/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Huber, Laurie G. 06/18/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Pritzloff,  Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shah, Jayshree 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Uitto, Renee 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
Ziegenfelder, Peter F. 12/07/00-06/11/01-06/11/03-05/2005 12/18/90-07/09/01-06/16/03 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Proposed Membership Contract Between the City of Troy and Southeastern 

Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA)  
 
Jeff McKeen, General Manager and Robert Davis, Legal Counsel from SOCRRA will be 
giving a brief presentation and can answer questions in conjunction with City staff. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract between the Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery 
Authority (SOCRRA) and the City of Troy, whereby SOCRRA shall collect, process and dispose 
of the municipal solid waste, yard waste and recyclables accumulating within this municipality, 
and the City of Troy shall pay SOCRRA for this service at rates established annually by the 
SOCRRA Board of Trustees throughout the contract period and as long as the City is bound by 
that contract, and the same is hereby RATIFIED and APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED and 
DIRECTED TO EXECUTE said contract with the Southeastern Oakland County Resource 
Recovery Authority (SOCRRA), a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Proposal From Mr. Ed Barlow to Facilitate a Futuring and Strategic Planning 

Process for the City of Troy  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposal from Ed Barlow to 
facilitate a futuring and strategic planning process for an amount not to exceed $50,000.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Big Beaver Corridor Study  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority in conjunction with the Troy City 
Council recognized a need to re-ignite the development and redevelopment efforts of properties 
contained within the Troy Downtown Development district which have an estimated value of 
$1.3 billion; 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council through Resolution 2004-10-565 directed City administration 
to proceed with the Big Beaver Corridor Study and to send out requests for proposals (RFP); 
 
WHEREAS, In addition to his staff, the City Manager invited a representative from Troy City 
Council, Downtown Development Authority, Planning Commission and the City’s planning 
consultant to comprise a RFP committee; 
 
WHEREAS, This RPF committee unanimously recommended that Birchler Arroyo Associates, 
Inc. be selected to perform the Big Beaver Corridor Study, based upon the best proposal 
submission in terms of stakeholder input, land use policies to determine long term economic 
viability, transportation management and design/esthetics; 
 
WHEREAS, The Downtown Development Authority adopted a resolution that authorizes the 
DDA Chairman and Executive Director to execute a contract with Birchler Arroyo Associates, 
Inc. to Conduct the Big Beaver Corridor Study, contingent upon endorsement by Troy City 
Council; 
 
WHEREAS, The Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc. proposal includes a professional fee of 
$125,000 with 10% expenses, not to exceed a total of $137,000.00. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council ENDORSES the 
Downtown Development Authority contract with Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc. and SHALL 
BUDGET sufficient funds for the Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

F-5 Options/Ramifications for Proposed I-75 Crooks / Long Lake Interchange 
Improvement Project  

 
City Management wishes to make a presentation on this matter. 
 
a) Proposed Resolution 1 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City has been proactive in property acquisitions for potential public 
infrastructure projects to minimize future higher costs of acquiring property; 
 
WHEREAS, The Environmental Assessment (EA) required by the Federal Highway 
Administration will give those wanting to participate in the development process an opportunity 
to help identify the best solution for the area; 
 
WHEREAS, Several studies in the past have identified an alternative with Collector-Distributor 
(CD) roads and ramp connections at Long Lake to be the option that would most effectively and 
efficiently distribute and enhance traffic operations in the area. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council DIRECTS City staff to proceed 
with the Environmental Assessment (EA) and with property acquisitions for the I-75 
Crooks/Long Lake Interchange Improvement project. 
 
b) Proposed Resolution 2 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Environmental Assessment (EA) required by the Federal Highway 
Administration will give those wanting to participate in the development process an opportunity 
to help identify the best solution for the area; 
 
WHEREAS, The Environmental Assessment (EA) may identify an alternative that may not 
require the property acquisitions that have been initiated. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council DIRECTS City staff to proceed 
with the Environmental Assessment, and after the Environmental Assessment is complete, 
begin to acquire property for the project where applicable. 
 
c) Proposed Resolution 3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Due to various concerns from area residents and the White Chapel Cemetery, the 
Federal Highway Administration requested that an Environmental Assessment (EA) be 
performed for this project; 
 
WHEREAS, The ICMA citizen survey which indicated that 51 percent of the resident 
respondents are not in favor of the above-referenced project. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council DIRECTS City staff to abandon 
the I-75 Crooks/Long Lake Interchange Improvement project before any further monies are 
expended on property acquisition or the Environmental Assessment (EA). 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Temporary Aid Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The closure of Coolidge Road at I-75 for construction will temporarily restrict the 
ability of Fire Station 6 to respond to incidents in sections 5 and 6; 
 
WHEREAS, Bloomfield Township has agreed to provide temporary aid to Troy by responding to 
structure fires in sections 5 and 6 during the construction period. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the attached agreement with Bloomfield 
Township which has been executed by the City Manager is hereby RATIFIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Final Site Plan Approval – Proposed Maplewood Site Condominium – South Side 

of South Boulevard, West of Rochester Road – Section 3, R-1C  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Final Plan be APPROVED, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the 
Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of the 
One-Family Residential Site Condominium known as Maplewood Site Condominium, with 
fourteen (14) units, located south of South Boulevard and west of Rochester Road – Section 3, 
within the R-1C Zoning District and being 5.171 Acres in size. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-8 Flags 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council APPROVES flying the 50th Anniversary flag beneath the City 
flag on all flag poles which currently fly a City flag. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-9 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Process Award – Troy Daze 

Fireworks  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide three (3) year requirements of Fireworks Displays for 
the Magic of Fall/Troy Daze Festival for years 2005, 2006, and 2007 is hereby AWARDED to 
Mad Bomber Fireworks Productions of Kingsbury, IN, the highest scoring respondent as a 
result of a Best Value process, which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public 
interest for an estimated total cost of $15,000.00, or $5,000.00 per year; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-10 Sole Source – US Filter HRR Enhancer and Pulsar Plus Briquettes  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, B&B Pools and Spas of Livonia, MI, is the authorized dealer/ distributor in Michigan 
for Arch Chemical and US Filter pool products; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

WHEREAS, Pulsar Plus manufactured by Arch and HRR Enhancer by US Filter are compatible 
with the ECS System installed at the Community Center Indoor Pool, which maintains proper 
chemical balance and ensures public health and safety; 
 
WHEREAS, B&B Pools and Spas market their Pulsar products at dealer prices plus 25% and 
HRR Enhancer at trade prices. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase both Pulsar Products and 
HRR Enhancer is hereby APPROVED with B&B Pools and Spas at dealer prices plus 25% and 
trade prices respectively for the Community Center Indoor Pool. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-11 Bid Waiver – Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal for Fiscal Year 2005/2006  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Municipal League has provided Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
for the City of Troy and the premium charged has been equitable based on the City’s 
experience; 
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable to continue the program through the Michigan Municipal League due 
to the positive experience of participating in the MML program.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and the net estimated premium cost of $552,460.00 is hereby APPROVED for Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance through the MML for the 2005-2006 fiscal year with a resulting final 
estimated cost to the City of $444,846.00 after applying a dividend distribution check in the 
amount of $107,614.00.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-12 Bid Waiver – Skate Park Equipment  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On March 17, 2003, the Troy City Council awarded a contract to furnish and install 
skate park components to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Rolar Property SVC, a 
general contractor, (Resolution #2003-03-142); 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

WHEREAS, Michigan Skate Parks, LLC, a sub-contractor on the project, provided and installed 
the equipment as the regional representative for Woodward Ramps and Rails/HUNA Designs;  
 
WHEREAS, The existing equipment has performed well and it is beneficial from a maintenance 
standpoint to standardize the equipment within the site. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to purchase additional skate park components to 
complete the skate park at an estimated total cost of $42,532.00, with $16,820.00 funded 
through user and private contributions, $20,000.00 funded through a Kmart Community 
Makeover Grant, and the remaining funds of an estimated $5,712.00 provided by the City of 
Troy.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-13 Petition Analysis, Paving of Tacoma SAD #05.202.01 
 
a) Standard Resolution #1 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Resolution #1 be hereby ADOPTED to direct the 
preparation of plans and costs estimates for the Special Assessment to pay all or part of 
the cost of Asphalt Paving of Tacoma in Section 28, Project No. 05.202.1, all pursuant to 
Sections 1.1 and 1.2 of Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
b) Standard Resolution #2 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Resolution #2 be hereby ADOPTED to approve plans and 
cost estimates for a Special Assessment to pay all or part of the cost of Asphalt Paving 
of Tacoma, in Section 28, Project No. 05.202.1, all pursuant to Sections 1.1 and 1.2 of 
Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy: 
 
Total Estimated Cost $328,000.00 
Assessment (2,349.56 lf @ $19.5781/lf.)     46,000.00 
City's Share   282,000.00 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Assessor is hereby ORDERED and 
DIRECTED to prepare a Special Assessment Roll in accordance with Chapter 5 of the 
Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
c) Standard Resolution #3 
 
Resolution #2005- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Resolution #3 be hereby ADOPTED to set a Public Hearing 
date on the Special Assessment roll for Asphalt Paving of Tacoma, in Section 28, Project 
No. 05.202.1, all pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy, with said Public 
Hearing to be established for June 6, 2005. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-14 Petition Analysis, Paving of Olympia SAD #05.201.1  
 
a) Standard Resolution #1 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Resolution #1 be hereby ADOPTED to DIRECT the preparation of 
plans and costs estimates for the Special Assessment to pay all or part of the cost of Asphalt 
Paving of Olympia in Section 28,  Project No. 05.201.1, all pursuant to Sections 1.1 and 1.2 of 
Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
b) Standard Resolution #2 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Resolution #2 be hereby ADOPTED to APPROVE plans 
and cost estimates for a Special Assessment to pay all or part of the cost of Asphalt 
Paving of Olympia, in Section 28, Project No. 05.201.1, all pursuant to Sections 1.1 and 
1.2 of Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

 
Total Estimated Cost $334,000.00 
Assessment (2,094.92 lf @ $21.9578/lf.)     46,000.00 
City's Share   288,000.00 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Assessor is hereby ORDERED and 
DIRECTED to prepare a Special Assessment Roll in accordance with Chapter 5 of the 
Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
c) Standard Resolution #3 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Resolution #3 be hereby ADOPTED to set a Public Hearing 
date on the Special Assessment roll for Asphalt Paving of Olympia, in Section 28, Project 
No. 05.201.1, all pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy, with said Public 
Hearing to be established for June 6, 2005. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-15 Charter Revisions – 2005 Proposed Charter Committee Referrals  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to refer consideration of 
Charter amendment language, as proposed, to the Charter Revision Committee for placement 
on the ballot for the General Election scheduled for November 8, 2005. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal, Renewal – 6881 Westaway - May 16, 2005 
b) Parking Variance – 3290 W. Big Beaver – May 16, 2005 
c) Rezoning Application – South Side of Henrietta Avenue, South of Big Beaver Road and 

East of Rochester Road, Section 27 – R-1E to P-1 (Z-695) – May 16, 2005 
d) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 2150-A) – Article 04.20.00 and Articles 

40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions – May 
16, 2005    

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  

a) Purchase of Jensen Property Sidwell #88-20-16-478-027 
b) Revisions to Chapter 97 and Chapter 60 of the Troy City Code 

  
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Troy Local Development Finance Authority/Draft – June 29, 2004 
b) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – December 16, 2004 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Amended/Final – February 9, 2005 
d) Troy Historic District Commission/Final – February 15, 2005 
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizen/Final – March 3, 2005 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – March 9, 2005 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 14, 2005 
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – March 15, 2005 
i) Troy Historic District Commission/Final – March 15, 2005 
j) Planning Commission Special-Joint Meeting/Draft – March 28, 2005 
k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – April 5, 2005  
l) Planning Commission Special Meeting/Draft – April 5, 2005 
m) Planning Commission Special-Study Meeting/Draft – April 5, 2005 
n) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – April 6, 2005  
o) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – April 7, 2005 
p) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – April 11, 2005 
q) Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Draft – April 12, 2005  
r) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – April 13, 2005 
s) Troy Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – April 21, 2005 
t) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – April 26, 2005  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Councilmember Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for the National League of Cities’ 

“The Power of Democratic Governance” Conference 
b) Councilmember Beltramini’s Report from “The Power of Democratic Governance” 

Conference 
c) Memorandum from City Management Answering Questions Raised by Council Members 

During the Budget Session 
d) Bidcorp On-Line Auction – Workstations – Parts/Fixtures – Unassembled and BidNet 

On-Line Auction – Monroe 3250 Detacher – Twenty-five (25) Computers – Two (2) 
Boxes of Cables and Modems – Final Reporting  

 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:   
a) Letter of Thanks to Officers Mark Cole and Rick Sewell from Leona L. Slone and Family 
b) Letter of Thanks to Officer Kaptur from the Troy Middle School Health Teachers 
c) Letter of Thanks to Detective James Mork from David J. Easterbrook 
d) Letter of Appreciation to Officers Scott LaMilza and Steve Zagacki from Lyn S. Visner 
e) Letter of Thanks to Detective James Mork from Rabbi Aaron Starr of Congregation Shir 

Tikvah 
f) Letter of Appreciation to the Troy Community Center From State Representative Robert 

Gosselin for the “Operation Kicks for Kids” Donation Drive 
g) Letter of Appreciation to Carol Anderson from Ryan Mandziara Regarding the Removal 

of Ash Trees 
h) Letter of Thanks to Detective James Mork from Schroeder Elementary School PTO 

President, Julie Papandrea  
 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 
 
(a) Resolution from City of Royal Oak Calling on Governor Jennifer Granholm to Establish a 

Commission to Study the Financing of Health Care 
(b) Resolution from City of Rochester Hills Supporting of Municipalities Maintaining Local 

Control of Liquor Licenses  
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Troy Chamber Economic Development Master Plan 
 
J-7  SAD Interest Rate 
 
J-8  William Beaumont Research Study 
 
J-9 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Action on Budget 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 22 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2005 
 

- 23 - 

 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Tuesday, May 10, 2005: 7:30 PM .................................... Special/Study City Council 
Monday, May 16, 2005.............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 23, 2005.............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, June 6, 2005............................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, June 20, 2005............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 11, 2005 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 18, 2005 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, April 18, 2005, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:29 PM. 

Father Emanuel Shaleta – St. Joseph Chaldean Catholic Church gave the invocation and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1102 Boyd 
 
Resolution #2005-04-176 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Irene Ianos, 1102 Boyd, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Dodge dump truck and wood chipper on a trailer in a residential district is hereby 
APPROVED for six (6) months to give the petitioner time to contact the appropriate facilities to 
park the vehicle off-site. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
No: Schilling, Stine  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1998 Kirkton 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from William Hiner, 1998 Kirkton, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford dump truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for six (6) months. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-04-177 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING six (6) months and INSERTING 
two (2) years, and INSERT, 
 
“B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle.” BEFORE,  

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s). 

 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak,  
No: Beltramini, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Main Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-04-178 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from William Hiner, 1998 Kirkton, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford dump truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for six (6) months. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Beltramini  
No: Stine, Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6771 Westaway 
 
Resolution #2005-04-179 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Henry Rowe, 6771 Westaway, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for two (2) years. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Broomfield  
No: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Best Value Process Award – Audit Services – In a related matter, Item J-7 is a 
letter from Doeren Mayhew to City Council 

 
Pending Resolution 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy desires to utilize the services of a new auditor 
after fourteen years with Doeren Mayhew. 
 
RESOLVED, That a three (3) year contract to provide audit services for years 2005, 2006 and 
2007 with an option to renew for three (3) additional years is hereby AWARDED to the 
Rehmann Group as a result of the Best Value process at an estimated cost of $63,820.00, as 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

outlined in the tabulation opened February 4, 2005; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-04-180 
Moved by Schilling   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by SUBSTITUTION, by STRIKING it in its 
entirety and INSERTING, 
 
“RESOLVED, That a three-year contract to provide Audit Services for years 2005, 2006, and 
2007 with an option to renew for three additional years is hereby AWARDED to Doeren 
Mayhew of Troy, Michigan, the lowest bidder with the highest score, as the result of a Best 
Value process at an estimated annual cost of $55,695.00, as outlined in the tabulation opened 
February 4, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. “  
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Howrylak, Broomfield, Lambert, Eisenbacher   
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-04-181 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by SUBSTITUTION, by STRIKING it in its 
entirety and INSERTING,  
 
“WHEREAS, The Troy City Council does not wish to retain Doeren Mayhew to provide auditing 
services for another contract period since the firm has been engaged as the City’s auditors 
since 1991; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Rehmann Group is the next most qualified firm as the result of a Best Value 
Process. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That, a three-year contract to provide Audit Services 
for years 2005, 2006, and 2007 with an option to renew for three additional years is hereby 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

AWARDED to The Rehmann Group, at an estimated annual cost of $63,820.00, as outlined in 
the tabulation opened February 4, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.”   
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
No: Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution
 
Resolution #2005-04-182 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council does not wish to retain Doeren Mayhew to provide auditing 
services for another contract period since the firm has been engaged as the City’s auditors 
since 1991; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Rehmann Group is the next most qualified firm as the result of a Best Value 
Process. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That, a three-year contract to provide Audit Services 
for years 2005, 2006, and 2007 with an option to renew for three additional years is hereby 
AWARDED to The Rehmann Group, at an estimated annual cost of $63,820.00, as outlined in 
the tabulation opened February 4, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
Yes: Stine, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert   
No: Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-04-183 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 4, 2005 at 7:30 PM be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamations:  
 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-3 
 
a) Recording for the Blind and Dyslexic Week – April 25-30, 2005 
b) Law Day – May 1, 2005  
 
E-4  Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Roof Replacement at 

Fire Station #4 
 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to replace the roof at Fire Station #4, located at 2103 E. Maple 
Road, is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Bloomfield Construction Company of Bloomfield 
Hills, MI, at an estimated total cost of $31,190.00, which includes twenty (20) additional sheets 
of fire retardant plywood, and insurance; at unit prices contained on the attached bid tabulation 
opened March 29, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Option to Renew – Towing and Storage 

Services 
 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-4b 
 
WHEREAS, On August 6, 2001, a three-year contract with two, one-year options to renew to 
provide towing and storage services was AWARDED to the low bidder, Coleman’s Towing and 
Recovery, Inc. (formerly A Roadone Company) (Resolution #2001-08-394-E-3); and  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

WHEREAS, Coleman’s Towing and Recovery, Inc. agreed to exercise the first of two one-year 
options to renew the contract under the same prices, terms, and conditions (Resolution #2004-
05-268-E-9); and 
 
WHEREAS, Coleman’s Towing and Recovery, Inc. agrees to exercise the second one-year 
option to renew the contract;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the second of two one-year options to renew the 
contract is hereby EXERCISED with Coleman’s Towing and Recovery, Inc. to provide towing 
and storage services under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions expiring on July 31, 
2006. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 05-1 – 

Section 18 Bituminous Overlay, Big Oak Trail SAD and Somerton SAD
 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That contract No. 05-1, Section 18 Bituminous Overlay, Big Oak Trail SAD and 
Somerton SAD, be AWARDED to John Carlo, Inc., 4500 River Ridge, Clinton Twp., MI 48038 
at an estimated total cost of $289,956.90. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Aggregates
 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That one-year contracts for Aggregates with an option to renew for one additional 
year are hereby AWARDED to the low bidders, Wolverine Contractors, Inc. of Lathrup Village, 
MI, Richmond Transport of Lenox, MI, United Soils, Inc. of Ray Township, MI, and Edw. C. Levy 
Co. of Detroit, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 21, 2005, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contracts expiring 
April 30, 2006; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Printing of Troy Today, Quarterly Newsletter
 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide printing of the quarterly Troy Today newsletter for one 
(1) year with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods is hereby AWARDED to 
the lowest acceptable bidder meeting specifications, Grand River Printing & Imaging, for an 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

estimated annual cost of $70,060.72, plus the actual cost of bulk rate postage; and additional 
charges as needed not to exceed 10% of the total contract cost or $7,006.07, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened March 30, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting, to expire upon completion of the Spring 2006 issue.   
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Sole Bidder – Transit Mixed 

Concrete
 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide one-year requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with 
an option to renew for one additional year is hereby AWARDED to the sole bidder, Nagy Ready 
Mix, Inc. of Utica, MI, the primary supplier, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
March 14, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting at 
an estimated total cost of $166,554.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Clawson & Killins Concrete Co. is hereby named 
secondary supplier, utilizing the informal three-quote process at the following unit prices: 
 
PROPOSAL A – WEEK DAY DELIVERY 

 
ITEM   DESCRIPTION   UNIT PRICE 
1.   6 Sack Mix    $   68.00/cy 
2.   7 Sack Mix (High Early)  $   73.00/cy 
3.   12 HR 300PSI Mix   $   73.00/cy 

Flexural Strength/ 7 sack 
 
4.   Split Load Charges
      a.   2 Locations    $ 100.00/ea 
      b.      3 locations    $ 100.00/ea 
5.   Below Minimum Load Charge $   80.00/ea 
6.   Cold Weather Protection  $     4.00/cy 
 

PROPOSAL B – SATURDAY DELIVERY 
 

ITEM    DESCRIPTION   UNIT PRICE 
1.      6 Sack Mix    $   73.00/cy 
2.    7 Sack Mix (High Early)  $   78.00/cy 
3.    12 HR 300PSI Mix   $   78.00/cy 
   Flexural Strength/ 7 sack 
 
4.   Split Load Charges
      a.   2 Locations    $ 100.00/ea 
      b.    3 locations    $ 100.00/ea 
5.   Below Minimum Load Charge $   80.00/ea 
6.   Cold Weather Protection  $     5.00/cy 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements; and the contracts shall expire April 30, 2006. 
 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National League of Cities 
(NLC) Congress of Cities and Exposition

 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-4g 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Council Members are AUTHORIZED to attend the 
National League of Cities’ 82nd Congress of Cities and Exposition to be held in Charlotte, North 
Carolina from December 6 – 10, 2005, in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of 
Troy. 
 
E-5  Approval of Relocation Claim, Barbara A. Stimac, 2827 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-

226-004, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, Rochester to 
Dequindre 

 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-5  
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Barbara A. Stimac, pertaining to 
the City of Troy’s acquisition of her property at 2827 Thames, having Sidwell #88-20-25-226-
004, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $2,245.00 
 
E-6  Acceptance of a Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit for the Troy Court 

Water Main Project #01.502.5 – Section 34 
 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-6  
 
RESOLVED, That the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit from property owner 
Strained Gator, LLC, having Sidwell #88-20-34-152-023, with a consideration of $1,000.00, is 
hereby ACCEPTED, and payment of the stated consideration is APPROVED, for the 
construction, operation, maintenance and repair of the Troy Court Water Main improvement 
project; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a copy of said document shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7  Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain – Republic of San Marino 

Hall, Incorporated – 1685 E. Big Beaver Road – Project No. 04.929.3 – Sidwell #88-
20-23-401-033 

 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

RESOLVED, That the Watermain Easement from Republic of San Marino Hall, Incorporated, 
owner of property at 1685 East Big Beaver Road, having Sidwell #88-20-23-401-033, is hereby 
ACCEPTED for the operation, maintenance and repair or replacement of watermain; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8  Private Agreement for San Marino Social Club 
 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-8  
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and San Marino Social Club, is hereby APPROVED for 
the installation of water main and soil erosion controls on the site and in the adjacent right of 
way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9  Maria Hunciag v. City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-9  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED TO RETAIN Laura S. 
Amtsbuechler, of the law firm of Johnson, Rosati, LaBarge, Aseltyne and Field, P.C., to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Maria Hunciag v. 
City of Troy, and to retain any necessary experts and pay any reasonable expenses incurred in 
defense of the matter. 
 
E-10 Acceptance of Private Road Agreement, Private Sidewalk Agreement, Emergency 

Storm Sewer Easement, Emergency Access Easement, Permanent Sanitary Sewer 
Easement, and Permanent Water Main Easement – Golf John R, L.L.C. – The 
Enclave of Troy – Sidwell #88-20-13-351-025 

 
Resolution #2005-04-183-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That the Private Road Agreement, Private Sidewalk Agreement, Emergency 
Storm Sewer Easement, Emergency Access Easement, Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement, 
and Permanent Water Main Easement, all being part of The Enclave of Troy Condominium 
project, are hereby ACCEPTED; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Private Road Agreement and the Private Sidewalk Agreement on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Appointments:  Board of Zoning 
Appeals, Historic District Commission, Library Board 

 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 

 
Resolution #2005-04-184 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR with 
COUNCIL APPROVAL to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
Mayor, Council Approval (7) – 3 years 
 
Laurence R. Goss Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
Katerine M. Lee Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
Robert D. Swartz Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 

 
Yes: All-7  
 
(b) City Council Appointments 

 
Resolution #2005-04-185 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
Mark Maxwell Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
Matthew R. Kovacs Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) Term expires March 1, 2008 
 
Library Board
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 
Audre Zembrzuski Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-2 Approval of Contract with MDOT for Right-of-Way Acquisition for the 

Reconstruction and Widening of John R, from Square Lake to South Boulevard – 
Project No. 02.204.5 

 
Resolution #2005-04-186 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of 
Transportation for right-of-way acquisition for John R, Square Lake to South Boulevard, Project 
No. 02.204.5, is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 
execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-3 Approval of Contract with MDOT for Right-of-Way Acquisition for the 

Reconstruction and Widening of John R, from Long Lake to Square Lake – Project 
No. 02.203.5 

 
Resolution #2005-04-187 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of 
Transportation for right-of-way acquisition for John R, Long Lake to Square Lake, Project No. 
02.203.5, is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute 
the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-4 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Encoding Hardware and Hard Disk Array for Long-Term 

Archival Storage 
 
Resolution #2005-04-188 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

WHEREAS, Integrated Media Technologies, Inc. is the provider of DVTel hardware and 
application software used by the Police Department to record interviews and activity in the 
Lockup Section. 
 
WHEREAS, Increased camera coverage and long-term storage will enhance Police Department 
Operations. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That, formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to purchase hardware, licensing, and installation services 
from Integrated Media Technologies, Inc. to connect thirteen (13) cameras to the recording 
system, and a 4TB RAID-5 storage unit at an estimated total cost of $36,077.00. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-5 Amendment to Chapter 20 – Water and Sewer Rates - Update of Sanitary Sewer 

Benefit Fees  
 
Resolution #2005-04-189 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Sewer Benefit fees as provided in Chapter 20 – Water and Sewer Rates, 
Section 8 of the Troy City Code, last amended in 1989, are hereby REVISED as recommended 
in a report by the City Manager dated March 30, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
and made a part of the Minutes of this meeting, as follows: 
 
 

Single Family Residences 
 

Zone Districts Min. Lot Size Existing Fee  Proposed Fee 
R-1E          60       $2,400        $3,000 
R-1D          75       $3,000        $3,750 
R-1C          85       $3,400        $4,250 
R-1B        100       $4,000        $5,000 
R-1A        120       $4,800        $6,000 

 
 All Other Uses and Zones        $50/front foot 
          Minimum $3,000 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Sewer Benefit fee for any sanitary sewer constructed 
by the City of Troy after April 18, 2005 SHALL BE DETERMINED on a project-by-project basis 
based on the total cost of the sewer extension divided by the number of properties benefiting 
from the sewer at the time of construction; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That for sewers constructed after April 18, 2005 by any entity or 
agency other than the City of Troy, the Sewer Benefit fee payable by all properties benefiting 
from the sewer construction SHALL BE BASED on the zoning classification of the property; 
and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That for any lot created from splitting property benefiting from a 
sanitary sewer extension constructed after April 18, 2005 by the City of Troy, the lot or lots 
created SHALL PAY either the Benefit Fee applicable to that property’s zoning classification or 
the proportionate share of the benefit fee established at the time of sewer construction, 
whichever is greater.  
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-6 Council Rules of Procedure Amendment to Accommodate SEMCOG and SOCRRA 

Member Appointments 
 
Resolution #2005-04-190 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Rules of Procedure be AMENDED, as recommended and to include 
additional revisions as set on the table, to incorporate Rule 15.1 Appointment of City of Troy 
Representation to SEMCOG and SOCRRA. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-7 FOIA (Freedom of Information Act) / Enhanced Access Policy Proposed Revision 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is a public body within the meaning of the Michigan Freedom of 
Information Act (MFOIA, found in MCL 15.231 et seq.) and the Michigan Enhanced Access Act 
(MCL 15.441 et seq.); 
 
WHEREAS, The declared public policy of the State of Michigan, as set forth in the MFOIA, is 
that all persons, except those incarcerated in state or local correctional facilities, are entitled to 
full and complete information regarding governmental decision-making; 
 
WHEREAS, In its capacity as a public body, the City of Troy creates, possesses and maintains 
certain records which fit within the definition of the term “public records” as defined in the 
MFOIA; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is required by the provisions of the MFOIA to grant requests by 
persons or corporations desiring to inspect or receive copies of public records when the 
requested documentation or information is described sufficiently to enable the public body to 
find the public record, except as provided in MCL 15.243; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the ability to provide some “public records” in a requested 
electronic format, but the cost of producing the requested public records exceeds normal 
MFOIA production costs and, therefore, is entitled to be reimbursed to the City; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy desires to establish procedures, guidelines and fees in 
accordance with and pursuant to the provisions of MFOIA and the Michigan Enhanced Access 
Act for application to and for use in connection with requests received by it for the inspection or 
receipt of copies of public records. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DESIGNATED as the 
FOIA / Enhanced Access Act Coordinator for the City of Troy. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the attached FOIA / Enhanced Access policy is hereby 
ADOPTED by the City of Troy. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-04-191 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING “$.32 per page” and 
INSERTING, “$.20 per page.” 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
No:  Beltramini, Broomfield, Stine, Schilling  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-04-192 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is a public body within the meaning of the Michigan Freedom of 
Information Act (MFOIA, found in MCL 15.231 et seq.) and the Michigan Enhanced Access Act 
(MCL 15.441 et seq.); 
 
WHEREAS, The declared public policy of the State of Michigan, as set forth in the MFOIA, is 
that all persons, except those incarcerated in state or local correctional facilities, are entitled to 
full and complete information regarding governmental decision-making; 
 
WHEREAS, In its capacity as a public body, the City of Troy creates, possesses and maintains 
certain records which fit within the definition of the term “public records” as defined in the 
MFOIA; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is required by the provisions of the MFOIA to grant requests by 
persons or corporations desiring to inspect or receive copies of public records when the 
requested documentation or information is described sufficiently to enable the public body to 
find the public record, except as provided in MCL 15.243; 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the ability to provide some “public records” in a requested 
electronic format, but the cost of producing the requested public records exceeds normal 
MFOIA production costs and, therefore, is entitled to be reimbursed to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy desires to establish procedures, guidelines and fees in 
accordance with and pursuant to the provisions of MFOIA and the Michigan Enhanced Access 
Act for application to and for use in connection with requests received by it for the inspection or 
receipt of copies of public records. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DESIGNATED as the 
FOIA / Enhanced Access Act Coordinator for the City of Troy. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the attached FOIA / Enhanced Access policy is hereby 
ADOPTED by the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Howrylak, Stine  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:34 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:44 PM. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Reconsider 
 
Resolution #2005-04-193 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Howrylak  
  
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2005-04-192, FOIA (Freedom of Information Act) / Enhanced 
Access Policy Proposed Revision, Moved by Stine and Seconded by Beltramini be 
RECONSIDERED. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution as Reconsidered 
 
Resolution #2005-04-194 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is a public body within the meaning of the Michigan Freedom of 
Information Act (MFOIA, found in MCL 15.231 et seq.) and the Michigan Enhanced Access Act 
(MCL 15.441 et seq.); 
 
WHEREAS, The declared public policy of the State of Michigan, as set forth in the MFOIA, is 
that all persons, except those incarcerated in state or local correctional facilities, are entitled to 
full and complete information regarding governmental decision-making; 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

WHEREAS, In its capacity as a public body, the City of Troy creates, possesses and maintains 
certain records which fit within the definition of the term “public records” as defined in the 
MFOIA; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is required by the provisions of the MFOIA to grant requests by 
persons or corporations desiring to inspect or receive copies of public records when the 
requested documentation or information is described sufficiently to enable the public body to 
find the public record, except as provided in MCL 15.243; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the ability to provide some “public records” in a requested 
electronic format, but the cost of producing the requested public records exceeds normal 
MFOIA production costs and, therefore, is entitled to be reimbursed to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy desires to establish procedures, guidelines and fees in 
accordance with and pursuant to the provisions of MFOIA and the Michigan Enhanced Access 
Act for application to and for use in connection with requests received by it for the inspection or 
receipt of copies of public records. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DESIGNATED as the 
FOIA / Enhanced Access Act Coordinator for the City of Troy. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the attached FOIA / Enhanced Access policy is hereby 
ADOPTED by the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield   
No: Howrylak, Eisenbacher  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-8 Approval of Subdivision Entrance Sign / Agreement – Cedar Ridge Estates 

Subdivision 
 
Resolution #2005-04-195 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED; That the sign application submitted by the Cedar Ridge Estates Homeowners 
Association for the placement of a sign on the detention pond parcel adjacent to the intersection 
of Cedar Knoll Drive and Big Beaver Road is hereby APPROVED as to the design and 
materials proposed; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED; That the agreement regarding the maintenance and liability 
coverage for the sign is also APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 
sign the attached agreement on behalf of the City. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

F-9 Planning Consultant Services Contract 
 
Resolution #2005-04-196 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, An Agreement for Consulting Services was entered into on August 15, 2001 
between the City of Troy and Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., for a period of two (2) years; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The terms of the Agreement provide for modification of the conditions and 
extension of the terms by mutual agreement for both parties; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Agreement has been extended by mutual agreement by virtue of the fact that 
the City continues to seek the services of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., and 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. continues to abide by the original terms and conditions of the 
Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. has submitted a revised Agreement for 
Consulting Services, including an increase in the hourly rate schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the revised Agreement for Consulting Services shall be for a period of 
five (5) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Management is satisfied with the service provided by Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. and considers the proposed hourly rate schedule to be reasonable.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement 
for Consulting Services; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Council AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the Agreement for Consulting Services. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-10 Wireless Oakland Pilot Community  
 
Resolution #2005-04-197 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy supports Oakland County’s initiative to be wireless, and 
requests that Troy be selected as a pilot community, and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy WILL PERMIT the placement of wireless 
equipment on City-controlled infrastructure subject to such placement being performed in a 
responsive and responsible manner. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-11 City Manager Employment Contract 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Employment Agreement between the City of Troy and City Manager 
John Szerlag, as reviewed and modified by Labor Attorney Craig Lange, is hereby 
APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Annual Salary for the City Manager is hereby 
ADJUSTED from $133,786.00 to $137,036.00, effective January 1, 2005. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-04-198 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING, “January 1, 2005” and 
INSERTING, “April 18, 2005”. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Stine  
No: Beltramini, Broomfield, Lambert, Schilling  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 22 - 

 Vote on Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-04-199 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Employment Agreement between the City of Troy and City Manager 
John Szerlag, as reviewed and modified by Labor Attorney Craig Lange, is hereby 
APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Annual Salary for the City Manager is hereby 
ADJUSTED from $133,786.00 to $137,036.00, effective January 1, 2005. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak, Lambert  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-12 City Attorney Employment Contract 
 
Resolution #2005-04-200 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Employment Agreement between the City of Troy and City Attorney Lori 
Grigg Bluhm, as reviewed and modified by Labor Attorney Craig Lange, is hereby APPROVED, 
and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Annual Salary for the City Attorney is hereby 
ADJUSTED from $109,697.00 to $112,947.00, effective January 1, 2005. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield   
No: Howrylak, Lambert  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26 – 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 1:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2005-04-201 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26  - 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City Council to 
EXTEND the adjournment time to 1:00 AM. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 23 - 

Yes: All-7  
 
F-13 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Oak Forest South Site Condominium, 

East Side of Willow Grove, South of Square Lake Road, Section 11 – R-1C 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Oak Forest South Site Condominium, as 
submitted and as recommended for approval by the Planning Commission and City 
Management, located on the east side of Willow Grove, south of Square Lake Road, including 
23 home sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 10.03 acres in size, is hereby 
APPROVED. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-04-202 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING “with the addition of the 
following criteria to the existing plan: obtain FEMA approval, obtain MDEQ approval and 
specific assessment and permitting, obtain Oakland County Drain Commission approval, and 
management expects a public meeting with engineering and residents to review the final 
engineering before landwork begins.” 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher Howrylak  
No:  Lambert, Stine, Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-04-203 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING “installation of a temporary 
barrier at Trevino and Willowbrook”  
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Broomfield, Howrylak, Lambert  
No:  Beltramini, Eisenbacher  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 24 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-04-204 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING “in addition to all other 
requirements for final plan approval.”  AFTER “Willowbrook” 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
No: Stine  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Amended Main Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-04-205 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Oak Forest South Site Condominium, as 
submitted and as recommended for approval by the Planning Commission and City 
Management, located on the east side of Willow Grove, south of Square Lake Road, including 
23 home sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 10.03 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED 
with the addition of the following criteria to the existing plan: obtain FEMA approval, obtain 
MDEQ approval and specific assessment and permitting, obtain Oakland County Drain 
Commission approval, and management expects a public meeting with engineering and 
residents to review the final engineering before landwork begins, installation of a temporary 
barrier at Trevino and Willowbrook, in addition to all other requirements for the final plan 
approval. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
No:  Stine, Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-14 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Oak Forest Site Condominium, South 

Side of Square Lake Road, Between Willow Grove and John R Road, Section 11 – 
R-1C 

 
Resolution #2005-04-206 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Oak Forest Site Condominium, as submitted 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 25 - 

and as recommended for approval by the Planning Commission and City Management, located 
on the south side of Square Lake, between Willow Grove and John R Road, including 76 home 
sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 38.4 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED subject to 
the first four conditions by the planning commission in their recommendation for approval and 
that all other final approval requirements from government agencies as well as all other 
requirements for  final plan approval be met prior to final plan submission and a public meeting 
be held by City management to review the final engineering. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Beltramini  
No: Stine, Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-15 Limited Public Forum – Selection Process 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council approved the front lawn of City Hall, the parking lot area north of 
the Community Center as recommended by City Management and adjacent to the Reflective 
Head area and the area surrounding the Reflective Head as the designated limited public forum 
area. 
 
RESOLVED, That the application, rules and procedures including selection processes allowing 
for time, place, and manner governing the limited public forum area are hereby APPROVED; 
and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That requests will be ACCEPTED and APPROVED on a first 
come, first served basis.  All written requests received after April 4, 2005 will be CONSIDERED 
in the order received.  
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-04-207 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING 2 and 3 under Procedures for 
Reserving Designated Limited Public Forum Area of the Rules. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine 
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-04-208 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 26 - 

Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING 2 and 9 under Rules Governing 
Designated Limited Public Forum Area of the Rules. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: Schilling, Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-04-209 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by SUBSTITUTION by STRIKING the 
resolution and amendments in their entirety and INSERT, “RESOLVED, That the application 
submitted by the National Day of Prayer Task Force to observe the National Day of Prayer-
Christian observance at the Veteran’s Memorial Plaza on May 5, 2005 from 12:00 PM to 1:00 
PM is hereby APPROVED.” 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Broomfield, Howrylak  
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher   
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution  
 
Resolution #2005-04-210 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the application submitted by the National Day of Prayer Task Force to 
observe the National Day of Prayer-Christian Observance at the Veteran’s Memorial Plaza on 
May 5, 2005 from 12:00 PM to 1:00 PM is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: Stine, Broomfield, Howrylak, Lambert  
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26 – 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 2:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2005-04-211 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Broomfield 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 27 - 

RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26  - 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City Council to 
EXTEND the adjournment time to 2:00 AM. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Resolution to Designate Veteran’s Memorial Plaza as a Public Forum 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DESIGNATES the Veteran’s Memorial Plaza as a 
Public Forum. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-04-212 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “Limited” BEFORE “Public 
Forum” and the guidelines established for Limited Public Forum including the STRIKING of, 2 
and 3 under Procedures for Reserving Designated Limited Public Forum Area and, 2 and 9 
under Rules Governing Designated Limited Public Forum Area of the Rules be hereby 
ADOPTED. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No: Beltramini, Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-04-213 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DESIGNATES the Veteran’s Memorial Plaza as a 
Limited Public Forum; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the guidelines established for Limited Public Forums 
including the STRIKING of, 2 and 3 under Procedures for Reserving Designated Limited Public 
Forum Area and, 2 and 9 under Rules Governing Designated Limited Public Forum Area of the 
Rules be hereby ADOPTED. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine 
No: Schilling, Beltramini   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 28 - 

MOTION CARRIED 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a) City Manager’s Letter to Ed Barlow Regarding the Proposal for Recalibration of Troy 

Futures Community Report 
b) Charter Revisions – 2005 Proposed Charter Committee Referrals 
c) Minutes from the Special/Joint Meeting of the City Council and Planning Commission, 

March 28, 2005 
Noted and Filed 

 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Election Commission/Final – February 23, 2005 
b) Troy Youth Council/Final – February 23, 2005 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – March 2, 2005 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – March 2, 2005  
e) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 2, 2005 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – March 9, 2005 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 22, 2005 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 22, 2005 
i) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – March 22, 2005  
j) Troy Youth Council/Draft – March 23, 2005 
k) Election Commission/Draft – April 12, 2005  

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 29 - 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Mayor Louise Schilling’s Travel Expense Report for the NLC Annual Congressional City 

Conference 
b) Councilmember Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for the MML Legislative 

Conference 
c) Councilmember Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the National League of Cities 

Congressional Cities Conference 
d) Councilmember Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the Michigan Municipal 

League Legislative Conference  
e) Permits Issued During the Month of March 2005 
 
f) 2005 First Quarter Litigation Report 
g) March 31, 2005 Quarterly Financial Report 
h) ICMA Survey  

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted. 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted. 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Realignment of Coolidge Road/Wattles Intersection Under Full Closure of Coolidge 

Road 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-7  Letter from Doeren Mayhew Regarding Audit Services 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-8  Letter of Transmittal; Proposed Fiscal Year 2005/06 Annual Budget 

Noted and Filed 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Study Item – (Time Permitting) Update on Premature Concrete Pavement 

Deterioration from Alkali-Silica Reactivity (ASR) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – Removed by City Management 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 18, 2005 
 

- 30 - 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 1:43 AM on Tuesday, April 19, 2005. 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
  

 
 Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 

City Clerk 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 25, 2005 
 

-1- 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, April 25, 2005, at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 6:35 PM. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak (Arrived 6:30 PM) 
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

 
 
 
Review of the 2005/06 Budget Document 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 7:30 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 7:45 PM. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
The meeting RECESSED at 10:05 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 10:37 PM. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:37 PM. 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
  

 
 John M. Lamerato 

Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 25, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, April 25, 2005, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1 No Consent Agenda Items 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council #6 – Order of 
Business
 
Resolution #2005-04-214 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council SUSPEND the Rules of Procedure #6 – Order of Business, 
Articles 7 – Regular Business and 16 – Members of the Public and Visitors, to modify the 
agenda format and to move forward Public Comment on individual Regular Business Agenda 
Items as well as any other items for discussion, by members of the public and visitors, to the 
beginning of this Regular City Council meeting agenda to expedite this meeting to allow City 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 25, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

Council to dedicate the remainder of the evening for budget review at the recessed Special City 
Council meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: Employees Retirement System 
Appointment   

 
City Council Appointment

 
Resolution #2005-04-215 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Mayor Louise Schilling is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Retirement System Board of Trustees to fill the unexpired term of Councilman 
David Lambert as indicated: 
 

Retirement System Board of Trustees 
2 appointed by Council, 3 appointed by Members; (3) years 
 
Louise Schilling (Council Rep) Term expires 4-15-2006 

 
Yes: All-7  

F-2 Announcement of Public Hearing - Budget Adoption 
 
Resolution #2005-04-216 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That a Public Hearing be SCHEDULED before the Troy City Council on May 16, 
2005 at 7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit for the purpose of hearing 
public comments on the adoption of 2005-06 Budget. 
 
Yes: All-7 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 25, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 
 

J-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session 
 
Resolution #2005-04-217 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session 
immediately following the Special Meeting of April 25, 2005, as permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), 
Story v City of Troy and Roy Rathka, Jr. v City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 7:44 PM. 
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 25, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
  

 
 John M. Lamerato 

Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft May 2, 2005 
 

-1- 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, May 2, 2005, at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 6:32 PM. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 
 
 

 
Review of the 2005/06 Budget Document 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:47 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:01 PM. 
 
 
Review of the 2005/06 Budget Document (Con’t) 
 
Community Group Funding 
 
There was consensus among City Council members to restore funding to Troy Youth Assistance, Troy 
Community Coalition and Troy Girls/Boys Club with Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balance funds. 
 
Cancellation of May 7, 2005 Special/Study Meeting 
 
Resolution #2005-05-218 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special/Study City Council meeting scheduled for Saturday, May 7, 2005 at 9:00 AM in 
the Council Boardroom be CANCELLED. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft May 2, 2005 
 

-2- 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:10 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
  

 
 John M. Lamerato 

Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 
 
 



 PROCLAMATION TO HONOR 
JAMIE MARTONE  

2005 STATE SWIMMING CHAMPION – 50 YARD FREESTYLE 
 
WHEREAS, Senior Jamie Martone, represented Troy High School at the Division I State Meet on March 
12 at Eastern Michigan University and won the State Championship in the 50-yard freestyle; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jamie also finished in second place in both the 100 freestyle and the 400 freestyle relay, 
and tenth in the 200 medley relay; and 
 
WHEREAS, His showing at the state meet also gave Jamie three school records, which are All-State 
and All-American Award times; and  
 
WHEREAS, Jamie has been voted All-League by the Oakland Athletic Association; All-Area by the 
Oakland Press and by the Eccentric; All-State and All-American in both his junior and senior years; 
Swimmer of the Year for the past two years by the Daily Tribune; and   
 
WHEREAS, Jamie has also contributed his time and energy to Teens Taking Action, the youth division 
of the Troy Community Coalition; Troy High Student Government for four years; and the National Honor 
Society; and 
 
WHEREAS, In a continuous pursuit of both his outstanding swimming goals and his stellar academic 
career to date, Jamie will begin his studies at the University of Michigan this fall with his career goal 
toward a law degree, and join the prestigious Wolverines Men’s Varsity Swim Team; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy commend Jamie 
Martone for his fine efforts as both a Troy High Scholar and Athlete in Swimming and Soccer, and 
extends this token of affection and admiration with which he is regarded in this City; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy, join the citizens of this 
community in appreciation and celebration of Jamie Martone’s State Swimming Championship as 
well as his academic achievements. 
 
Presented this 9th day of May 2005. 
 

morrellca
Text Box
A-01a / E-03a



PROCLAMATION 
National Association of Letter Carriers 

Food Drive Day – May 14, 2005 
 
WHEREAS, The National Association of Letter Carriers (NALC) in conjunction with the United 
States Postal Service (USPS) is sponsoring the 13th Annual National Food Drive Day on 
Saturday, May 14, 2005; and 
 
WHEREAS, NALC Branch 3126 in the City of Troy is participating in the National Food Drive; and  
 
WHEREAS, The cost of inaction is too high, particularly in the face of many negative outcomes for 
our children and community which are preventable; and 
 
WHEREAS, NALC President William H. Young encourages postal carriers and communities to 
work together, because as postal workers “no other people in America can possibly do what we 
can to fight hunger, reaching to every city and town, in every neighborhood and on every street;” 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Over a half billion pounds of food has been collected for local food banks and pantries 
in the ten year history of the drive, helping families throughout the nation; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy hereby proclaims 
Saturday, May 14 2005 as National Association of Letter Carriers Food Drive Day in the City 
of Troy; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that we invite all Troy residents to leave non – perishable food 
at their mailboxes on Saturday, May 14, 2005, to support our local letter carriers in their food 
drive to help alleviate hunger in our community and throughout the nation. 
 
Proclaimed this 9th day of May 2005. 

morrellca
Text Box
A-01b / E-03b



 
Arson Awareness Week 

May 1 – 7, 2005 
 

WHEREAS, Arson is a serious crime that affects all of us and can only be stopped when we 
realize the severe damage it causes to our state and individual communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, These fires erode the tax base and cause a severe loss to our cities, villages and 
neighborhoods, and can destroy property and the security of employment; and 
 
WHEREAS, Arson fires can disrupt our educational system, destroy irreplaceable historical 
buildings and artifacts, render natural resources useless for long periods of time and inflict 
countless human deaths and injuries; and 
 
WHEREAS, Direct costs of arson are estimated by the Michigan Arson Prevention Committee 
to be in the millions each year in Michigan alone, and arson has a significant impact on 
insurance premiums and tax dollars that must be used to pay for extinguishing and 
investigating these maliciously set fires; and 
 
WHEREAS, Costs associated with arson, both financial and emotional, include funerals, 
medical bills, legal work, lost wages, business interruptions, firefighting and law enforcement 
costs, which all exceed direct damage costs many times over; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is fitting to commend the Michigan Arson Prevention Committee for its efforts to 
combat the problem of arson through educational and public information programs and the tip-
reward program that aids in the arrest of approximately 30 arsonists each year; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy proclaims the 
week of May 1 – 7, 2005 as Arson Awareness Week.  We urge the citizens, schools, and 
businesses of the City of Troy to use this occasion to recognize the costly consequences of 
arson. 
 
Proclaimed this 1st Day of May 2005 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-03c



morrellca
Text Box
E-04a









 

 

April 19, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low 

Bidder – Two  (2) Air Compressors  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On March 23, 2005, bid proposals were opened to provide two (2) high-pressure 
Air Compressors for the Fire Department; one for Station Four, the other for 
Station Five.  City management recommends the contract be awarded to the low 
bidder, Douglass Safety Systems of Rhodes, MI, for an estimated total cost of 
$33,800.00. 
 
The award is contingent upon contractor submission of properly executed bid 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 
BACKGROUND 

• The Fire Department utilizes ten (10) high-pressure air compressors for 
the filling of self-contained breathing apparatus.  Each of these units 
operates at pressures of between 4500 and 6000 psi. 

 
• This contract will replace two of the present units.  The units are over 10 

years old.  The new units will have three times the air output of the units 
they replace. 

 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are budgeted in the Fire Operations Account #338.7740.115. 
 
 
95 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
  7 Bid Responses Rec’d 
  1 Late Bid 
  6 No Bids: (1) Company was unable to meet specifications or provide an alternate. 
  (2) Companies unable to bid at this time but want to be retained on the bidder’s list. 
  (2) Companies do not handle the product specified. 
  (1) Company’s schedule does not permit performance of the specifications. 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Richard Sinclair, Assistant Fire Chief 

morrellca
Text Box
E-04b



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-11
Opening Date -- 3-23-05 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 3
Date Prepared -- 4/19/05 AIR COMPRESSORS

VENDOR NAME: * DOUGLASS WEST SHORE BREATHING AIR
SAFETY SYSTEMS FIRE INC SYSTEMS

LLC
PROPOSAL: Furnish & Install two (2) Air Compressors for the Troy Fire Department- Stations #4 & #5

QTY   DESCRIPTION

1 ea Furnish & Install one Air Compressor
for Station #4 in accordance with the
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 16,900.00$           20,427.00$         20,821.00$         

1 ea Furnish & Install one Air Compressor
for Station #5 in accordance with the
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 16,900.00$           20,427.00$         20,821.00$         

Quoting on Model: HP-6000-NA6-E3 T21OF H13E3-LS
Manufactured By: Hypres Equipment Eagle Air Comp Bauer Comp

GRAND TOTAL: 33,800.00$           40,854.00$          41,642.00$          

INSURANCE:   Can meet XX XX XX
  Cannot Meet

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS

WARRANTY: 2Yr on Pump 1 Year 2 Years

DELIVERY DATE(S) 3 WEEKS 8-10 WEEKS ARO 120-180 DAYS ARO

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK NONE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      
Completed - Y or N YES YES YES

AMENDMENT 1:    Y or N YES YES YES

ATTEST:
 M. Aileen Bittner * DENOTES LOW BIDDER
 Richard Sinclair
 Linda Bockstanz _____________________________

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 05-11 Air Compressors



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-11
Opening Date -- 3-23-05 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 3
Date Prepared -- 4/19/05 AIR COMPRESSORS

VENDOR NAME: AIR TECHNOLOGIES APOLLO FIRE PNEU-MATIC
APPARATUS ENGINEERING INC
REPAIR INC

PROPOSAL: Furnish & Install two (2) Air Compressors for the Troy Fire Department- Stations #4 & #5

QTY   DESCRIPTION

1 ea Furnish & Install one Air Compressor
for Station #4 in accordance with the
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 20,882.00$         21,720.00$         22,675.00$         

1 ea Furnish & Install one Air Compressor
for Station #5 in accordance with the
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 20,882.00$         21,720.00$         22,675.00$         

Quoting on Model: S3-6K13E3-OV H13E3-LS W4-7-408-FPGM
Manufactured By: Bauer Bauer Alkin

GRAND TOTAL: 41,764.00$          43,440.00$          45,350.00$          

INSURANCE:   Can meet XX XX XX
  Cannot Meet

TERMS: NET 10 NET 30 NET 30 DAYS

WARRANTY: 1 Year 1 Year 1 Year

DELIVERY DATE(S) 5-6 Months ARO FOB Destination Included - 6/1/2005

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK NONE BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      
Completed - Y or N YES YES YES

AMENDMENT 1:    Y or N NO NO NO

NO BIDS:
 Argus Supply
 Burke Equipment Co
 Cannon Equipment
 Central Air Compressor
 Detroit Air Compressor
 Engineered Comfort Systems

G:ITB-COT 05-11 Air Compressors



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-11
Opening Date -- 3-23-05 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 3
Date Prepared -- 4/19/05 AIR COMPRESSORS

VENDOR NAME: PRESSURE
VESSEL TESTING

PROPOSAL: Furnish & Install two (2) Air Compressors for the Troy Fire Department- Stations #4 & #5

QTY   DESCRIPTION

1 ea Furnish & Install one Air Compressor
for Station #4 in accordance with the
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 25,699.00$         

1 ea Furnish & Install one Air Compressor
for Station #5 in accordance with the
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 25,699.00$         

Quoting on Model: Bauer 13 cfm
Manufactured By: Bauer

GRAND TOTAL: 51,398.00$          

INSURANCE:   Can meet XX
  Cannot Meet

TERMS: NET 30

WARRANTY: 1 Yr Parts / 6months Labor

DELIVERY DATE(S) 30-60 Days

EXCEPTIONS: N/A

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      
Completed - Y or N YES

AMENDMENT 1:    Y or N NO

G:ITB-COT 05-11 Air Compressors













morrellca
Text Box
E-04c













































April 20, 2005  
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director  
  Carol K. Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – 

Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications - Turfgrass Chemical 
Products 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Bid proposals were opened March 23, 2005, for the 2005 seasonal supply of 
turfgrass protection products, to be used by Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Courses and the Parks Maintenance Division.  City management 
recommends purchases be made from the following low bidders meeting 
specifications for an estimated total cost of $156,785.00. 
   
Tri-Turf, 24016 Haggerty, Farmington Hills, Michigan 48335, 248-640-4439 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated 
Quantity 

Unit Price Estimated 
Total Cost 

1. Chipco 26GT Flowable 
or Approved Alt. 
Iprodione Pro 2SE 

180 gallons- 36 
cases $89.80 $16,164.00

2. Daconil Weather Stik or 
Concorde SST or 
Approved Alt. Echo 
720 

180 gallons – 36 
cases $48.40 $8,712.00

5. Revolution Wetting 
Agent 

90 gallons – 3-30 
gallon drums $69.50 $6,255.00

6. Insignia (Alternate) 48 lbs.- 2 cases $125.00 $6,000.00
16. Nature Safe (Alternate) 2000 lbs – 40 

bags 0.499 $998.00

20. Mefanoxam AQ 
(Alternate) 

20 gallons – 2 link 
paks $425.00 $8,500.00

22. Propiconazole 
(Alternate) 

90 gallons – 9 
Link paks $230.00 $20,700.00

29. Echo Ultimate 
(Alternate) 

60 lbs – 3 cases $7.15 $429.00

30. Echo ZN (Alternate) 25 gallons – 5 
cases $37.40 $935.00

33. Curalan EG 165 lbs – 15 
cases $21.75 $3,588.75

  ESTIMATED TOTAL: $72,281.75
 

1 of 4 

morrellca
Text Box
E-04d



April 20, 2005 
To:  John Szerlag 
Re:  Bid Award- Turf Chemical Products for 2005 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Verdicon/UHS, 15515 Knobhill Dr. Linden, Michigan 48451, 586-839-8930 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Unit Price Estimated
 Total Cost 

3. Banol 20 gallons – 10 
cases $312.00 $6,240.00

4. Dispatch Soil Penetrant 
Wetting Agent 

330 gallons – 6- 55 
gallon drums $12.77 $4,214.10

7. Merit 75 WSP 102.4 oz – 4 cases  $16.80 $1,720.32
19. Kelly’s High Calcium 

Lime Greensgrade 
2,800 bags  $5.50 $15,400.00

21. Primo Maxx – Link Pak 10 gallons – 1 link 
pak $364.00 $3,640.00

37. Cleary’s 3336 144 lbs – 12 cases  $17.98 $2,589.12
  ESTIMATED TOTAL: $33,803.54
 
Great Lakes Turf, LLC., 6600 Clay Ave. SW, Grand Rapids, Michigan 49548, 
616-656-9839 
 
Item 
No. 

Product Description Estimated Quantity Unit 
Price 

Estimated 
Total Cost 

8. Astron 50 gallons – 10cases $76.00 $3,800.00
9. Knife  50 gallons – 10cases $36.00 $1,800.00
10. Renaissance 50 gallons – 10cases $37.00 $1,850.00
11. Perk-up 15 gallons – 3 cases $76.00 $1,140.00
12. 4-4-16 Tiger Turf 

Soluble Fertilizer  
15 gallons – 3 cases $17.60 $264.00

13. 20-0-4 Carbon Power 
Soluble Fertilizer 

225 gallons – 45 
cases $15.20 $3,420.00

15. Protesyn 75 gallons – 15cases $39.00 $2,925.00
18. White Gold 0-0-24 Reg 

Grade 
5,000 lbs – 100 bags $0.54 $2,700.00

24. Gro-Power 45 % Mag. 40 Bags $.68 $1,360.00
34. PK Fight 3-22-28 90 gallons – 18cases $37.60 $3,384.00
35. White Gold 0-0-24 

Greens Grade 
30 – 50 lb bags $0.74 $1,110.00

36. Gro-Power 10-2-5 
Fertilizer 

40- 50 lb bags $0.61 $1,220.00

  ESTIMATED TOTAL: $24,973.00
 
 
 



April 20, 2005 
To:  John Szerlag 
Re:  Bid Award- Turf Chemical Products for 2005 
Page 3 of 4 
 
Turfgrass Inc., P.O. Box 663, South Lyon, Michigan 48178, 800-521-8873 
 
Item 
No.  

Product Description Estimated Quantity Unit 
Price 

Estimated 
Total Cost 

14. Calphlex 150 gallons–30cases 29.00 $4,350.00
17. K-Power 13-0-46 120 

SGN 
25,000 lbs – 500 
bags $0.35 $8,750.00

23. MKP 40 – 50 lb bags $0.62 $1,240.00
25. Grigg Brothers Nutra 

Green 
40 gallons – 8 cases $30.00 $1,200.00

26. Anderson’s Tee Time 
Contec 9-18-18 

80 50 lb bags $0.70 $2,800.00

27. GreenSpec 7-7-7 Fe7 
Organic Fert 

40 – 50lb bags  $0.46 $920.00

28. K-mag 35 – 55 lb bags $0.25 $481.25
31. Milorganite 6-2-0 Greens 

Grade 
160- 50 lb bags $0.12 $960.00

32. Anderson’s 18-9-18 
Contec OG Pro 

150- 50 lb bags $0.67 $5,025.00

  ESTIMATED TOTAL: $25,726.25
 
EXPLANATION OF BIDS NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
Turf Grass, Inc. bid an alternate for item #5.  The product bid does not conform to 
the new class of block copolymer chemistry needed on sand based greens.   
 
Lesco Inc. bid alternate soluble (sprayable) fertilizers on Items #12,13, and 25, 
and Tri-Turf Inc on Item #34.  These products do not contain micronutrients 
equally essential for quality plant growth.   
 
Tri-Turf Inc. bid alternates on Items #26 and 32, and Lesco, Inc. on Item #26.  
These products contain nutrient sources that are detrimental to the conditions we 
currently have on both golf courses (irrigation water high in soluble salts, 
bicarbonates, and chlorides). 
 
Lesco Inc. bid alternates on Items #19, and 28, and Verdicon/UHS on Item# 17.  
Products did not meet particle size specifications, which must conform to a 
greens grade (small granule material).  These alternate products are agricultural 
grade particle size (much larger).  
 
J.Mollema & Son was the low bidder for Item #28, K-Mag at $10.95/bag for a 
total of $383.25 for 35 bags.  J Mollema requires a $400.00 minimum order 
shipment, which cannot be met, as K-Mag is ordered throughout the season as 
needed. 



April 20, 2005 
To:  John Szerlag 
Re:  Bid Award- Turf Chemical Products for 2005 
Page 4 of 4 
 
SUMMARY 
All items recommended represent the lowest acceptable bid meeting 
specifications.  Estimated quantities of chemicals shall be purchased at quoted 
unit prices, and ordered in unit lots on an as needed basis.   
 
Vendors quoting the same price per unit cost were awarded the bid item based 
upon payment terms, and best delivery time after a verbal phone release.   
 
The chemicals will be used by the Parks Maintenance Division and the Sylvan 
Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses to maintain turfgrass.  The estimated 
totals for each item are based upon our anticipated use for the upcoming season.  
We make every effort to minimize the amount of product we carry from one 
season to the next, and only purchase quantities needed.   
 
BUDGET 
Funds for those purchases are available from the Golf Courses and Parks 
Division Seed/Planting Supplies Operating Budgets. 
 
57 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
 6 Bid Responses Rec’d  
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Danny T. McDonald, Superintendent of Greens 



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 05-09
Opening Date -- 3/23/05 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 9
Date Prepared - 4/20/05 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: VERDICON

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 180 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or 2 X 2.5 GALS

(36 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE 89.80$             449.00$             96.00$              

2. 180 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS

(36 CASES) or ECHO 720 5 GALS/CASE 48.40$             242.00$             67.12$              

3. 20 GALS BANOL 2 X 1 GAL

(10 CASES) 2 GALS/CASE 349.00$           312.00$            624.00$           

4. 330 GALS DISPATCH SOIL PENETRANT 55 GALS

(6 DRUMS) WETTING AGENT PER DRUM 15.45$             12.77$              702.35$           

5. 90 GALS REVOLUTION WETTING 30 GALS

(3 DRUMS) AGENT PER DRUM 69.50$             2,085.00$          85.00$              

6. 48 LBS HERITAGE W.G. 4 X 6 LBS

(2 CASES) BULK PACK 24 LBS/CASE 125.00$           3,000.00$          341.75$            

7. 102.4 OZ MERIT 75 W.S.P. 4 X 4 X 1.6 OZ.

(4 CASES) 25.6 OZ./CASE 18.55$             16.80$              430.08$           

8. 50 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

9. 50 GALS. KNIFE 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES)  5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

10. 50 GALS RENAISSANCE 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

11. 15 GALS PERK UP 2 X 2.5 GALS

(3 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

12. 15 GALS 4-4-16 TIGER TURF 2 X 2.5 GALS

(3 CASES) SOLUBLE FERTILIZER 5 GALS./CASE N/B N/B

13. 225 GALS 20-0-4 CARBON POWER 2 X 2.5 GALS

(45 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

14. 150 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

15. 75 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

16. 2000 LBS SOIL SYNERGY 12-3-8
(40 BAGS) GREENS GRADE 50 LBS/BAG 0.499$             24.95$               N/B

TRI-TURF

Sub Insignia

Sub Nature Safe



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 05-09
Opening Date -- 3/23/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 9
Date Prepared -- 4/20/05 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: VERDICON/UHS

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
17. 25,000 LBS K-POWER 13-0-46

(500 BAGS) 120 SGN 50 LBS/BAG N/B 0.315$              DMS

18. 5,000 LBS WHITE GOLD 0-0-24
(100 BAGS) REG-GRADE 50 LBS/BAG N/B N/B

19. KELLY'S HIGH
(2800 BAGS) CALCIUM LIME GREENS GRADE 50 LBS/BAG N/B 0.11$                5.50$               

20. 20 GALS SUBDUE MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(2 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK 425.00$           4,250.00$          526.00$            

21. 10 GALS PRIMO MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(1 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK N/B 364.00$            3,640.00$        

22. 90 GALS BANNER MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(9 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK 230.00$           2,300.00$          283.25$            

23. 40 Bags MKP 50 LBS/BAG N/B 1.00$                

24. 40 Bags GRO-POWER - 45% Mag. 50 LBS/BAG N/B N/B

25. 40 GALS GRIGG BROTHERS 2 X 2.5 GALS

(8 CASES) NUTRA GREEN 5 GALS/CASE N/B N/B

26. 80 Bags ANDERSON'S TEE TIME 50 LBS/BAG

CONTEC 9-18-18 0.387$             DMS N/B

27. 40 Bags GREENSPEC 50 LBS/BAG

7-7-7 FE7 ORGANIC N/B N/B

28. 35 Bags K-MAG 55 LBS/BAG N/B N/B

29. 60 LBS DACONIL ULTRE 20 LBS/CASE

(3 Cases) 7.15$               143.00$             9.62$                

30. 25 GALS DACONIL ZN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 37.40$             187.00$             48.10$              

31. 160 Bags MILORGANITE 50 LBS/BAG

6-2-0 GREENS GRADE 0.15$               0.18$                

32. 150 Bags ANDERSON'S 18-9-18 50 LBS/BAG

CONTEC OG PRO 0.555$             DMS N/B

33. 165 LBS CURALAN EG 4 X 2.75 lb

(15 Cases) 11 lbs/CASE 21.75$             239.25$             23.50$              

Sub Echo Ultimate

Sub Echo ZN

Sub Lebanon 18-3-18

TRI-TURF

Sub Mefanoxam AQ

Sub Propiconazole

Sub Lebanon 10-18-18



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 05-09
Opening Date -- 3/23/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 9
Date Prepared -- 4/20/05 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: VERDICON/UHS

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
34. 90 GALS PK FIGHT 3-22-28 2 X 2.5 Gals

(18 Cases) 5 Gal/Case 36.00$             DMS N/B

35. 30 Bags WHITE GOLD GREENS 50 LBS/BAG

GRADE  0-0-24 N/B N/B

36. 40 Bags GRO-POWER 50 LBS/BAG

10-2-5 N/B N/B

37. 144 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 X 2 lbs/Case

(12 CASES) 12 lbs/Case 30.00$             17.98$              215.76$           

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: No Minimum ZERO
1-2 Days ONE DAY

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper: 8-4:30 8-5 W    7:30-5  S
    Phone # (248)640-4439 (586)839-8930

TERMS 2% 10 Net 30 N60, on Agency Products

WARRANTY Manufacturer Per

EXCEPTIONS Substitutions Attached Chipco 26019 Bid for
To Bid Iprodione Pro

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N YES YES

PROPOSAL - Seasonal Requirements of Turfgrass Chemicals
ATTEST:
 M. Aileen Bittner
 Kevin Grubb
 Danny McDonald
 Linda Bockstanz

G:ITB-COT 05-09 Chemicals-Golf Courses

Sub Quali-Pro TM 85 WDG

Sub Phyto-Fos 0-22-18

72,281.75$                      33,803.54$                     

TRI-TURF



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 05-09
Opening Date -- 3/23/05 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 9
Date Prepared - 4/20/05 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: TURFGRASS INC

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 180 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or 2 X 2.5 GALS

(36 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE N/B 97.60$            

2. 180 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS

(36 CASES) or ECHO 720 5 GALS/CASE 52.00$            69.30$            

3. 20 GALS BANOL 2 X 1 GAL

(10 CASES) 2 GALS/CASE N/B 327.00$          

4. 330 GALS DISPATCH SOIL PENETRANT 55 GALS

(6 DRUMS) WETTING AGENT PER DRUM 18.11$            15.00$            DMS

5. 90 GALS REVOLUTION WETTING 30 GALS

(3 DRUMS) AGENT PER DRUM 85.00$            15.00$            

6. 48 LBS HERITAGE W.G. 4 X 6 LBS

(2 CASES) BULK PACK 24 LBS/CASE N/B 341.74$          

7. 102.4 OZ MERIT 75 W.S.P. 4 X 4 X 1.6 OZ.

(4 CASES) 25.6 OZ./CASE N/B 17.16$            

8. 50 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 76.00$            380.00$            N/B

9. 50 GALS. KNIFE 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES)  5 GALS/CASE 36.00$            180.00$            N/B

10. 50 GALS RENAISSANCE 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 37.00$            185.00$            N/B

11. 15 GALS PERK UP 2 X 2.5 GALS

(3 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 76.00$            380.00$            N/B

12. 15 GALS 4-4-16 TIGER TURF 2 X 2.5 GALS

(3 CASES) SOLUBLE FERTILIZER 5 GALS./CASE 17.60$            88.00$              N/B

13. 225 GALS 20-0-4 CARBON POWER 2 X 2.5 GALS

(45 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 15.20$            76.00$              N/B

14. 150 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 35.00$            29.00$            145.00$       

15. 75 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 39.00$            195.00$            
16. 2000 LBS SOIL SYNERGY 12-3-8

(40 BAGS) GREENS GRADE 50 LBS/BAG 0.54$              

GREAT LAKES TURF LLC



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 05-09
Opening Date -- 3/23/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 5 of 9
Date Prepared -- 4/20/05 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: TURFGRASS INC

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
17. 25,000 LBS K-POWER 13-0-46

(500 BAGS) 120 SGN 50 LBS/BAG N/B 0.35$              17.50$         

18. 5,000 LBS WHITE GOLD 0-0-24
(100 BAGS) REG-GRADE 50 LBS/BAG 0.54$              27.00$              N/B

19. KELLY'S HIGH
(2800 BAGS) CALCIUM LIME GREENS GRADE 50 LBS/BAG N/B N/B

20. 20 GALS SUBDUE MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(2 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK 450.00$          526.00$          

21. 10 GALS PRIMO MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(1 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK N/B 364.00$          

22. 90 GALS BANNER MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(9 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK 260.00$          283.25$          

23. 40 Bags MKP 50 LBS/BAG 0.80$              0.62$              31.00$         

24. 40 Bags GRO-POWER - 45% Mag. 50 LBS/BAG 0.68$              $34.00

25. 40 GALS GRIGG BROTHERS 2 X 2.5 GALS

(8 CASES) NUTRA GREEN 5 GALS/CASE N/B 30.00$            150.00$       

26. 80 Bags ANDERSON'S TEE TIME 50 LBS/BAG

CONTEC 9-18-18 N/B 0.70$              35.00$         

27. 40 Bags GREENSPEC 50 LBS/BAG

7-7-7 FE7 ORGANIC N/B 0.46$              23.00$         

28. 35 Bags K-MAG 55 LBS/BAG N/B 0.25$              13.75$         

29. 60 LBS DACONIL ULTRE
(3 Cases) 20 LBS/CASE 8.00$              9.62$              

30. 25 GALS DACONIL ZN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE N/B 48.10$            

31. 160 Bags MILORGANITE 50 LBS/BAG

6-2-0 GREENS GRADE N/B 0.12$              6.00$          

32. 150 Bags ANDERSON'S 18-9-18 50 LBS/BAG

CONTEC OG PRO N/B 0.67$              33.50$         
33. 165 LBS CURALAN EG 4 X 2.75 lb

(15 Cases) 11 lbs/CASE N/B 21.90$            

GREAT LAKES TURF LLC

Sub Mefenoxam (2x1gal cs)

Sub Tenacity (4x1 gal cs)



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 05-09
Opening Date -- 3/23/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 6 of 9
Date Prepared -- 4/20/05 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: TURFGRASS INC

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
34. 90 GALS PK FIGHT 3-22-28 2 X 2.5 Gals

(18 Cases) 5 Gal/Case 37.60$            188.00$            N/B

35. 30 Bags WHITE GOLD GREENS 50 LBS/BAG

GRADE  0-0-24 0.74$              37.00$              N/B

36. 40 Bags GRO-POWER 50 LBS/BAG

10-2-5 0.61$              30.50$              N/B

37. 144 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 X 2 lbs/Case

(12 CASES) 12 lbs/Case 145/GAL 18.74$            

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: 1 TON / 1 DRUM / 1 CASE No Minimum
2 DAYS AFTER PHONE RELEASE Same - 2 Days

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper: 7-5PM 8-5pm
    Phone # (616)292-0259 (248)437-1427

TERMS Net 30 Net 30

WARRANTY Per Manufacturer Label As Stated by Mfg

EXCEPTIONS Substitutions Attached Substitutions Attached
To Bid To Bid

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N YES YES

____________________________
Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 05-09 Chemicals-Golf Courses

24,973.00$                       25,726.25$                   

GREAT LAKES TURF LLC

Sub TeeOff (2x2.5 gal cs)



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 05-09
Opening Date -- 3/23/05 BID TABULATION Pg 7 of 9
Date Prepared - 4/20/05 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: J MOLLEMA & SON

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 180 GALS CHIPCO 26 GT FLOWABLE or 2 X 2.5 GALS

(36 CASES)  IPRODIONE PRO 2 SE 5 GALS/CASE 98.00$            126.38$          

2. 180 GALS DACONIL WEATHERSTIK 2 X 2.5 GALS

(36 CASES) or ECHO 720 5 GALS/CASE 67.12$            62.88$            

3. 20 GALS BANOL 2 X 1 GAL

(10 CASES) 2 GALS/CASE 335.90$          NO BID

4. 330 GALS DISPATCH SOIL PENETRANT 55 GALS

(6 DRUMS) WETTING AGENT PER DRUM NO BID 21.73$            

5. 90 GALS REVOLUTION WETTING 30 GALS

(3 DRUMS) AGENT PER DRUM NO BID 91.00$            

6. 48 LBS HERITAGE W.G. 4 X 6 LBS

(2 CASES) BULK PACK 24 LBS/CASE 341.75$          NO BID

7. 102.4 OZ MERIT 75 W.S.P. 4 X 4 X 1.6 OZ.

(4 CASES) 25.6 OZ./CASE 17.21$            23.11$            

8. 50 GALS ASTRON 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE NO BID NO BID

9. 50 GALS. KNIFE 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES)  5 GALS/CASE NO BID NO BID

10. 50 GALS RENAISSANCE 2 X 2.5 GALS

(10 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE NO BID NO BID

11. 15 GALS PERK UP 2 X 2.5 GALS

(3 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE NO BID NO BID

12. 15 GALS 4-4-16 TIGER TURF 2 X 2.5 GALS

(3 CASES) SOLUBLE FERTILIZER 5 GALS./CASE 11.68$            DMS NO BID

13. 225 GALS 20-0-4 CARBON POWER 2 X 2.5 GALS

(45 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE 9.68$              DMS NO BID

14. 150 GALS CALPHLEX 2 X 2.5 GALS

(30 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE NO BID NO BID

15. 75 GALS PROTESYN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(15 CASES) 5 GALS/CASE NO BID NO BID
16. 2000 LBS SOIL SYNERGY 12-3-8

(40 BAGS) GREENS GRADE 50 LBS/BAG NO BID NO BID

LESCO INC



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 05-09
Opening Date -- 3/23/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 8 of 9
Date Prepared -- 4/20/05 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: J MOLLEMA & SON

 EST PKG UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
17. 25,000 LBS K-POWER 13-0-46

(500 BAGS) 120 SGN 50 LBS/BAG NO BID NO BID

18. 5,000 LBS WHITE GOLD 0-0-24
(100 BAGS) REG-GRADE 50 LBS/BAG NO BID NO BID

19. KELLY'S HIGH
(2800 BAGS) CALCIUM LIME GREENS GRADE 50 LBS/BAG 0.103$            DMS NO BID

20. 20 GALS SUBDUE MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(2 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK 526.00$          NO BID

21. 10 GALS PRIMO MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(1 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK 364.00$          NO BID

22. 90 GALS BANNER MAXX 1 X 10 GALS

(9 PAK) LINK PAK 10 GALS/PAK 283.25$          NO BID
25# BAG

23. 40 Bags MKP 50 LBS/BAG NO BID 1.41$              

24. 40 Bags GRO-POWER - 45% Mag. 50 LBS/BAG NO BID NO BID

25. 40 GALS GRIGG BROTHERS 2 X 2.5 GALS

(8 CASES) NUTRA GREEN 5 GALS/CASE 8.46$              DMS NO BID

26. 80 Bags ANDERSON'S TEE TIME 50 LBS/BAG

CONTEC 9-18-18 0.172$            DMS NO BID

27. 40 Bags GREENSPEC 50 LBS/BAG

7-7-7 FE7 ORGANIC NO BID NO BID
50# bag

28. 35 Bags K-MAG 55 LBS/BAG 0.199$            DMS 0.22$              DMS

29. 60 LBS DACONIL ULTRE
(3 Cases) 20 LBS/CASE 9.62$              NO BID

30. 25 GALS DACONIL ZN 2 X 2.5 GALS

(5 Cases) 5 GALS/CASE 46.76$            NO BID

31. 160 Bags MILORGANITE 50 LBS/BAG

6-2-0 GREENS GRADE 0.366$            0.139$            

32. 150 Bags ANDERSON'S 18-9-18 50 LBS/BAG

CONTEC OG PRO NO BID NO BID
33. 165 LBS CURALAN EG 4 X 2.75 lb

(15 Cases) 11 lbs/CASE 24.13$            32.47$            

LESCO INC



CITY OF TROY               ITB-COT 05-09
Opening Date -- 3/23/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 9 of 9
Date Prepared -- 4/20/05 CHEMICALS - GOLF COURSES

VENDOR NAME: J MOLLEMA & SON

 EST UNIT CASE UNIT CASE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE
34. 90 GALS PK FIGHT 3-22-28 2 X 2.5 Gals

(18 Cases) 5 Gal/Case NO BID NO BID

35. 30 Bags WHITE GOLD GREENS 50 LBS/BAG

GRADE  0-0-24 NO BID NO BID

36. 40 Bags GRO-POWER 50 LBS/BAG

10-2-5 NO BID NO BID

37. 144 LBS CLEARY's 3336 6 X 2 lbs/Case

(12 CASES) 12 lbs/Case NO BID 27.87$            

ESTIMATED TOTAL OF AWARDED ITEMS --

MINIMUM SHIPMENT: NONE $400.00
7-10 DAYS 1-6 DAYS

CONTACT INFORMATION:  Hrs of Oper: 8-5pm 7:30-4:30
    Phone # (800)321-5325 (800)234-4769

TERMS NET 30 NET 30

WARRANTY N/A BLANK

EXCEPTIONS SUBSTITUTIONS ATTACHED UOM CHANGES
TO BID

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:     Y or N YES YES

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS

G:ITB-COT 05-09 Chemicals-Golf Courses

0 0

LESCO INC







 
 
 
 
April 22, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate  Development Director 
   
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement 

for Storm Sewer and Watermain – Michael Agnetti –  
 Northeast Corner of Wattles Road & Northfield Parkway 

Sidwell #88-20-17-454-016 & -017 
 
 
In connection with the development of property located in the southeast quarter 
of Section 17, at the northeast corner of Wattles Road and Northfield Parkway, 
the Real Estate and Development Department has acquired a storm sewer and 
watermain easement from the property owner, Michael Agnetti.  The 
consideration on this document is $1.00 
  
Management recommends that City Council accept the attached easement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 
 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-05











 
 
 
 
April 22, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate  Development Director 
   
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Request for Acceptance of Three Permanent 

Easements for Public Utilities and a Warranty Deed for Street 
Right-of-Way 

 Birchwood Estates Site Condo, Sidwell #88-20-24-226-026, 027, 
047, 046, & 045 

 
 
In connection with the development of Birchwood Estates Site Condos, in the 
northeast ¼ of Section 24, the Real Estate and Development Department has 
acquired three permanent easement for public utilities and a warranty deed for 
street right-of-way from the property owner, Elro Corporation.  The consideration 
on each document is $1.00 
  
Management recommends that City Council accept the attached documents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-06



 

Birchwood Estates 
Site Condos 

 
 
 
 
 



















 
 
April 22, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
   
RE: Agenda Item - Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for 

Sanitary Sewer – Dequindre Sewer Project No. 02.406.5 – 
Jaroslaw N. and Irene W. Mikulak, Sidwell #88-20-13-429-021 
 

In connection with the installation of a sewer to the property at 39917 Dequindre, 
located in Section 13, south of Hill Street, the Real Estate and Development 
Department received an easement for sanitary sewer from Jaroslaw N. and Irene 
W. Mikulak, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-13-429-021. 
 
Management recommends that City Council accept the attached permanent 
easement for sanitary sewer.  Consideration for this easement is $1.00. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-07



 
Sanitary Sewer Easement 
Sidwell #88-20-13-429-021 

 

 

Sidwell #88-20-13-429-021 
39917 Dequindre 
Jaroslaw & Irene Mikulak







 
 
April 22, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: Agenda Item – Request for Acceptance of a Regrading and 

Temporary Construction Permit for the Troy Court Water Main 
Project #01.502.5 – Section 34 

 
 
In connection with the Troy Court Water Main improvement project affecting 
properties located on Elmwood Street and Troy Court in Section 34, the Real 
Estate and Development Department has received a Regrading and Temporary 
Construction Permit from Elerious and Priscilla King, property owners of Sidwell 
#88-20-34-152-017.  Staff has reviewed property values in the area and believes 
that a compensation amount of $500.00 is justifiable 
 
In order for the Water Department to proceed with the Troy Court water main 
improvement project, we recommend that City Council accept the attached 
temporary permit and authorize the payment of the agreed amount. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 

morrellca
Text Box
E-08



 
TROY COURT WATER MAIN 
Sidwell #88-20-34-152-017 

 
 

 

Subject Property 









April 22, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
  
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
   
RE: Agenda Item - Request for Acceptance of Conditioned Purchase 

Offer for Maple Road/Coolidge to Crooks Watermain and Sidewalk 
Project #01.501.5 – General Development Company No. 5, L.L.C., 
1765 West Maple, Sidwell #88-20-32-226-028 

 
 
As part of the Maple Road/Coolidge to Crooks Watermain and Sidewalk Project, 
an agreement has been reached with General Development Company No 5., 
L.L.C. to purchase 27 feet of right of way at 1765 West Maple.  This property is 
located in Section 32 on the south side of Maple just west of Crooks. 
 
Based on an appraisal prepared by Thomas H. Chuba and Kenneth A. Blondell 
of Integra Realty Resources, and a review prepared by Kimberly Harper, Deputy 
City Assessor, management believes that the appraised value of $56,000.00 is 
justifiable.  The property is zoned M-1 and the compensation is for both 27 feet of 
real property and land improvements. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with this project, management requests that City 
Council approve the attached conditioned purchase agreement in the amount of 
$56,000.00, plus closing costs.  Funding for this project will come from the 
Watermain Fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-09



 
Proposed ROW Acquisition 

1765 West Maple 
Sidwell #88-20-32-226-028 

General Development Company No. 5, L.L.C. 
 
 

 

Proposed acquisition of 27’ of ROW  
1765 West Maple, Sidwell #88-20-32-226-028 

 
 
 
 
 
 







April 22, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: Agenda Item – Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase 

Agreements for Right-of-Way: Sidewalk Gap Project, Sidwell #88-
20-01-476-088 & 087 

 
 
As part of the ongoing Sidewalk Gap Completion Project, an agreement has 
been reached with Sharon Manning, owners of the property located at 2651 East 
Square Lake Road (88-20-01-476-088) and the adjacent parcel to the west (20-
01-476-087), to purchase 27 feet of right-of-way.  The property is located in 
Section 1, on the north side of Square Lake just east of Evanswood. 
 
Based on an appraisal prepared by Andrew Reed & Associates, Inc., State 
Certified General Appraisers, and reviewed by Kimberly Harper, Assistant City 
Assessor, management believes that $21,760.00 for the improved parcel and 
$12,840 for the adjacent parcel, is justifiable for the 27 feet. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this right-of-way, 
management requests that City Council approve the attached Conditioned 
Purchase Agreements in the combined amount of $34,600. 
 
The right-of-way is being acquired under the Sidewalk New Construction budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 

morrellca
Text Box
E-10



 
 

SQUARE LAKE SIDEWALK – NORTH SIDE 
SECTION – JOHN R TO DEQUINDRE 

 
 

 

27’ ROW Acquisition 
* 2651 E. Square Lake Road 
   Sidwell #88-20-01-476-088 
           and  
* Adjacent parcel                       
Sidwell #88-20-476-087 

 



















April 22, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
   
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – REQUESTED PARTIAL RELEASE of Retained 

Public Utility Easement at 94 Hickory - Sidwell #88-20-27-156-029 
– Daniel Bousho, owner 

 
On July 11, 1994, City Council vacated platted, but unopened, 50-foot wide 
Mastin Street right of way between Hickory and Cherry Streets in the Greenough 
Heights Subdivision.  An easement for public utilities and storm drainage/sewer 
was retained over the entire 50-foot width. 
 
Daniel Bousho, the owner of the abutting Lot 66, addressed as 94 Hickory Street, 
has requested that the city release the west 10-feet of the retained easement to 
allow enough unencumbered land to build a garage on. 
 
City staff has investigated, and determined that there is a water main running 
down the middle of the 50-foot wide easement area.  In the event that work on 
this water main should be needed, a 50-foot wide easement would not be 
required.  A normal requested water main easement width would be 20-feet. No 
other utilities are located in the easement area. 
 
The Public Works and Engineering Departments have indicated that releasing 
the west 10-feet of the easement area abutting Lot 66 would not pose any 
problems now or in the future for the city. 
 
City staff would recommend that City Council release all of the retained 
easements over the west 10-feet of the vacated 50-foot wide Mastin Street 
abutting Lot 66 of Greenough Heights Subdivision. 
 
 
Cc:  Tim Richnak, Public Works Director 
        Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
 
 
 
Prepared by Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 
 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-11



 

Remaining 40’ wide easement 

Location of 8” water main 

10’ area to be released 

 
 
 



 

Subject

 
 
 
 



G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-680 Choice Cluster\Z 680 Choice Cluster appl withdrawl memo.doc 

Date:  April 26, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: AGENDA ITEM – PROPOSED REZONING (Z-680) – Proposed Choice 

Cluster Development, East side of Finch, South of Wattles, Section 21 – 
R-1B to CR-1 

 
 
At the July 8, 2002 City Council Meeting the proposed rezoning (Z-680) – Proposed 
Choice Cluster Development was postponed until the Planning Commission adopted 
appropriate ordinance language.   
 
On March 30, 2005 the Planning Department received a request by the Choice Group to 
withdraw their application (Z-680) at this time.  They indicated that the recently adopted 
Open Space Development Option made the request for rezoning to CR-1 unnecessary. 
 
 
 
Enclosures 
 
Attachments: 

1. Choice Letter dated March 29, 2005 
2. City Council Resolution #2002-07-386 

 
 
 
cc: Petitioner  
 File/Z-680 
 
Prepared by PPB 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-12







 
 

April 28, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

Gary Mayer, Police Captain 
Thomas Gordon, Police Sergeant 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor License - 
 Delaware California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. (Somerset North) 
  
 
 
DELAWARE CALIFORNIA PIZZA KITCHEN, INC. (A DELAWARE CORPORATION), requests 
to transfer ownership thru merger of a 2004 12 months Resort Class C licensed business (MCL 
436.1531(4); non-transferable) with official permit (food), located at Somerset Collection North, 
2800 W. Big Beaver, Space N 126, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from California Pizza 
Kitchen, Inc. (A California Corporation).     
 
This request is a “paper transfer”.  The current licensee, California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. (A 
California Corporation), is being merged into Delaware California Pizza Kitchen, Inc.  Both 
companies have the exact same ownership.  The newly formed Delaware entity will bear the 
same corporate name as the current licensee, however it will now be a Delaware corporation 
authorized to do business in Michigan, rather than a California corporation.  This type of 
corporate restructuring is referred to as a “reincorporation merger”, and is being done for a 
number of internal business reasons. 
 
The Liquor Advisory Committee heard this request at their April 11 meeting, and approved the 
requests.  The police department has no objection to this request.  
 
 
 
 
TJG/tjg 

morrellca
Text Box
E-13



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        April 11, 2005 
 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, April 11, 
2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman 
Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of March 14, 2005 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2005-04-010 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the March 14, 2005 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     MORTON’S OF CHICAGO/TROY, LLC (A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY), requests to transfer ownership of a 2004 Class C licensed business 
with official permit (food), located in escrow at 25938 Middlebelt, Farmington 
Hills, MI 48336, Oakland County, from Stearn & Company, L.L.C.; transfer 
location (governmental unit), (MCL 436.1531) to 888 W. Big Beaver Rd, Troy, MI 
48084, Oakland County, and requests a new SDM license to be held in 
conjunction.   [MLCC REQ ID# 280550] 

 
A representative of Morton’s of Chicago was not present at the meeting.  This item has 
been tabled. 
 

Page 1 of 3 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        April 11, 2005 
 

 
2.   DELAWARE CALIFORNIA PIZZA KITCHEN, INC. (A DELAWARE 

CORPORATION), requests to transfer ownership thru merger of a 2004 12 
months Resort Class C licensed business (MCL 436.1531(4); non-transferable) 
with official permit (food), located at Somerset Collection North, 2800 W. Big 
Beaver, Space N 126, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from California Pizza 
Kitchen, Inc. (A California Corporation).    [MLCC REQ ID# 274929]   

 
 
A representative of Delaware California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. was not present at the 
meeting.  Sergeant Thomas Gordon presented the issue.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-04-011 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that DELAWARE CALIFORNIA PIZZA KITCHEN, INC. (A DELAWARE 
CORPORATION), be allowed to transfer ownership thru merger of a 2004 12 months 
Resort Class C licensed business (MCL 436.1531(4); non-transferable) with official 
permit (food), located at Somerset Collection North, 2800 W. Big Beaver, Space N 126, 
Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. (A California 
Corporation). 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None    
Absent: None 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Resolution #LC2005-04-012 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that name changes or corporate reorganization license changes be 
allowed without the necessity of applicant or applicant’s counsel to attend the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting. 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None    
Absent: None 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        April 11, 2005 
 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 

Page 3 of 3 



morrellca
Text Box
E-14













May 3, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Proposed Membership Contract between the 

City of Troy and Southeastern Oakland County Resource 
Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) 

 
 
 
Attached please find the proposed membership contract between the City of Troy 
and SOCRRA.  Messrs. Jeff McKeen, SOCRRA General Manager and Robert 
Davis, Legal Counsel, will be giving a brief presentation and can answer 
questions in conjunction with city staff regarding the proposed contract. 
 
The current SOCRRA membership contract expires on June 30, 2007.  The 
proposed contract extends the relationship for ten years, with a ten-year renewal.  
The membership contract also allows for withdrawal provisions in the fifth and 
fifteenth year. 
 
The key component to the proposed membership contract requires that 
SOCRRA seek proposals for services that will result in a ten percent reduction in 
collection and disposal costs for the member communities.  SOCRRA has 
established an RFP review committee, to develop and issue the proposed RFP 
this summer.  Troy has representation on the committee.  The results of the RFP 
should be completed by January 2006. 
 
The RFP is likely structured to allow for, and address, a number of variables, 
including: the scope and makeup of membership, alternative collection vendors, 
and alternative disposal mechanisms.  The alternatives allow for the member 
communities to review and measure what is in the individual community’s best 
interest and the impact of those decisions on the collective.   
 
In accordance with your directive, City staff reviewed three alternatives: issue an 
RFP for the City of Troy only, partner with other communities outside of the 
SOCRRA partnership, and participate in the SOCRRA process.  That review 
found the greatest flexibility and likely savings with the SOCRRA process.  The 
SOCRRA RFP provides the City with the greatest likelihood of options for 
collection and disposal services, while maintaining responsive and responsible 
service to our residents.  If the results of the RFP are not in the City’s best 
interest, and the goals of the membership contract are not met, the City still has 
18 months to review and consider other alternate service delivery mechanisms. 
 
 
BPM/bt\agenda items\2005\05.09.05 - Proposed Contract between the City of Troy and SOCRRA 

morrellca
Text Box
F-02



















May 4, 2005 
 
 

 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Proposal from Mr. Ed Barlow to Facilitate a Futuring and 

Strategic Planning Process for the City of Troy 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 1992/93 Mr. Barlow facilitated a Futuring Process for the City of Troy.  The 
culmination of that process was a document entitled “Troy Futures Community 
Report”.  And many of the objectives contained therein have been accomplished.   
 
CURRENT STATUS 
 
Twelve years is a long time, and Troy has changed from a growing community to a 
mature one.  It is time to revisit our priorities, forge civic partnerships, develop new 
objectives and assign responsibility for accomplishing those objectives.  Of course, 
this responsibility should not rest solely with the City of Troy.  Additionally, in 
creating a preferred vision for our community at this point in time, it is of 
paramount importance for the Troy City Council to partner with all stakeholders in 
finding commonalities to assure Troy remains a City in which one aspires to live 
and work. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
I recommend City Council approve the proposal from Ed Barlow to facilitate a 
futuring and strategic planning process for an amount not to exceed $50,000.  As 
this process can also segue into a revised master plan of land use, and 
comprehensive capital improvement plan, funding can be made available through 
our capital projects fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/bt\agenda items\2005\05.09.05 – Proposal from Mr Ed Barlow to Facilitate a Futuring and Strategic Planning Process for 
the City of Troy 

morrellca
Text Box
F-03



City of Troy
Futuring and Strategic Planning

Process

May 3, 2005
---------------------------

A Proposal To Facilitate

---------------------------

Edward D. Barlow, Jr.
President, Creating the Future, Inc.

2907 Division Street Suite 109
St. Joseph MI 49085
T:  (269) 982-1830
F:  (269) 982-1541

    E-mail:  info@creatingthefuture.com
    Website: www.creatingthefuture.com



Table of Contents
                                                                         Page

I. Introduction           1

II. Background 1

III. Ed Barlow Experience 1

IV. Suggest Process Approach 4

V. Proposed Costs 4

VI. Exhibits 5



I. Introduction

This proposal is submitted for consideration in support of the City of Troy's forthcoming futuring
and strategic planning process.  I wish to express my appreciation for the invitation to submit
this.  I have fond memories of the previous activity and am impressed with the manner in which
the City has used the results.

This proposal may be looked upon as a formative document, and used as the basis for further
discussion to develop the “best” approach to accomplish the futuring and strategic planning
process outcomes.  I look forward to subsequent conversations.

II. Background

It is my understanding that the City Council desires to revisit and update the last process
outcomes and objectives. It is interested in a process similar to one conducted last time in terms
of community involvement and timeframe.   A schedule to begin in June and be completed by
October 2006 with a “community celebration” has been suggested.

The council has expressed interest that the session be “future focused”, in that it will explore
emerging trends that will affect the community.  Facilitated discussions will consider these
trends and develop possible futures and desired states. Process outcomes will be taken by the
City Council and used as a framework for future policy-making and decision-making.

III. Edward Barlow Background and References

A.  Background

I am a futurist by profession.  My mission is to study what is on the roadway ahead, and interpret
that to the clients that have invited me to do so.  My insights and experience have been used in a
variety of settings including, keynotes, think tanks, strategic planning activities and consulting.
Clients have been both domestic and international, and include organizations within the private,
government and non-profit sectors.    Sectors with which I have worked extensively include
travel and tourism, financial services, construction, agriculture, manufacturing, law enforcement
and public safety retail, community and economic development.   A background piece is found
as Item A in the Exhibit Section. A more expansive profile of professional services and activities
can be found by visiting my website which www.creatingthefuture.com.   For purposes of this
proposal a representative sampling of clients has been selected.

1



General Client List

I have served a wide range of organizations representing industry clusters, employer groups,
agencies and professions.  This provides insight as to the macro trends and issues will affect
communities and governmental units. These include:

Federal Reserve Bank System, General Electric, U.S. Department of Commerce,
National Association of Manufacturers, National Restaurant Association Six Sigma

Academy of Europe, American Hospital Association, Bank of America,
Society for Human Resource Managers, Travel Industry Association of American,

U.S. Department of Education, United States Agency for International Development,
National Association of Home Builders, American Farm Bureau Federation,

Whirlpool Corporation, National Association of Counties, Association of General Contractors,
Marriot Corporation, American Association of State Highway Directors,

National Association of Workforce Boards, California Association of Planning Officials,
Federal Bureau of Investigation, and the American Correctional Association

I have also testified before the U.S. Congress on areas of workforce, tourism and transportation.

City Government and Community Related Activities

Since 1990, I have designed and facilitated over 150 strategic planning activities for companies,
associations, and communities.  Sixty-five of these are community visioning and strategic
planning processes, five of which have received awards.  I have also facilitated numerous
strategic planning retreats for city, county and other governmental unit boards and councils.  This
has provided an understanding of policy governance within governmental setting, and issues
related to community engagement.  This client list includes:

City of Lakeland-Florida, City Troy-Michigan, Alamo Region Workforce Initiative-San Antonio,
Texas, Prince Georges County-Maryland, Sonoma County-California,

Dakota County-Minnesota, St. Clair County-Michigan, City of Albert Lea-Minnesota,
City of Hamilton-Ohio, City of Walnut Creek-California, Dodge City-Kansas,

and Sullivan County-Tennessee

I have also been hired to work by several states to assist in integrating their economic and
workforce development efforts.  The most recent states are Colorado, New York, Kentucky and
Oklahoma.  These efforts have included speaking at community summits which have been
entitled “Preparing Our Community for a 21st Century Economy,” and which were attended by
business, education and government leaders.

Michigan Experience

I am from the State of Michigan, living here for all but 14 years, since 1947.  I have worked with
a variety of organizations and communities within the State and in Southeastern Michigan.
Activities have included presentations and strategic planning support.  Organizations with which
I have worked include:

2



Leadership Michigan, Michigan Association of Planning Officials, Michigan Municipal
League, Whirlpool Corporation, Steelcase, Southeastern Michigan Council of

Governments, Michigan Association of Bankers, Michigan Department of Tourism,
Michigan Society of Human Resource Managers, Michigan State Police, Michigan

Supreme Court, Michigan State University College of Nursing, and
Michigan State University College of Law

B.  References

Doug Thomas, City Manager
City of Lakeland - FL
Telephone:  (863) 834-6006
E-mail: DouglasThomas@lakelandgov.net

(Used strategic planning services for city council retreats on two occasions in Lakeland, and for a
community futuring process while a city manager in Michigan)

Pat Stocker, President
Stocker & Associates - MD
Telephone:  (301) 229-6561
E-mail: patstocker@aol.com

(Has contracted Ed for corporate engagements for such organizations as Marriot International,
Lockheed Martin and the United States Agencies for International Development)

Kathryn Taylor, Secretary
Oklahoma Department of Commerce & Tourism - OK
Telephone:  (405) 815-5203
E-mail: kathy_taylor@odoc.state.ok.us

 (Used services for Governor’s conferences on economic development and tourism, as well as
facilitator for special Governor’s Council for Economic and Workforce Development as several
community summits)

Greg Handel
Detroit Regional Chamber - MI
Telephone: 313-596-0331
Ghandel@detroitchamber.com

(Used professional services for recent southeastern Michigan Workforce Summit)

Carlos Garcia, Superintendent
Clark County School District - NV
Telephone: (702) 799-5307
E-mail: cgarcia@interact.ccsd.net

(Used professional services for sessions with community, school board and school
administrators)      3



IV.  Suggested Process Approach

A.  Futuring and Strategic Planning Model

In approaching any type of strategic planning activity, be it a retreat or a longer term process, I
use a five step model.  These steps are…

I. Design - Develop a process which is inclusive and supported by good
data

II. Discover - Collect, analyze, and present trends with possible
implications

III. Dream - Define the desired state and related conditions which will
characterize the community

IV. Determine - Formulate goals, objectives, action strategies, and
responsibilities

V. Deliver - Make it happen!

A schematic of this process is found as Item B within the Exhibit Section.  It also suggests the
related months of process activities.

B. Ed Barlow Activities

I will support the entire process as is represented above and the related exhibit.  It is assumed
that City of Troy staff and volunteers will be involved and provide input and technical assistance
as during the last process.  (Which was exceptional) Specific tasks though which I will work
include:

1. Research
2. Presentation
3. Facilitation
4. Technical Assistance (onsite and via telephone and internet)

V. Proposed Costs

The cost for process support is suggested at this time as not to exceed $50,000.  This includes
professional fees and travel related expenses.  Adjustments may be necessary should the scope of
service needed be modified.  Again, it is suggested that the City staff and community participants
will be actively involved.  The actual contract and related billing and accounting activities will
be can be defined should this proposal be accepted.

4



VI.  Exhibits

A.   Ed Barlow Flyer

B.   Futuring and Strategic Planning Process Map

5



Over  ➫
For more information:  Creating the Future, Inc.     2907 Division Street,  Suite 109     St. Joseph  MI  49085

(269) 982-1830     F: (269) 982-1541      e-mail: info@creatingthefuture.com    web site:  www.creatingthefuture.com

Creating a Competitive Economic and Workforce Advantage
Featuring Ed Barlow

Available For Your State, Region And Community
Keynote or Morning Session

"Preparing Our Community for a
21st Century Economy"

Take a journey through the uncharted territory
of the 21st century.  Explore how structural

changes will affect wealth creation interests of
workers, employers and communities.
Consider ways to better anticipate and

prepare for what is ahead.  Don't miss this
most insightful, thought-provoking, and

entertaining session loaded with ideas and
practical take-a-ways!

Community Forum

The morning session is a community forum
comprised of key business, government,

education and the workforce sector
representatives.  After Ed Barlow’s

presentation, attendees will engage in a
discussion to identify strategic initiatives the

community needs to pursue to prepare
employers, the workforce and itself for the

dynamics of a 21st century economy.

Break-Out or Afternoon Session

"Taking Our Workforce Board &
Organization to the Next Level"

Provides a candid look at the
current status of workforce boards

and organizations.  Offers a
prescription as to the role workforce

boards and organizations should
consider as the next step in their

evolutionary development.
Suggests the invaluable contribution

they can make in a time of
unprecedented change for

employers & workers.

Workforce Board & Organization
Strategic Planning Session

The afternoon session is structured
for board members, staff, and
invited guests.  It includes a

facilitated discussion on the future
role of the local workforce

development system, incorporating
the input from the community forum.

Participants will identify strategic
directions which can be used to

guide future workforce development
system and board activities.

Organizations which have used Ed's services include:

National Conferences:  National Association of Workforce Boards, National Workforce Association, U.S. Department of
Commerce-Economic Development Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, & U.S. Department of Education
State Workforce Conferences:  AK, AL, AR, IN, KY, CA, CO, OH, OK, MN, MI, NE, NY, NC, MD & VA
Local WIBs:  Hudson Valley-NY, Central Texas, Fresno-CA , Lehigh Valley-PA, San Bernardino County-CA, South
Central Tennessee, Honolulu-HI, Tri-County-Yakima-WA, Northwest Piedmont-NC, Northern Virginia, Palm Beach
County-FL, Phoenix-AZ, Butler County-OH, West Central Wisconsin, Will County-IL, Treasure Coast-FL, and more . . .
,

Ed Barlow, President

Popular
Formats

Customized
Formats



For more information:  Creating the Future, Inc.     2907 Division Street,  Suite 109     St. Joseph  MI  49085
(269) 982-1830     F: (269) 982-1541      e-mail: info@creatingthefuture.com    web site:  www.creatingthefuture.com

Ed Barlow
Educational and Workforce-Related Background

Ed Barlow is President of Creating the Future, Inc. and considered one of the most thought-provoking
and entertaining speakers on the influences which will affect industry, organizational, professional and
community settings.  Ed's professional experience includes executive positions in healthcare, business, higher
education, and a Washington D.C.-based management consulting firm.  He holds a bachelor's degree in
political science from Loras College and a master's degree in management from the University of Notre Dame.
Ed Barlow's client list represents the "Who's Who" within industry, government, education, and the not-for-profit
sector.

In General . . .

Ed has worked extensively, domestically and internationally, helping industries and organizations to
better anticipate and prepare for what's ahead.  His services have included keynoting conventions, designing
and facilitating think-tanks and strategic planning activities, and consulting.  A representative client list
includes:

Baxter Healthcare, Aluminum Association of America, AT&T, Marriott International, Blockbuster, U.S.
Chamber of Commerce, Federal Express, Six Sigma Academy of Europe, Hewlett Packard, Kimberly

Clark, American Hospital Association, IBM, Travel Industry Association of America, National
Association of Manufacturers, U.S. Navy, Lockheed Martin, Whirlpool Corporation, and Federal

Reserve Bank Systems.

In Education . . .

Ed held vice presidential positions at two institutions of higher learning, served as superintendent of a
school district, and taught high school social studies and Spanish.  He served for 10 years as an adjunct
faculty member with the Graduate School of Education with the University of San Francisco.  As a speaker and
strategic planning consultant, Ed has worked with over 140 education and education-related organizations.  A
sampling of his client list includes:

U.S. Department of Education, Association of Community College Trustees, Wisconsin Educational
Technology Assn., Michigan Association of School Boards, National Schools Public Relations

Association, Iowa State University-College of Agriculture, University of Redlands-CA, Southern
Association of College and University Business Officers, Michigan Department of Education, American
Association of Adult and Continuing Education, San Diego Community Colleges, Fairfax County Public
Schools-VA, College of Southern Idaho, Hillsborough County Public Schools-FL, and Rochester Public

Schools-MI.

In Economic and Community Development . . .

Ed has spoken at numerous economic development conferences at the national, state, and local levels.
Most recently, he spoke to 1,200 economic development professionals at two regional summits sponsored by
the U.S. Department of Commerce-Economic Development Administration. Ed has also designed and
facilitated 50 community visioning and strategic planning processes across the U.S.  Five of these have
received excellence awards.  A representative client list includes:

Gateway Partnership-CA, Tampa Bay Partnership-FL, Lehigh Valley-PA, Ocala Economic Development Corp-
FL, Sonoma County-CA, Virginia Economic Development Association, Michigan Economic Developers

Association, Missouri Department of Economic Development, Indiana Economic Development Association,
Iowa Department of Economic Development, Marin County Economic Development Authority-CA, Hamilton-

OH, Farmington Hills-MI, and Evansville-IN.



Futuring and Strategic Planning
I II III V

Design Discover Determine Deliver

Map Scan Goals & Strategies Results

©www.CreatingtheFuture.com

Dream
IV

Dream

Exhibit B 1



Exhibit B 2

Community Futuring
and

Strategic Planning Process

I. Design - Develop a process which is inclusive and supported by good data
II. Discover - Collect, analyze, and present trends with possible implications
III. Dream - Define the desired state and related conditions which will characterize

the community
IV. Determine - Formulate goals, objectives, action strategies, and responsibilities
V. Deliver - Make it happen!

Phase I – Design
Develop a process which is inclusive and supported by good data.

May - August
Process Benchmarks:
 Meet with key leaders to review desired outcomes and develop final process model.
 Develop task force issues and purpose statements.
 Develop budget and resource development plan.
 Hold community leader support breakfast/lunch meeting.
 Develop summary document of area studies, demographic, and trend information to

serve as background data for participants.
 Develop public communications plan.
 Hold one-hour “community-wide” information meeting.

Phase II – Discovery
Collect, analyze, and present trends with possible implications.

September – December
Process Benchmarks:
 Hold six-hour participant/task force kick-off/orientation session.
 Task forces hold environmental scanning and implications meetings.
 Steering Committee meets monthly to monitor progress.
 Hold Discovery integration meeting to share findings of various task forces.



Exhibit B 2

Phase III – Dream
Define the desired state and related conditions which will characterize the community.

January
Process Benchmarks:

 Conduct Discovery integration meeting with all participants.
 Elicit desired state and related future conditions from participants.
 Develop vision statement and support document of strategic directions.
 Disseminate vision statement and support materials to task forces for use during

the Determine Phase.
 Begin development of artwork and graphics which represent vision statement.

Phase IV – Determine
Formulate goals, objectives, action strategies, and responsibilities.

February - May
Process Benchmarks:

 Task forces hold goal/objective/action strategy development meetings.
 Task forces develop final reports.
 Steering Committee meets monthly to monitor progress and develop

implementation plan.
 Steering Committee organizes “draft” report and shares with participants.
 Steering Committee approves final report.
 Steering Committee meeting with key community leaders and provides

“advanced” insight into final report.
 Implementation Committee established.

Phase V – Deliver
Make it happen!
June – October

Process Benchmarks:
 Community celebration session held with announcement of implementation plan.
 Personal visits made by committee members to key leaders and organizations in

the community.
 Executive summary of plan distributed to all community households.
 Formulation of resource development plan to attract revenues for special projects

not available from traditional sources.



Date: May 3, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Big Beaver Corridor Study 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On April 20, 2005 the Troy Downtown Development Authority authorized the 
chairman and executive director to execute a contract with Birchler Arroyo 
Associates, Inc. to conduct the Big Beaver Corridor Study contingent upon 
endorsement by the Troy City Council.  Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc. is a 
community planning and transportation consultant and will lead a multi-discipline 
team that includes Grissim Metz Andriese Associates, a landscape 
architecture/civil engineering/urban design firm, and Chesapeake Group, an 
economic development consultant.  The contract includes a professional fee of 
$125,000, with expenses not to exceed 10%; therefore the contract cannot 
exceed $137,000.  City Management recommends that City Council endorse the 
Downtown Development Authority’s resolution to execute a contract with Birchler 
Arroyo Associates, Inc. to prepare a Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Troy Downtown Development Authority in conjunction with the Troy City 
Council recognized a need to re-ignite the development and redevelopment 
efforts of properties contained within the Troy Downtown Development district, 
which have an estimated value of $1.3 billion.  On October 25, 2004, the Troy 
City Council through Resolution 2004-10-565 directed City administration to 
proceed with the Big Beaver Corridor Study and to send out requests for 
proposals (RFP).  In addition to his staff, the City Manager invited a 
representative from Troy City Council, Downtown Development Authority, 
Planning Commission and the City’s Planning Consultant to comprise a RFP 
committee.  This committee unanimously recommended that Birchler Arroyo 
Associates, Inc. be selected to perform the Big Beaver Corridor Study based 
upon submission of the best proposal in terms of stakeholder input, land use 
policies to determine long term economic viability, transportation management 
and design/aesthetics. 

morrellca
Text Box
F-04



Attachments: 
 
1. Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc. and Grissim Metz Andriese Associates 

proposal 
2. DDA draft minutes and resolution, April 20, 2005 
3. City Council minutes and resolution, October 25, 2004 
 
 
 
 
 
cc:  Rod Arroyo, Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc. 
 Randy Metz, Grissim Metz Andriese Associates 
 Planning Commission 
 File/ Big Beaver Corridor Study 
 
Prepared by MFM 
 
G:\Big Beaver Urban Corridor Plan\Big Beaver Corridor Contract CC 05-09-05.doc 























 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
A.  Corridor Study Update 
 
John Szerlag and Doug Smith gave a brief update on the Corridor Study. 
 
Resolution:    DD-05-02 
Moved by:     Hay 
Seconded by:   York 
 
RESOLVED, That a not to exceed amount of $137,500 be inserted into the 
resolution. 
 
Yeas:      All (12) 
Absent:             Culpepper 
 
 
 
Resolution:    DD-05-03 
Moved by:        Hay 
Seconded by:   York 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Downtown Development Authority in conjunction with the 
Troy City Council, has recognized a need to re-ignite the development and 
redevelopment efforts of properties contained within the Troy Downtown 
Development district which have an estimated value of $1.3 billion, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council through Resolution 2004-10-565 directed City 
administration to proceed with the Big Beaver corridor study and to send out requests 
for proposals (RFP), and  
 
WHEREAS, In addition to his staff, the city manager invited a representative from 
Troy City Council, Downtown Development Authority, Planning Commission and the 
City’s planning consultant to comprise a RFP committee, and 
 
WHEREAS, This committee unanimously recommends that Birchler Arroyo 
Associates, Inc., at an amount not to exceed $137,500.00, be selected to perform the 
Big Beaver corridor study as this firm submitted the best proposal in terms of 
stakeholder input, land use policies to determine long term economic viability, 
transportation management, design/esthetics. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Downtown Development Authority 
authorizes the chairman and executive director to execute a contract with Birchler 
Arroyo Associates, Inc. to conduct the Big Beaver corridor study contingent upon 
endorsement of the contract by Troy City Council. 
 
Yeas:  All (12) 
Absent: Culpepper 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final October 25, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  
 

D-1 Big Beaver Corridor Study  
 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council DIRECTS City Administration to proceed with the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study and to send out for Request for Proposals (RFP’s). 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2004-10-564 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING,”RESOLVED, That a Citizens 
Task Force be appointed to provide input on the specific desirable components of the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study.” 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert  
No:  Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Stine 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Presented 
 
Resolution  #2004-10-565 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council DIRECTS City Administration to proceed with the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study and to send out for Request for Proposals (RFP’s). 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No:  Lambert  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 10:13 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 10:27 PM. 
 



morrellca
Text Box
F-05















 

 

May 4, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM-Temporary Aid Agreement 
 
Recommendation 
 
I recommend that the attached temporary aid agreement with Bloomfield 
Township be ratified to provide for mutual aid for structure fires in sections 5 and 
6 during the complete closure of Coolidge Road for construction at the I-75 
bridge. 
 
Background 
 
The road construction project on Coolidge Road at I-75 will cause Coolidge Road 
to be completely closed to all traffic for approximately 15 days commencing on 
Tuesday, May 3, 2005.  This closure will severely impact the fire response 
capability of fire station 6 in sections 5 and 6.  In order to maintain the existing 
level of service to the affected area, the ability of neighboring fire departments to 
respond in this area was evaluated.  The closest neighboring fire station to the 
area is Bloomfield Township fire station 2 located on Westview (18 ½ mile) just 
west of Adams.   
 
Discussions with Bloomfield Township officials indicated willingness to provide 
mutual aid in the affected area provided that both entities enter into a temporary 
agreement. During the period of the road closure, Troy stations 6 and 2 will 
respond to all fire incidents in sections 5 and 6 and Bloomfield Township will 
respond to structure fires with the Troy stations.  The attached agreement has 
been reviewed and approved by Bloomfield Township and our Law and Risk 
Management departments.  Due to the compressed time frame and the 
emergency nature of this item you signed the agreement. I respectfully request 
that this item be considered for ratification by City Council as soon as possible.  If 
you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by William S. Nelson  

morrellca
Text Box
F-06



 

 

TEMPORARY AID AGREEMENT 
FOR FIRE SERVICES 

 
 

This Agreement is between the Township of Bloomfield, a Michigan charter township, 
whose address is 4200 Telegraph Road, Bloomfield Hills, MI  48303, and the City of 
Troy, a Michigan municipal corporation, whose address is 500 West Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, MI  48084. 
 

R E C I T A L S: 
 
The City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) currently 
have plans to widen Coolidge Road in the City of Troy where it passes under the I-75 
freeway at Square Lake Road.  The project will require the closing of Coolidge in the 
area of I-75 to all traffic for an estimated period of 15 days.  The closing is currently 
scheduled to occur on May 2, 2005. 
 
Since Troy Fire Station No. 6 is located on Coolidge Road south of I-75, the closure of 
Coolidge will affect the Troy Fire Department’s ability to respond to fires in Sections 5 
and 6 in the City of Troy (north of I-75/Square Lake Road, from Crooks Road to Adams 
Road and Square Lake Road to South Boulevard).  The City of Troy has requested the 
Township of Bloomfield’s assistance for reported structure fires in Sections 5 and 6 
during the estimated 15 days that Coolidge Road will be closed to traffic.  The Township 
of Bloomfield is able and willing to provide the assistance requested. 
 
It is the parties’ intention to continue Troy’s standard two-station response to structure 
fires.  In addition, the Township of Bloomfield would, when requested by the City of 
Troy, respond from its Fire Station No. 2 located at West View and Adams Roads.  All 
other fire incidents would be handled by Troy without Bloomfield Township’s assistance. 
 
The parties have agreed to set forth herein guidelines for this temporary fire service 
assistance. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed as follows: 
 
1. Purpose.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the terms and conditions 

under which the Township of Bloomfield will provide assistance to the City of 
Troy on a temporary basis for structure fires in Sections 5 and 6 of the City of 
Troy during the estimated 15-day closure of Coolidge Road in the area of I-75 and 
Square Lake Road. 

 
2. Request for Assistance.  The Communications Center for the City of Troy for an 

emergency situation requiring fire department equipment or personnel in the area 
described herein (Sections 5 and 6, City of Troy) is authorized to request 
assistance from the Bloomfield Township Fire Department.  The request shall be 
directed to the Township of Bloomfield Dispatch Center. 



 

 

 
 The request for assistance shall specify the location to which the equipment and 

personnel are to be dispatched. 
 
3. Response to Request.  Upon receipt of a request for fire service assistance, the 

commanding officer of the Bloomfield Township Fire Department shall: 
 
 a. Determine if the equipment and personnel are available for response as 

requested. 
 b. Advise the requesting party of the equipment and personnel available for 

response; and 
 c. Dispatch requested personnel and equipment as available to the designated 

location(s) with proper operating instructions. 
 
 In the event the requested equipment and/or personnel are not available, then the 

commanding officer for the Township shall immediately advise the requesting 
party of such fact. 

 
 The rendering of assistance under the terms of this Agreement shall not be 

mandatory; however, every good faith effort shall be made by the Bloomfield 
Township Fire Department to render assistance. 

 
4. Command Responsibility at Emergency Scene.  The incident commander of the 

City of Troy at the scene of the emergency to which a response is made shall be in 
command of the operations under which the equipment and personnel sent by the 
Township of Bloomfield shall serve; provided, however, that the responding 
equipment and personnel shall be under the immediate supervision of the officer 
in charge of the responding apparatus.  If the incident commander specifically 
requests the senior officer of the Township to assume command, then the incident 
commander shall not, by relinquishing command, be relieved of responsibility for 
the operation. 

 
5. Waiver/Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  The City of Troy waives all claims 

against the Township of Bloomfield for compensation for any loss, damage, 
personal injury, or death occurring to personnel and/or equipment as a 
consequence of performance under this Agreement, including but not limited to 
command decisions or judgments.  The City of Troy shall save and hold harmless 
the Township of Bloomfield against any and all claims or actions brought against 
the Township of Bloomfield arising out of its efforts to perform under this 
Agreement, except to the extent that such claims or actions arise out of any willful 
misconduct or grossly negligent action on the part of the Township. 

 
6. Insurance.  The City of Troy hereby confirms and acknowledges that it maintains 

adequate insurance coverage to cover claims or damages arising out of the 
provision of fire service under this Agreement by the Township of Bloomfield. 

 



 

 

7. Compensation.  Bloomfield Township agrees that it will not seek compensation 
from the City of Troy for services rendered under this Agreement.  The Township 
will remain responsible to its own employees for the payment of wages and other 
compensation and for carrying workmen’s compensation upon said employees, 
and shall be responsible for its own equipment and bear the risk of loss therefore.  
However, if fire suppression chemicals are utilized by the Township, the City 
shall compensation the Township for the actual cost of such chemicals. 

 
8. Authority.  This Agreement is executed pursuant to MCL 124.501, et seq. 
 
9. Termination.  This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until the 

opening of Coolidge Road to through traffic, contemplated at this point to be on 
or about May 17, 2005. As soon as the City of Troy Fire Chief has determined 
that assistance is no longer necessary under this Agreement, he or his designee, 
shall notify the Township of Bloomfield Township Fire Chief in writing via fax or 
hand delivery that assistance under this Agreement is no longer required. 

 
 

CITY OF TROY 
 

By:  ________________________________ 
John Szerlag 
Its: Manager 

Dated:  _______________, 2005 
 

TOWNSHIP OF BLOOMFIELD 
 
By:  ________________________________ 
Its:  ________________________________ 

Dated:  _______________, 2005 
 
 
Contract to be ratified by the Troy City Council at their Regular Meeting of Troy May 9, 
2005 
 

CITY OF TROY 
 

By:  ________________________________ 
Louise Schilling 
Its: Mayor 
 
By:  ________________________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew 
Its: City Clerk 

Dated:  _______________, 2005 



 
 
 
May 2, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – FINAL SITE PLAN APPROVAL – Proposed Maplewood 

Site Condominium – South side of South Boulevard, West of Rochester 
Road – Section 3, R-1C 

 
Mr. Franco Mancini of Milano Building Company, Inc. submitted a Final Site Plan for the 
single-family residential site condominium known as Maplewood.  The application 
received Preliminary Site Plan Approval by City Council on April 28, 2003.  The subject 
property includes 5.171-acres and is within the R-1C Zoning District.  Fourteen (14) site 
condominium units are proposed with access provided by South Boulevard and 
Amberwood Drive.  This proposed site condominium is consistent with the lot averaging 
provisions within the R-1C Zoning District.   
 
The development will utilize the detention basin located to the southwest in Amberwood 
Estates Subdivision.  The petitioner executed the contract for installation of municipal 
improvements and provided the required escrow deposits and cash fees.  All applicable 
Ordinance requirements are met for the proposed site condominium. Therefore, this 
development will not cause or exacerbate drainage problems on contiguous properties, 
due to surface run-off from the proposed development. City Management recommends 
approval of the Final Site Plan.   
 
Attachments: 

1. Map. 
2. Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements. 

 
cc:   File/Maplewood Site Condominium 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

morrellca
Text Box
F-07















TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM: John Lamerato, Asst. City Manager-Financial Services Division 
  Brian Murphy, Asst. City Manager-Services Division 

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Flags 
 
DATE:  April 28, 2005 
 
 
Earlier this year, the Community Affairs Department obtained approval from the 
City Manager to purchase flags displaying the City’s celebratory 50th Anniversary 
logo.  
 
As part of the 50th Anniversary celebration, we are flying the 50th anniversary flag 
under the City flag on the flagpoles for the remainder of 2005 at City buildings 
including City Hall, the Community Center, and the Police Department.  At the end 
of 2005, the City will retire the anniversary flag. 
 
 
Option for Fire Stations: 
 
The Fire stations and the Fire-Police Training Center were never supplied with City 
flags. However, we do have 50th Anniversary flags for them. There is room to fly 
them under the American flags.  When the anniversary flags are retired, we will 
purchase official City flags to fly at the Fire Stations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CS 
 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
F-08



May 2, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value 

Process Award  – Troy Daze Fireworks  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On January 5, 2005, four (4) proposals were received to provide a Fireworks 
Display for the Troy Daze Festival for three (3) years. City management 
recommends that a contract be awarded to Mad Bomber Fireworks Productions, 
P.O. Box 418, Kingsbury, IN 46345, the highest scoring respondent as a result of 
a best value process, for the total amount of $15,000.00 - $5,000.00 each year.  
The award is contingent upon vendor submission of proper contract and proposal 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
SELECTION PROCESS 
One staff member and two Troy Daze Advisory Committee members 
independently evaluated proposals considering factors such as duration of event, 
size and number of shells or shots in each of the opening barrage, main show, 
and grand finale portions of the display. Each bidder was to provide the best 
proposal for a fixed amount of $5,000.00. After evaluation of all four of the 
submitted proposals, Mad Bomber Fireworks Productions achieved the highest 
score.  
 
SUMMARY 
The annual Troy Daze Festival has incorporated a fireworks show for the last 
three years. It has enjoyed tremendous popularity and has become one of the 
most anticipated events of the festival. We believe Mad Bomber Fireworks 
Productions will provide a safe, high quality show for the City of Troy and the 
Troy Daze Festival. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for this contract are available in the Parks and Recreation – Community 
Fair operating budget, Account #784.7889.010.  
 
  5 Notices mailed to JDE Vendors 
18 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
  4 Bid Proposals Received 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey J. Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 
 

morrellca
Text Box
F-09



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-57
Opening Date - 1/5/05 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared - 1/21/05 FIREWORKS DISPLAYS FOR THE TROY DAZE FESTIVAL

VENDOR NAME: **

VENDOR CODE: #04-010 #04-025 #04-050 #04-001

PROPOSAL:  THREE(3) YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF FIREWORKS DISPLAYS FOR THE MAGIC OF FALL/TROY
DAZE FESTIVAL FOR YEARS 2005, 2006, AND 2007

DESCRIPTION:
AERIAL FIREWORKS DISPLAY 

REFERENCES City of Dearborn Livonia Anniver Committee City of Gibraltar City of Rochester Hills
(313)943-2411 (734)427-8190 (734)671-1466 (248)656-4673

Madison Heights Westland Festival Committee Canton Heritage Days City of Grosse Pointe Woods

(248)589-2294 (734)481-6276 (734)394-5460 (313)343-2445

Kalamazoo Kings Acheson Ventures Grosse Pointe Farms Mt Clemens DDA
(616)388-8333 (810)966-0900 (313)840-1422 (586)469-4168

Schererville P & R City of Clawson Hudson Mills Metropark Pontiac DDA
(219)322-4581 (248)435-9391 (734)426-8211 (248)758-3934

Deerfield Beach Lake Oakland Kensington Metropark Highland Township
(954)480-4433 (248)674-4687 (248)685-1561 (248)887-3791

INSURANCE
Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS AS SPECIFIED AS STATED BLANK

EXCEPTIONS BLANK BLANK BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
SIGNED - Y or N YES YES YES YES

INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE
SIGNED - Y or N NO NO YES BLANK

ADDENDUM 1 YES NO NO YES

ATTEST:
 Ron Hynd ** DENOTES PROPOSAL BEST SUITED FOR THE FESTIVAL
 MaryAnn Hays
 Linda Bockstanz

__________________________
G:/ ITB-COT 04-57 Fireworks.xls Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director

WOLVERINE
FIREWORKS DISPLAY

MELROSE
PYROTECHNICS INC

MAD BOMBER AMERICAN
FIREWORKS COMPANYFIREWORKS PRODUCTIONS

5,000.00$                  5,000.00$                5,000.00$                5,000.00$                



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
     FIREWORKS 
 
STATISTICS: 
 

��The premise of the bid was that the Magic of Fall/ Troy Daze Festival wanted the best fireworks 
display that could be purchased for $5,000.00. 

 
��Five (5) notices of the availability of the bid document were mailed.   

 
��Eighteen (18) Vendors were notified on the MITN system.    

 
��Five companies called in to Purchasing to receive a code number.   

 
��Four (4) companies responded to the bid proposal with one company (#04-085 – Night Magic) 

who had called in for a code number not responding. 
 

��Company coded #04-010 (Mad Bomber Fireworks Productions) was selected by the Committee 
as the company submitting a proposal with the best “bang for the buck”.  The Committee was 
given the “fireworks descriptions” (submitted with the bid proposal document) to rate.  Any 
reference to the company that could identify them was redacted from the descriptions.   

 
The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated scores: 
COMPANY  NAME FINAL SCORE 
#04-001  Melrose Pyrotechnics Inc. 

 
65 

#04-010 Mad Bomber Fireworks 
Productions 

95 

#04-025 American Fireworks Company 
 

              75 

#04-050 Wolverine Fireworks Display 
 

              75 

 
Selection Process: 
1. Bidders called in to Purchasing and received a code number to be used to make their fireworks 

descriptions anonymous.   
2. Firework display descriptions were sealed in a separate envelope from the bid document and 

disguised with the “code number”.     
3. Bids were opened without a member of the evaluation committee present.  The Purchasing 

Department opened the sealed fireworks display descriptions, redacted any company reference 
from the materials, and forwarded the information to the Troy Daze Evaluation Committee.   

4. The Evaluation Committee rated the coded company’s fireworks descriptions and forwarded the 
Committee’s Evaluation Sheets to the Purchasing Department for final tabulation.   

5. After matching the code numbers to the company’s, the highest rated company’s references were 
forwarded to the Committee as the final selection step in the process. 

6. The insurance of the selected company was checked to ensure compliance with specifications. 
 
G:/BestValue SR8 – ITB-COT 04-57 Fireworks Exec Sum 01.05.doc 



 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 

FIREWORKS 
 
 
Weighted – Ratings 
Raters: 
Vendors: 
Code # COMPANY NAME Rater 1 Rater 2 Rater 3 Average 
#04-001  Melrose Pyrotechnics 

Inc. 
 

75 60 60 65 

#04-010 Mad Bomber Fireworks 
Productions 
 

95 100 90 95 

#04-025 American Fireworks 
Company 
 

85 70 70 75 

#04-050 Wolverine Fireworks 
Display 
 

85 80 60 75 

 
 

 
 

 









April 28, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Sole Source – US Filter HRR Enhancer and Pulsar 

Plus Briquettes 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City management requests approval to purchase Pulsar Plus Briquettes and US 
Filter HRR Enhancer for the Community Center Indoor Pool, from B & B Pools 
and Spas of Livonia, MI., the authorized distributor in Michigan, at dealer prices 
plus 25% for Pulsar and trade prices for the Enhancer, currently at $92.50/50lb 
drum and $137.50/50lb pail respectively.  Appendix I details costs for the same 
products in other Midwest states. 
  
BACKGROUND 
 
The Pulsar Plus Briquettes is the only chlorine product on the market that is 
compatible with the ECS System installed at the Community Center Pool. B & B 
Pools and Spas currently holds the master agreement in Michigan for Pulsar 
products manufactured by Arch Chemical. 
 
The US Filter HRR Enhancer is also the only Oxidizer compatible with the ECS 
system. Leslie’s Pool Supplies indicated a compatible product, however, that 
company later discovered after research that it was not the same and reacted 
poorly when put in with the ECS System. 
 
The Pulsar Plus Briquettes and US Filter HRR Enhancer have been used since 
the Community Center Pool opened.  By maintaining proper chemical balance, 
the pool has consistently remained efficient and safe. 
 
BUDGET 
 
The Community Center Operating Supplies Account #755.7740.010 has been 
designated for the funding of this purchase. 
 
Prepared by: Brian Goul, Aquatics Coordinator 
 
 
 
 

1 of 2 
 

morrellca
Text Box
F-10



APPENDIX I 
COST ANALYSIS 

    
SUPPLIER STATE PULSAR 

PLUS 
ENHANCER TERMS 

Spear 
Corporation 

INDIANA – 
Roachdale 

$100 per pail $140 per pail Plus freight 
and 2.5% to 
supply in 
Michigan 

Northwest 
Pools 

OHIO - Toledo 
 
 

$94.50 per 
pail 

$139.50 per pail Plus freight 
and 2.5% to 
supply in 
Michigan 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 







April 13, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
  Stephen Cooperrider, Risk Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Bid Waiver – Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal for Fiscal  

Year 2005/2006 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is our recommendation that City Council approve the renewal of the City’s workers’ 
compensation coverage with the Michigan Municipal League Workers’ Compensation Fund  
(MML WCF) for the annual estimated cost for fiscal year 2005-06 of $444,846.  This is a 24.4% 
overall cost reduction from fiscal year 2004-05. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City’s overall cost for FY 05/06 of $444,846 compares with $588,653 for FY 04/05 and 
$448,289 for FY 03/04. 
 
The MML WCF belongs to a larger non-profit captive mutual insurance company, the National 
League of Cities Mutual.  The member pools own the company.  The NLC Mutual Company 
annually takes competitive bids from reinsurers.  As of January 1, 2005 the reinsurers and their 
Best ratings are: Aspen Insurance UK (A), Hanover Rk (A), Zurich American Insurance 
Company (A). 
 
In March of 2003, City Management engaged independent insurance counselor, Mr. Angelo 
Zervos to evaluate the current state of the City’s workers’ compensation program and provide a 
recommendation as to the most appropriate action to be taken by the City.  Mr. Zervos’ report 
and recommendation is attached for review.  His evaluation indicated the MML program would 
cost the City less than if we were self-insured.   This was because the City has received large 
dividend distribution checks from the MML WCF over the past five years.   Mr. Zervos’ report is 
as relevant today as it was then.  The dividend distribution check for 2004 was $179,814.  The 
check received this year is $107,614. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
We experienced an increase of 1.7% in our premium; the average increase of the MML WCF 
was 1.92%.  This increase can ultimately be attributed to our increase in payroll.  In addition, we 
are seeing a decrease in our experience modifier from 1.38 to 1.01 for FY 2005-2006.  
 
(The experience modifier is a factor developed by measuring the difference between the City’s 
actual past loss experience and the expected experience.  This factor may either be a debit or a 
credit.  When applied to the standard premium, the experience modification produces a 
premium that is more representative of the City’s actual loss experience.) 
 

morrellca
Text Box
F-11



I spoke with Mr. Angelo Zervos regarding this year’s renewal.  Mr. Zervos concurred with the 
fact that his 2003 report is as relevant today as it was then.  Mr. Zervos said the cost of 
commercial insurance would be more than what the City is paying to be in the MML WCF.  He 
also indicated that to be self-insured for workers’ compensation would not be appropriate either.  
Mr. Zervos said that the large dividend check and the decrease in the experience modifier 
provide the City with a good financial position without having the increased risk of being self-
insured.  Mr. Zervos indicated that from a cost standpoint, being in the MML WCF is where the 
City currently belongs.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
Attached is a renewal declaration page from the MML WCF indicating the net estimated 
premium to the City of Troy for FY 05/06 is $552,460.  After applying the dividend distribution 
check in the amount of $107,614 to the net estimated premium; the net annual estimated cost to 
the City for workers’ compensation coverage is $444,846. Funds are available in the Workers’ 
Compensation Fund. 
 
 
 

































May 3, 2005 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Bid Waiver – Skate Park Equipment 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management is recommending that the standard bidding process be waived 
and the City Council give approval for the purchase and installation of skate park 
equipment from Michigan Skate Parks, LLC, 102 Walnut Avenue, Suite C, 
Holland, MI 49423 for an estimated cost of $42,532.00.  The contractor currently 
has acceptable insurance on file.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On March 17, 2003, through Resolution #2003-03-142, City Council approved a 
bid award to Rolar Property SVC, a general contractor, for the purchase and 
installation of skate park components, concrete, and fencing to establish the Troy 
Skate Park in the parking lot north of the Troy Community Center. The 
manufacturer of the skate park components used on the site is Woodward 
Ramps and Rails/HUNA Designs, whose regional representative is Michigan 
Skate Parks, LLC and the company who actually provided the initial installation of 
the current equipment as a sub-contractor of Rolar.   
 
At that time, Council also limited the amount of financial participation by the City 
and requested the users of the skate park raise additional funds to complete the 
design. Through various fund raising efforts and private contributions, a total of 
$16,820.00 was raised toward the goal of installing additional skate park 
equipment.  
 
NEW EQUIPMENT COST 
The piece of equipment that will complete Phase II of the skate park is a custom 
designed 4’ high half pipe that will provide both novice and intermediate skaters 
with the opportunity to improve and showcase their skills. The estimated cost of 
the equipment, including delivery and installation, is $42,532.00. 
 
     Page 1 of 2 

morrellca
Text Box
F-12



To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver - Skate Park Equipment 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
KMART GRANT 
Kmart officials, inquiring about a recreational project they might consider for a 
Community Makeover Grant, recently contacted the City of Troy. They were 
delighted with the idea of contributing toward the completion of the Troy Skate 
Park and have generously agreed to award the City with a donation of 
$20,000.00.  
 
SUMMARY 
The Troy Skate Park was sized to hold more skate ramps and rails than originally 
installed. Due to budgetary restrictions, not all of the equipment could be installed 
at the time the facility was constructed. Additional equipment was to be installed 
at a later date when private contributions solicited by skate park users became 
available. 
 
As the existing skate park equipment has performed very well since its 
installation and it is beneficial from a maintenance standpoint to standardize the 
equipment within the site, staff is requesting that the formal bidding process be 
waived and the purchase of the skate park equipment be approved from the 
regional distributor for Woodward Ramps and Rails/HUNA Designs products, 
Michigan Skate Parks, LLC. 
 
BUDGET 
The majority of the funds for the purchase of a 4’ half-pipe to complete the Troy 
Skate Park will come from the money collected by students, including donations 
from individuals and businesses ($16,820.00), and the Kmart grant ($20,000.00). 
The funds for this purchase are available in the Parks and Recreation Capital 
Account #401770.7974.130, which includes the balance the City will contribute to 
the project in the amount of $5,712.00.   
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey J. Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 





  February 10, 2003 
 
TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable 

Bidder Meeting Specifications – Skate Park 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Parks and Recreation Department recommends that City Council award the 
contract to construct a Skate Park to the lowest acceptable bidder meeting 
specifications, Rolar Property Services, Inc., 33333 Dequindre, Troy, MI 48083, 
248-584-1800, for an estimated amount of $138,500.00, components 
manufactured by Huna Design, contingent upon submission of proper contract 
and bid documents, including insurance certificates, bonds, and all specified 
requirements.  
 
In addition, we are requesting authorization to purchase additional skate park 
equipment should additional private funding become available, at unit prices 
contained in the attached bid tabulation opened January 29, 2003, to a maximum 
total project amount of $170,000.00, plus a 10% contingency in accordance with 
Resolution #2002-11-607. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On November 18, 2002, City Council approved the construction of a skate park 
to be located in the area of the SMART parking lot north of the Community 
Center at an estimated project cost of $170,000.00, plus authorization for 
additional unforeseen work not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. The City’s 
expenditure is limited to $136,000.00 and the remaining $34,000.00 is to be 
provided through private funding. (Resolution #2002-11-607)  To date, $5,000.00 
in private funding has been raised. 
 
SUMMARY 
On January 29, 2003, bids were opened to construct a skate park for the City of 
Troy. Two complete bids were received. The skate park equipment specified in 
the bid from Nationwide Fence and Supply, Inc. did not meet the specifications 
provided in the bid documents. That equipment, manufactured by Armadillo 
Recreation Rhino Ramps, utilizes wood as the structural element of the ramps. 
Specifications called for steel framework with no wood to be used in any portion 
of the ramps or boxes. The components being proposed by Rolar Property 
Service, Inc. are manufactured by HUNA Designs, Inc. 
 

1 of 2 



February 10, 2003 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
Re:  Bid Award – Skate Park 
 
Page 2 of 2 
 
SUMMARY - Continued 
 
A timeline for completion of the skate park was submitted in the December 4, 
2002, Council Agenda packet, targeting June 1, 2003, as the date to open the 
park.  An award of a contract at this time to construct the skate park and its 
components, including concrete slab and perimeter fencing will help ensure that 
the target date will be met. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for this project are available in the Parks Capital Account 
#401770.7974.130. 
 
 
18 Bids Sent 
  2 Bid Responses Rec’d 
  1 Bid did not meet specifications 
  3 No Bids:  (1) Company does not handle the type of product specified. 

(1) Company could not meet completion deadline. 
(1) Company could not build park as specified.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey J. Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 



CITY OF TROY SBP 02-61
Opening Date -- 1-29-03 TABULATION Page 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 2/7/03 SKATE PARK

FIRM NAME: ** ROLAR
PROPERTY SVC

Check Number 874462574
Check Amount $6,800.00

PROPOSAL TO SAFELY DESIGN A SKATE PARK TO FIT ONTO A 10,000 SF CONCRETE SLAB 
WITH OTHER OBSTACLES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS--

PROPOSAL
10,000 SF CONCRETE SLAB      

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 138,500.00$       

COMPONENT MANUFACTURER: HUNA DESIGN
LAY OUT - MARKED AS: PHASE ONE

UNIT COST BREAKDOWN
CONCRETE SLAB (MATERIAL & LABOR) 4.70$                
FENCING (MATERIAL & LABORS) 18.00$               
4’ high quarter pipe 3,735.00$          
3’ high quarter pipe 3,395.00$          
2’ high quarter pipe 2,795.00$          
2’ high wedge 3,390.00$          
3’ high wedge 4,020.00$          
8’ long rectangular grind rail 275.00$             
16’ long round kinked grind rail 350.00$             
13’ long round curved grind rail 325.00$             
6” x 24” x 96” grind box 1,920.00$          
12” x 24” x 96” grind box 2,100.00$          

ADDITIONAL COMPONENTS
2' Ledge Flat 3,625.00$          
2' Outside Corner Wedge 4,680.00$          
3' Spline w/Coping 3,425.00$          

ALTERNATE PROPOSAL
CONCRETE SLAB (MATERIAL & LABOR) 5.50$                
FENCING (MATERIAL & LABORS) 20.00$               
4’ high quarter pipe 3,735.00$          
3’ high quarter pipe 3,395.00$          
2’ high quarter pipe 2,795.00$          
2’ high wedge 3,390.00$          
3’ high wedge 4,020.00$          
8’ long rectangular grind rail 275.00$             
16’ long round kinked grind rail 350.00$             
13’ long round curved grind rail 325.00$             
6” x 24” x 96” grind box 1,920.00$          
12” x 24” x 96” grind box 2,100.00$          

ADDITIONAL COMPONENTS
2' Ledge Flat 3,625.00$          
2' Outside Corner Wedge 4,680.00$          
3' Spline w/Coping 3,425.00$          

CITY OF TROY SBP 02-61



Opening Date -- 1-29-03 TABULATION Page  2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 2/7/03 SKATE PARK

FIRM NAME: ** ROLAR
PROPERTY SVC

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

PROGRESS PAYMENTS:
Proposed Payment Schedule

Yes or No NET 30
COMPLETION DATE: June 1, 2003

Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Yes or No YES
Date visited 1/24/03

TERMS: NET 30

WARRANTY: ONE YEAR

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

LEGAL STATUE OF BIDDER: Yes or No YES

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT: Yes or No YES

DMS:
Nationwide Fence & Supply Option 1: ($120,598.07), Option 2:($140,972.90) 

Construction Specifications for Skate Ramps/Rails indicated no wood to be used in 
constructing any portion of the ramps or boxes.

NO BIDS:
Michigan Playgrounds
Skateparks International ** DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
True Ride

ATTEST:
Jeffrey Biegler
Charlene Macomb
Linda Bockstanz ____________________________

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:SBP 02-61 Skate Park.xls



CONTINENTAL LEISURE SALES
P O BOX 1409
400 136TH AVE BLDG 100
HOLLAND  MI  49422-1409

HOFFMAN PLAY WORKS INC
ATTN: DAN PERREAULT
P O BOX 1570
BRIGHTON  MI  48116

HUNA DESIGNS
1000 BUFFALO ROAD
LEWISBURG  PA  17837-9795

MICHIGAN PLAYGROUNDS LLC
102 WALNUT AVENUE SUITE C
HOLLAND  MI  49423

RAMPS.COM
1 COREWAY DRIVE
PIONEER  OH  43554

RAMPTECH
14855 PERSISTENCE DR
WOODBRIDGE  VA  22191

ROLAR INC
ATTN BOB CIEPIELOWSKI
33333 DEQUINDRE STE B
TROY  MI  48083

SKATEPARKS INTERNATIONAL
1401 E BRIDGE ST #8
BRIGHTON  CO  80601-1908

SKATEWAVE - DIV LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES INC
601 7TH STREET SOUTH
DELANO  MN  55328

SPOHN RANCH INCORPORATED
15131 CLARK AVE UNIT B
CITY OF INDUSTRY  CA  91745

TRUERIDE INCORPORATED
5781 BERQUIST ROAD
DULUTH  MN  55804



May 2, 2005 
 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
 Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Services 
 Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Re: Agenda Item - Petition Analysis, Paving of Tacoma SAD# 05.202.1 
 
 
 
 
Attached is a petition from residents and property owners on Tacoma, in Section 
28, requesting asphalt paving of the streets, and the creation of a Special 
Assessment District to finance the project. 
 
There are twenty-eight (28) separate parcels in the project area.  Twenty (20) of 
the affected parcel owners have signed the petition in favor of the project.  This 
equates to 71.43% of the owners being in favor of the paving, representing 
70.71% of the frontage. 
 
It is recommended that you request City Council approve Standard Resolution #1 
(preparation of plans and cost estimates for the project), Standard resolution #2 
(approval of the cost estimates, and directing the Assessor to create the roll), and 
Standard Resolution #3 (setting a Public Hearing for the project) as submitted. 
 
 
 
Nl/nl 

morrellca
Text Box
F-13











licarila
Text Box





Parcel ID Owner 1 # Street Frontage % Total Owners Signed Valid % Signed
88-20-28-427-010 Bise, Edwin C & Anna L 230 Tacoma 86.96 3.70 2 2 1 3.70
88-20-28-427-011 Bise, Edwin C & Anna L 0 Vacant 20.00 0.85 2 2 1 0.85
88-20-28-427-012 Bise, Edwin C & Anna L 0 Vacant 60.00 2.55 2 2 1 2.55
88-20-28-427-017 Bise, Edwin C & Anna L 154 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 2 2 1 2.13
88-20-28-427-020 McComb & Assoc 138-148 Tacoma 100.00 4.26 1 1 1 4.26
88-20-28-427-021 McComb & Assoc 130-132 Tacoma 130.00 5.53 1 1 1 5.53
88-20-28-427-022 Christie, Eleanor 186-190 Tacoma 95.00 4.04 1 1 1 4.04
88-20-28-427-023 Christie, Eleanor 176-180 Tacoma 95.00 4.04 1 1 1 4.04
88-20-28-428-004 Gleeson, Michael & Doreen 195 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 2 2 1 2.13
88-20-28-428-008 Heydel, Robert & Deborah 0 Vacant 50.00 2.13 2    
88-20-28-428-009 Heydel, Robert & Deborah 151 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 2    
88-20-28-428-010 Knight, Joe & Betty 137 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 2    
88-20-28-428-011 Antanaitis, Peter 133 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 1 1 1 2.13
88-20-28-428-012 Kurmas, David & Diana 129 Tacoma 80.00 3.40 2 2 1 3.40
88-20-28-428-025 Baldino, Stephen 211 Tacoma 156.60 6.67 1 1 1 6.67
88-20-28-428-026 Werner III, John & Lee Anne 183 Tacoma 75.00 3.19 2 2 1 3.19
88-20-28-428-027 Zalot, Robert & Wendy 163 Tacoma 75.00 3.19 2    
88-20-28-431-010 Rumsey, Rodney & Faith 124 Tacoma 80.00 3.40 2 2 1 3.40
88-20-28-431-011 Wilson, Gary & Carol 112 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 2 2 1 2.13
88-20-28-431-012 Ure, Deborah 0 Vacant 50.00 2.13 1 1 1 2.13
88-20-28-431-013 Ure, Deborah 90 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 1 1 1 2.13
88-20-28-431-017 Muzzy, Eric & Kristi 42 Tacoma 100.00 4.26 2    
88-20-28-431-018 Bart, Madeliene 28 Tacoma 58.00 2.47 1 1 1 2.47
88-20-28-431-026 Savage, Ralph & Kelly 70 Tacoma 150.00 6.38 2    
88-20-28-432-004 Abitheira, Gary 71 Tacoma 200.00 8.51 1 1 1 8.51
88-20-28-432-005 Savage, Ralph & Kelly 41 Tacoma 158.00 6.72 2    
88-20-28-432-017 Stolarczyk, Viola 125 Tacoma 125.00 5.32 1 1 1 5.32
88-20-28-432-018 Hartman, Melanie 99 Tacoma 55.00 2.34 1

Totals 2,349.56 100.00 44 29 20 70.71

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Petition Analysis

Tacoma Street Bituminous Paving



Page 1 of 1City of Troy GIS Online

3/3/2005http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&For...

licarila
Text Box
230

licarila
Text Box
190-186

licarila
Text Box
180-176

licarila
Text Box
154

licarila
Text Box
148-138

licarila
Text Box
132-130

licarila
Text Box
124

licarila
Text Box
112

licarila
Text Box
90

licarila
Text Box
70

licarila
Text Box
42

licarila
Text Box
28

licarila
Text Box
Not in District

licarila
Text Box
Not in District

licarila
Text Box
211

licarila
Text Box
195

licarila
Text Box
183

licarila
Text Box
163

licarila
Text Box
151

licarila
Text Box
137

licarila
Text Box
133

licarila
Text Box
129

licarila
Text Box
125

licarila
Text Box
99

licarila
Text Box
71

licarila
Text Box
41

licarila
Text Box
LIVERNOIS

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box
86.96

licarila
Text Box
20.00

licarila
Text Box
60.00

licarila
Text Box
95.00

licarila
Text Box
95.00

licarila
Text Box
100.00

licarila
Text Box
130.00

licarila
Text Box
80.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
150.00

licarila
Text Box
100.00

licarila
Text Box
58.00

licarila
Text Box
156.60

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
75.00

licarila
Text Box
75.00

licarila
Text Box
80.00

licarila
Text Box
125.00

licarila
Text Box
55.00

licarila
Text Box
200.00

licarila
Text Box
158.00

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Pencil

licarila
Pencil

licarila
Pencil

licarila
Pencil

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes



     Preliminary Cost Estimate February 22, 2005

Project Location: Tacoma Street
Project No.: 05.202.1
Proposed Improvement: 1,200 lf, 24' Bituminous Asphalt Pavement with Underdrain

Item      Quantity Description Unit Cost Total Cost
SAD Share - Asphalt Section (1,200')

1. 540 Tons Bit. Mix No. 500, 20C - 3" 45.00         24,300.00       
2. 270 Tons Bit. Mix No. 1100T, 20AA - 1 1/2" 50.00         13,500.00       
3. 75 Tons Bit. Mix No. 1100T, 36B - 4" Driveway 100.00       7,500.00         
4. 300 Tons 21AA Aggregate for Shoulders 20.00       6,000.00         

Sub-Total 51,300.00       

Engineering, Admin. And Contingencies, 25% 12,700.00       
Maintenance Savings (18,000.00)      
Total Special Assessment Share - Asphalt 46,000.00       

City Share
5. 200 SY Remove Pavement 10.00         2,000.00         
6. 28 Each Remove Culvert 150.00       4,200.00         
7. 300 CY Earth Excavation 10.00         3,000.00         
8. 150 CY Subgrade Undercut 35.00         5,250.00         
9. 3,500 SY Grading 3.00           10,500.00       

10. 1,200 Tons Aggregate Base, 21AA 20.00         24,000.00       
11. 300 CY Subbase 15.00         4,500.00         
13. 400 LF 12" Storm Sewer 35.00         14,000.00       
14. 300 LF 15" Storm Sewer 42.00         12,600.00       
15. 200 LF 18" Storm Sewer 50.00         10,000.00       
16. 15 Each 4' Dia. Manhole 1,700.00    25,500.00       
17. 24 Each 2' Dia. Drainage Structure 850.00       20,400.00       
18. 2,400 LF 8" Edge Drain 25.00         60,000.00       
19. 24 Each Relocate Mailbox Post 100.00       2,400.00         
20. 2 Each Reconstruct/Adjust Structure 500.00       1,000.00         
21. 2,400 LF Ditching 5.00           12,000.00       
22. 4,000 SY Turf Restoration Incidental

Sub-Total 211,350.00     

Engineering, Admin. And Contingencies, 25% 52,650.00       
Maintenance Savings 18,000.00       
Total City Share 282,000.00     

TOTAL PROJECT COST 328,000.00     

Prepared by:  Gary Streight
\\G\Projects\Projects - 2005\05.202.1 - Tacoma Street SAD\Preliminary Cost Estimate for Tacoma Street.xls



88-20-28-427-010 88-20-28-427-011 88-20-28-427-012
BISE, EDWIN C & ANNA L BISE, EDWIN C & ANNA  L BISE, EDWIN C & ANNA L
230 TACOMA 230 TACOMA AVE 230 TACOMA AVE
TROY       MI 48084-5459 TROY       MI  48084-5459 TROY       MI 48084-5459

88-20-28-427-017 88-20-28-427-020 88-20-28-427-021
BISE, EDWIN C & ANNA L MC COMB & ASSOC I MC COMB & ASSOC II
230 TACOMA 6911 LIVERNOIS 6911 LIVERNOIS
TROY       MI 48084-5459 TROY       MI  48098-1572 TROY       MI 48098-1572

88-20-28-427-022 88-20-28-427-023 88-20-28-428-004
CHRISTIE, ELEANOR CHRISTIE, ELEANOR GLEESON, MICHAEL P & DORE
186-190 TACOMA 176 TACOMA -180 195 TACOMA
TROY       MI 48084-5425 TROY       MI  48084-5425 TROY       MI 48084-5424

88-20-28-428-008 88-20-28-428-009 88-20-28-428-010
HEYDEL, ROBERT & DEBORAH HEYDEL, ROBERT & DEBORAH KNIGHT, JOE J & BETTY J
151 TACOMA 151 TACOMA 137 TACOMA
TROY       MI 48084-5424 TROY       MI  48084-5424 TROY       MI 48084-5424

88-20-28-428-011 88-20-28-428-012 88-20-28-428-025
ANTANAITIS, PETER KURMAS, DAVID & DIANA BALDINO, STEPHEN
133 TACOMA 129 TACOMA 211 TACOMA
TROY       MI 48084-5424 TROY       MI  48084-5424 TROY       MI 48084-5460

88-20-28-428-026 88-20-28-428-027 88-20-28-431-010
WERNER III, JOHN & LEE ANNE ZALOT, ROBERT & WENDY RUMSEY, RODNEY & FAITH
183 TACOMA 163 TACOMA 124 TACOMA
TROY       MI 48084-5424 TROY       MI  48084-5424 TROY       MI 48084-5425

88-20-28-431-011 88-20-28-431-012 88-20-28-431-013
WILSON, GARY & CAROL URE, DEBORAH A URE, DEBORAH A
112 TACOMA 90 TACOMA 90 TACOMA
TROY       MI 48084-5425 TROY       MI  48084-5423 TROY       MI 48084-5423

88-20-28-431-017 88-20-28-431-018 88-20-28-431-026
MUZZY, ERIC & KRISTI BART, MADELIENE SAVAGE, RALPH M & KELLY
42 TACOMA 28 TACOMA 70 TACOMA
TROY       MI 48084-5423 TROY       MI  48084-5423 TROY       MI 48084-5423

88-20-28-432-004 88-20-28-432-005 88-20-28-432-017
ABITHEIRA, GARY SAVAGE, RALPH & KELLY STOLARCZYK, VIOLA
178 LARCHWOOD 41 TACOMA 125 TACOMA
TROY       MI 48083-1630 TROY       MI  48084-5422 TROY       MI 48084-5424

88-20-28-432-018
HARTMAN, MELANIE A
99 TACOMA
TROY       MI 48084-5422

 
Tacoma
Special Assessment
Mailing Labels

4/28/2005



Parcel ID Owner 1 # Street Frontage % Total Owners SAD Share
88-20-28-427-010 Bise, Edwin C & Anna L 230 Tacoma 86.96 3.70 2 1,702.51
88-20-28-427-011 Bise, Edwin C & Anna L 0 Vacant 20.00 0.85 2 391.56
88-20-28-427-012 Bise, Edwin C & Anna L 0 Vacant 60.00 2.55 2 1,174.69
88-20-28-427-017 Bise, Edwin C & Anna L 154 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 2 978.91
88-20-28-427-020 McComb & Assoc 138-148 Tacoma 100.00 4.26 1 1,957.81
88-20-28-427-021 McComb & Assoc 130-132 Tacoma 130.00 5.53 1 2,545.16
88-20-28-427-022 Tadian Investments 186-190 Tacoma 95.00 4.04 1 1,859.92
88-20-28-427-023 Tadian Investments 176-180 Tacoma 95.00 4.04 1 1,859.92
88-20-28-428-004 Gleeson, Michael & Doreen 195 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 2 978.91
88-20-28-428-008 Heydel, Robert & Deborah 0 Vacant 50.00 2.13 2 978.91
88-20-28-428-009 Heydel, Robert & Deborah 151 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 2 978.91
88-20-28-428-010 Knight, Joe & Betty 137 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 2 978.91
88-20-28-428-011 Antanaitis, Peter 133 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 1 978.91
88-20-28-428-012 Kurmas, David & Diana 129 Tacoma 80.00 3.40 2 1,566.25
88-20-28-428-025 Baldino, Stephen 211 Tacoma 156.60 6.67 1 3,065.94
88-20-28-428-026 Werner III, John & Lee Anne 183 Tacoma 75.00 3.19 2 1,468.36
88-20-28-428-027 Zalot, Robert & Wendy 163 Tacoma 75.00 3.19 2 1,468.36
88-20-28-431-010 Rumsey, Rodney & Faith 124 Tacoma 80.00 3.40 2 1,566.25
88-20-28-431-011 Wilson, Gary & Carol 112 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 2 978.91
88-20-28-431-012 Ure, Deborah 0 Vacant 50.00 2.13 1 978.91
88-20-28-431-013 Ure, Deborah 90 Tacoma 50.00 2.13 1 978.91
88-20-28-431-017 Muzzy, Eric & Kristi 42 Tacoma 100.00 4.26 2 1,957.81
88-20-28-431-018 Bart, Madeliene 28 Tacoma 58.00 2.47 1 1,135.53
88-20-28-431-026 Savage, Ralph & Kelly 70 Tacoma 150.00 6.38 2 2,936.72
88-20-28-432-004 Abitheira, Gary 71 Tacoma 200.00 8.51 1 3,915.63
88-20-28-432-005 Savage, Ralph & Kelly 41 Tacoma 158.00 6.72 2 3,093.35
88-20-28-432-017 Stolarczyk, Viola 125 Tacoma 125.00 5.32 1 2,447.27
88-20-28-432-018 Hartman, Melanie 99 Tacoma 55.00 2.34 1 1,076.80

Totals 2,349.56 100.00 44 46,000.00

46,000.00

City of Troy - Assessing Department
SAD Spread

Tacoma Street Bituminous Paving



May 2, 2005 
 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
 Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Services 
 Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Re: Agenda Item - Petition Analysis, Paving of Olympia SAD# 05.201.1 
 
 
 
 
Attached is a petition from residents and property owners on Olympia, in Section 
28, requesting asphalt paving of the streets, and the creation of a Special 
Assessment District to finance the project. 
 
There are twenty-eight (28) separate parcels in the project area.  Twenty-three 
(23) of the affected parcel owners have signed the petition in favor of the project.  
This equates to 82.14% of the owners being in favor of the paving, representing 
79.25% of the frontage. 
 
It is recommended that you request City Council approve Standard Resolution #1 
(preparation of plans and cost estimates for the project), Standard resolution #2 
(approval of the cost estimates, and directing the Assessor to create the roll), and 
Standard Resolution #3 (setting a Public Hearing for the project) as submitted. 
 
 
 
Nl/nl 

morrellca
Text Box
F-14











licarila
Text Box





City of Troy - Assessing Department
Olympia Street Paving SAD Shares

Parcel ID Owner # Street Frontage % Total Owners Signed Valid % Signed
88-20-28-426-007 Copenhagen, Rose Marie 244 Olympia 100.00 4.77 1 1 1 4.77
88-20-28-426-011 Castle, Robert 316 Olympia 80.00 3.82 1 1 1 3.82
88-20-28-426-012 Castle, Robert 300 Olympia 70.00 3.34 1 1 1 3.34
88-20-28-426-013 LK Partners LTD PTN 330 Olympia 158.64 7.57 1 1 1 7.57
88-20-28-426-015 McComb, Charlene 226 Olympia 100.00 4.77 1 1 1 4.77
88-20-28-426-016 Visner, Michael & Sharon 208 Olympia 130.00 6.21 2
88-20-28-427-001 Walls, Florence 337 Olympia 58.28 2.78 1 1 1 2.78
88-20-28-427-002 Blome, Robert& Judy Vacant 50.00 2.39 2 2 1 2.39
88-20-28-427-003 Blome, Robert & Judy 325 Olympia 50.00 2.39 2 2 1 2.39
88-20-28-427-004 Lamm, Adixie 317 Olympia 56.00 2.67 1 1 1 2.67
88-20-28-427-005 Lupsha, William & Eleanor 299 Olympia 94.00 4.49 2 2 1 4.49
88-20-28-427-006 Gregorczyk, Richard 249 Olympia 100.00 4.77 1
88-20-28-427-024 McComb & Assoc 233 Olympia 127.91 6.11 1 1 1 6.11
88-20-28-427-026 McComb & Assoc 207 Olympia 66.09 3.15 1 1 1 3.15
88-20-28-427-027 Ghilezan, Mihai 187 Olympia 61.00 2.91 1 1 1 2.91
88-20-28-430-005 Thomas, Maria 94 Olympia 50.00 2.39 1
88-20-28-430-016 Fowler, Kal 130 Olympia 95.00 4.53 1
88-20-28-430-018 Khan, Mahbubul & Silvania 174 Olympia 75.00 3.58 2 2 1 3.58
88-20-28-430-019 Mountford, David 160 Olympia 60.00 2.86 1
88-20-28-431-002 Sackner, Michael & Beverly 159 Olympia 100.00 4.77 2 2 1 4.77
88-20-28-431-003 Sackner, Barbara Vacant 50.00 2.39 1 1 1 2.39
88-20-28-431-004 Sackner, Barbara Vacant 50.00 2.39 1 1 1 2.39
88-20-28-431-005 Sackner, Barbara 71 Olympia 50.00 2.39 1 1 1 2.39
88-20-28-431-006 Sackner, Barbara Vacant 50.00 2.39 1 1 1 2.39
88-20-28-431-007 Sackner, Barbara Vacant 50.00 2.39 1 1 1 2.39
88-20-28-431-008 Fessler, Julia 51 Olympia 50.00 2.39 1 1 1 2.39
88-20-28-431-009 Dylewski, Melvin & Ann 35 Olympia 58.00 2.77 2 2 1 2.77
88-20-28-431-027 McComb, Geraldine 169 Olympia 55.00 2.63 1 1 1 2.63

Totals 2,094.92 100.00 35 29 23 79.25

Cost



Page 1 of 1City of Troy GIS Online

2/7/2005http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&For...

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box
330

licarila
Text Box
316 & 318

licarila
Text Box
300

licarila
Text Box
244

licarila
Text Box
226

licarila
Text Box
208

licarila
Text Box
174

licarila
Text Box
160

licarila
Text Box
130 & 146

licarila
Text Box
94

licarila
Text Box
337

licarila
Text Box
325

licarila
Text Box
317

licarila
Text Box
299

licarila
Text Box
249 & 257

licarila
Text Box
233

licarila
Text Box
207 & 209

licarila
Text Box
187

licarila
Text Box
169

licarila
Text Box
159

licarila
Text Box
71

licarila
Text Box
51

licarila
Text Box
35

licarila
Text Box
158.64

licarila
Text Box
80.00

licarila
Text Box
70.00

licarila
Text Box
100.00

licarila
Text Box
100.00

licarila
Text Box
100.00

licarila
Text Box
100.00

licarila
Text Box
130.00

licarila
Text Box
75.00

licarila
Text Box
60.00

licarila
Text Box
95.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
58.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
58.28

licarila
Text Box
56.00

licarila
Text Box
94.00

licarila
Text Box
127.91

licarila
Text Box
66.09

licarila
Text Box
61.00

licarila
Text Box
55.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
50.00

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Pencil

licarila
Pencil

licarila
Pencil

licarila
Pencil

licarila
Pencil

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes

licarila
Text Box
Yes



     Preliminary Cost Estimate February 17, 2005

Project Location: Olympia Street
Project No.: 05.201.1
Proposed Improvement: 1,200 lf, 24' Bituminous Asphalt Pavement with Underdrain

Item      Quantity Description Unit Cost Total Cost
SAD Share - Asphalt Section (1,200')

1. 540 Tons Bit. Mix No. 500, 20C - 3" 45.00         24,300.00       
2. 270 Tons Bit. Mix No. 1100T, 20AA - 1 1/2" 50.00         13,500.00       
3. 75 Tons Bit. Mix No. 1100T, 36B - 4" Driveway 100.00       7,500.00         
4. 300 Tons 21AA Aggregate for Shoulders 20.00       6,000.00         

Sub-Total 51,300.00       

Engineering, Admin. And Contingencies, 25% 12,700.00       
Maintenance Savings (18,000.00)      
Total Special Assessment Share - Asphalt 46,000.00       

City Share
5. 200 SY Remove Pavement 10.00         2,000.00         
6. 27 Each Remove Culvert 150.00       4,050.00         
7. 300 CY Earth Excavation 10.00         3,000.00         
8. 150 CY Subgrade Undercut 35.00         5,250.00         
9. 3,500 SY Grading 3.00           10,500.00       

10. 1,200 Tons Aggregate Base, 21AA 20.00         24,000.00       
11. 300 CY Subbase 15.00         4,500.00         
13. 400 LF 12" Storm Sewer 35.00         14,000.00       
14. 300 LF 15" Storm Sewer 42.00         12,600.00       
15. 200 LF 18" Storm Sewer 50.00         10,000.00       
16. 15 Each 4' Dia. Manhole 1,700.00    25,500.00       
17. 30 Each 2' Dia. Drainage Structure 850.00       25,500.00       
18. 2,400 LF 8" Edge Drain 25.00         60,000.00       
19. 21 Each Relocate Mailbox Post 100.00       2,100.00         
20. 2 Each Reconstruct/Adjust Structure 500.00       1,000.00         
21. 2,400 LF Ditching 5.00           12,000.00       
22. 4,000 SY Turf Restoration Incidental

Sub-Total 216,000.00     

Engineering, Admin. And Contingencies, 25% 54,000.00       
Maintenance Savings 18,000.00       
Total City Share 288,000.00     

TOTAL PROJECT COST 334,000.00     

Prepared by:  Gary Streight
\\G\Projects\Projects - 2005\05.201.1 - Olympia Street SAD\Preliminary Cost Estimate for Olympia Street.xls



88-20-28-426-007 88-20-28-426-011 88-20-28-426-012
COPENHAGEN, ROSE MARIE CASTLE, ROBERT E CASTLE, ROBERT E
244 OLYMPIA 300 OLYMPIA 300 OLYMPIA
TROY          MI 48084-5417 TROY         MI 48084-5455 TROY          MI 48084-5455

88-20-28-426-013 88-20-28-426-015 88-20-28-426-016
LK PARTNERS LTD PTN MC COMB, CHARLENE VISNER, MICHAEL & SHARON
19785 W 12 MILE STE 596 226 OLYMPIA 208 OLYMPIA
SOUTHFIELD    MI 48076-2584 TROY         MI 48084-5417 TROY          MI 48084-5417

88-20-28-427-001 88-20-28-427-002 88-20-28-427-003
WALLS, FLORENCE BLOME, RONALD BLOME, RONALD
337 OLYMPIA 325 OLYMPIA 325 OLYMPIA
TROY          MI 48084-5456 TROY         MI 48084-5456 TROY          MI 48084-5456

88-20-28-427-004 88-20-28-427-005 88-20-28-427-006
LAMM, ADIXIE J LUPSHA, WILLIAM & ELEANO GREGORCZYK, RICHARD
317 OLYMPIA 299 OLYMPIA 1502 OTTOWA
TROY          MI 48084-5456 TROY         MI 48084 ROYAL OAK     MI 48073-4726

88-20-28-427-010 88-20-28-427-024 88-20-28-427-026
BISE, EDWIN C MC COMB & ASSOC IV MC COMB & ASSOC III
230 TACOMA 6911 LIVERNOIS 6911 LIVERNOIS
TROY          MI 48084-5459 TROY         MI 48098-1572 TROY          MI 48098-1572

88-20-28-427-027 88-20-28-430-005 88-20-28-430-016
GHILEZAN, MIHAI I THOMAS, MARIA FOWLER, KAL
187 OLYMPIA 94 OLYMPIA 3210 N MAIN
TROY          MI 48084 TROY          MI 48084-5415 ROYAL OAK     MI 48073-3424

88-20-28-430-018 88-20-28-430-019 88-20-28-431-002
KHAN, MAHBUBUL & SILVAN MOUNTFORD, DAVID G SACKNER, MICHAEL & BEVER
174 OLYMPIA 160 OLYMPIA 159 OLYMPIA
TROY          MI 48084 TROY          MI 48084 TROY          MI 48084-5453

88-20-28-431-003 88-20-28-431-004 88-20-28-431-005
SACKNER, BARBARA J SACKNER, BARBARA J SACKNER, BARBARA J
12199 MANIER ROAD 12199 MANIER ROAD 12199 MANIER RD
ATLANTA       MI 49709-9802 ATLANTA      MI 49709-9802 ATLANTA       MI 49709-9802

88-20-28-431-006 88-20-28-431-007 88-20-28-431-008
SACKNER, BARBARA J SACKNER, BARBARA J FESSLER, JULIA C
12199 MANIER RD 12199 MANIER RD 51 OLYMPIA
ATLANTA       MI 49709-9802 ATLANTA      MI 49709-9802 TROY          MI 48084-5414

88-20-28-431-009 88-20-28-431-027
DYLEWSKI, MELVIN J & AUDR MC COMB, GERALDINE
35 OLYMPIA 169 OLYMPIA
TROY          MI 48084-5414 TROY         MI 48084-5453

 



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Olympia Street Paving SAD Shares

Parcel ID Owner # Street Frontage % Total Owners SAD Share
88-20-28-426-007 Copenhagen, Rose Marie 244 Olympia 100.00 4.77 1 2,195.79
88-20-28-426-011 Castle, Robert 316 Olympia 80.00 3.82 1 1,756.63
88-20-28-426-012 Castle, Robert 300 Olympia 70.00 3.34 1 1,537.05
88-20-28-426-013 LK Partners LTD PTN 330 Olympia 158.64 7.57 1 3,483.40
88-20-28-426-015 McComb, Charlene 226 Olympia 100.00 4.77 1 2,195.79
88-20-28-426-016 Visner, Michael & Sharon 208 Olympia 130.00 6.21 2 2,854.52
88-20-28-427-001 Walls, Florence 337 Olympia 58.28 2.78 1 1,279.71
88-20-28-427-002 Blome, Robert Vacant 50.00 2.39 1 1,097.89
88-20-28-427-003 Blome, Robert 325 Olympia 50.00 2.39 1 1,097.89
88-20-28-427-004 Lamm, Adixie 317 Olympia 56.00 2.67 1 1,229.64
88-20-28-427-005 Lupsha, William & Eleanor 299 Olympia 94.00 4.49 2 2,064.04
88-20-28-427-006 Gregorczyk, Richard 249 Olympia 100.00 4.77 1 2,195.79
88-20-28-427-024 McComb & Assoc 233 Olympia 127.91 6.11 1 2,808.63
88-20-28-427-026 McComb & Assoc 207 Olympia 66.09 3.15 1 1,451.20
88-20-28-427-027 Ghilezan, Mihai 187 Olympia 61.00 2.91 1 1,339.43
88-20-28-430-005 Thomas, Maria 94 Olympia 50.00 2.39 1 1,097.89
88-20-28-430-016 Fowler, Kal 130 Olympia 95.00 4.53 1 2,086.00
88-20-28-430-018 Khan, Mahbubul & Silvania 174 Olympia 75.00 3.58 2 1,646.84
88-20-28-430-019 Mountford, David 160 Olympia 60.00 2.86 1 1,317.47
88-20-28-431-002 Sackner, Michael & Beverly 159 Olympia 100.00 4.77 2 2,195.79
88-20-28-431-003 Sackner, Barbara Vacant 50.00 2.39 1 1,097.89
88-20-28-431-004 Sackner, Barbara Vacant 50.00 2.39 1 1,097.89
88-20-28-431-005 Sackner, Barbara 71 Olympia 50.00 2.39 1 1,097.89
88-20-28-431-006 Sackner, Barbara Vacant 50.00 2.39 1 1,097.89
88-20-28-431-007 Sackner, Barbara Vacant 50.00 2.39 1 1,097.89
88-20-28-431-008 Fessler, Julia 51 Olympia 50.00 2.39 1 1,097.89
88-20-28-431-009 Dylewski, Melvin & Ann 35 Olympia 58.00 2.77 2 1,273.56
88-20-28-431-027 McComb, Geraldine 169 Olympia 55.00 2.63 1 1,207.68

Totals 2,094.92 100.00 46,000.00

46,000.00



Memorandum 

 

To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration  

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration  

  
Date: April 13, 2005 
  
Date: April 13, 2005 

Re: Agenda Submittal: Charter Revisions – 2005 Proposed Charter Committee Referrals  Re: Agenda Submittal: Charter Revisions – 2005 Proposed Charter Committee Referrals  

The following submittals are general housekeeping items tied to the Election Consolidation 
Legislation Implementation process. Additionally, there is a recommendation that Charter 
Sections 7.5 and 7.5.5 be renumbered to realign them to Section 3.4 and to title Section 
7.5.5. The following proposed changes to the Charter implement the odd-year November 
cycle and provide for the staggering of terms: 
 
Section 3.4 – Revised to incorporate Section 7.5, extend the Mayor’s and Council 
Member’s term length from three (3) to four (4) years, and to change the term ending time 
from 8:00 PM to 7:30 PM. The proposed time change is to eliminate the two meeting times 
on the Monday following the election. 
 

Section 3.4 – Elective Officers and Terms of Office: 
The elective officers of the City shall be the six (6) members of Council and the Mayor 
all of whom shall be nominated and elected from the city at large for the terms provided 
herein. City Council Members and the Mayor shall be elected for terms of  four (4) 
years and shall serve until  7:30 PM on the first Monday following the regular election 
of the  fourth year of their term. 

 
Section 3.4.1 – Revised to realign Section 7.5.5 – “Elective Officers Term Limitations” to fall 
under Section 3.4 Elective Officers Terms of Office and to provide for a title for the section. 
Additionally, language is included to incorporate a provision for a term less than two (2) 
years and one (1) month to be exempt from term limitation. 
 

Section  3.4.1 – Elective Officers Term Limitations 
An elected member of the City Council shall not serve more than three terms as 
Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two terms as Mayor.   Any 
service greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term.  This 

morrellca
Text Box
F-15



amendment shall apply only to terms starting after passage of this amendment.  
(11-08-94) 

 
Section 3.4.2 – Section inserted to provide for the balancing of staggered terms.  
 

Section 3.4.2 – Staggering Terms of Office: 
City Council Members with terms expiring April 2006 shall have their terms 
extended until November 2007; City Council Members with terms expiring April 
2007 shall have their terms extended until November 2007. The Mayor’s term, 
expiring April 2007, shall be extended until November 2007. The staggering of 
terms shall be established as follows: 
 

November 8, 2005 – Two (2) Council Members shall be elected for four (4) year 
terms with the terms expiring on November 9, 2009; 
November 6, 2007 – One (1) Council Member shall be elected for a two (2) year 
term with the term expiring on November 9, 2009; 
November 6, 2007 – Two (2) Council Members shall be elected for four (4) year 
terms with the terms expiring on November 14, 2011; 
November 6, 2007 – Mayor shall be elected for a four (4) year term with the 
term expiring November 14, 2011. 

 
Section 7.3 – Revised to change the election date to the odd-year November cycle. 
  

Section 7.3 - Election Date: 
A regular City election shall be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday of 
every odd year November. ,  

 
Section 7.6 – Revised to reference Michigan Election Law and the provisions for calling a 
Special Election.  
 

Section 7.6 - Special Election: 
Special city elections shall be called in the manner and time as provided by 
statute.  



 
 
DATE:   April 29, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal, Renewal 
   6881 Westaway 
 
 
 
 
On March 18, 2004, City Council approved an appeal for one year for the outdoor 
storage of a commercial vehicle on the residential property at 6881 Westaway.  That 
approval has now expired.  We have contacted the owner and he was given the option 
to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for renewal of the relief of the 
Ordinance. 
 
In response to our contact, Mr. Ermie has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of May 16, 2005. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

morrellca
Text Box
G-01a





 
 
 









 
Photo Taken By Building Department Staff 

 
 
 





 
 
DATE:   April 29, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing  

Parking Variance 3290 W. Big Beaver 
 
 
 
 
We have received an application from Sheffield Office II, L.L.C., to lease a portion of an 
existing office building at 3290 W. Big Beaver for medical offices.  The proposal would 
result in 19,669 square feet of the existing 154,083 square foot building being used for 
medical offices with the remaining 134,414 square feet being used for general office.  
Section 40.21.70 of the Zoning Ordinance requires that a minimum of 705 parking 
spaces be provided on this site with this arrangement.  The plans submitted with the 
application indicate that there are only 619 parking spaces available on the site.  In 
response to our denial of the building permit, the applicant has filed an appeal for the 
deficiency of the 86 spaces.   
 
A Public Hearing has been scheduled for your meeting of May 16, 2005 in accordance 
with Section 44.01.00.   
 
We have enclosed copies of the petitioner’s application for your reference.  We will be 
happy to provide additional information regarding this request if you desire. 
 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning  

morrellca
Text Box
G-01b



 



 



 
 



 1

May 2, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (MAY 16, 

2005) FOR REZONING APPLICATION – South side of Henrietta Avenue, 
south of Big Beaver Road and east of Rochester Road, Section 27 – R-1E 
to P-1 (Z 695) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and compatible 
with surrounding land uses and zoning districts.  Rezoning the property to P-1 Vehicular 
Parking Zoning District will allow the applicant to expand his off-street parking facilities 
and add viability to his property.  At the same time, the rezoning will offer protection to 
the abutting residential property to the east, as off-street parking will be the only 
permitted use.  A 4.5-foot high masonry wall is required to be constructed on the 
eastern property line, to provide a buffer with the residential parcel to the east.  On April 
12, 2005. the Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request.  
City Management concurs with the Planning Commission recommendation. 
 
 
HISTORY OF PARCEL 
 
On May 11, 2004 the Planning Commission recommended denial of the application.  On 
August 9, 2004 City Council instructed the Planning Commission to look at the potential 
installation of an E-P zoning buffer located between the proposed rezoning property and 
the adjacent residences with attention given to grade as it might affect development. 
 
The City and Village Zoning Act, PA 207 of 1921, was amended in January 2005 to 
allow communities conditional approval of rezoning applications based upon specific 
use and design conditions; provided they are requested voluntarily by the applicant.  
The applicant met with the Planning Department to develop a site plan for a proposed 
overflow parking area.  The applicant originally proposed adding a landscaped berm as 
a buffer between the parking lot and the residence to the east.  The applicant indicated 
that the resident to the east preferred a screen wall rather than a landscaped berm.  
The site plan was amended to provide a masonry wall to assist in buffering the P-1 
property from the abutting residential property to the east.  It should be noted that the 
wall design represents the minimum requirement under the provisions of the P-1 district.  

morrellca
Text Box
G-01c



 2

During this process, the City Attorney’s Office determined that the conditional rezoning 
approach should not be used as written due to a lack of appropriate standards to be 
used in its application (see attached memo).  The applicant has requested that the 
Planning Commission consider the rezoning application, including the site plan.  Note 
that an E-P buffer was not proposed on the site plan. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Arnold D. Becker. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of Henrietta Avenue, south of Big Beaver 
Road and east of Rochester Road, in Section 27. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 10,880 square feet in area, or 0.25 acres. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is currently vacant. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1E One Family Residential District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
P-1 Vehicular Parking District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to construct a paved parking area with a 4.5-foot high screen 
wall on the eastern property line, as required when adjacent to a residential zoning 
district. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Off-street parking area. 
South: Off-street parking area. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Kaufman’s Auto Body and a vacant commercial building.   
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: P-1 Vehicular Parking.  
South: O-1 Office Building. 
East: R-1E One Family Residential. 
West: P-1 Vehicular Parking. 
 



 3

ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed Zoning District and Potential Build-out Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 Premises in such Districts shall be used only as off-street vehicular parking areas, 

and shall be developed and maintained subject to such regulations hereinafter 
provided. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Henrietta Street. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention.  
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  
There is no specific plan designation for P-1 Vehicular Parking in the Future Land Use 
Plan.  The only use permitted within the P-1 zone is off-street parking.  The off-street 
parking area will provide additional parking for uses that are zoned B-3.  The B-3 Zoning 
District has a primary correlation with the Non-Center Commercial classification.  Based 
on this reasoning, the application complies with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards 
There are no location standards for the P-1 Vehicular Parking Zoning District. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Memo prepared by Assistant City Attorney dated April 7, 2005. 
3. Minutes from April 12, 2005 Planning Commission meeting. 
4. Minutes from August 9, 2004 City Council meeting. 
5. Minutes from May 11, 2004 Planning Commission meeting. 
6. Photographs of site. 
 

cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 695) 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-695 Becker Property Sec. 27\Announcement of CC Public Hearing 05 09 05.doc 















PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 695) – Proposed Becker 

Overflow Parking Area, South side of Henrietta, East of Rochester Road, Section 
27 – From R-1E to P-1 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report and a brief 
history of the proposed rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the rezoning application 
because it is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and is 
compatible with surrounding land uses and zoning districts.  He noted that the 
City Council asked the Planning Commission to consider zoning a strip of land 
along the eastern property line to E-P.   
 
Chair Strat said the grade difference shown on the site plan effectuates a 6.5-foot 
masonry wall on the residential side of the development, but he clearly noted that 
the site plan should not be a consideration in the approval process of the 
rezoning request.   
 
Mr. Schultz indicated that a potential water problem could result from the 
difference in grade.   
 
Mr. Savidant noted that the Engineering Department, upon a cursory review of 
the site plan, indicated the water problem could be addressed.   
 
Eileen Youngerman of 35 W. Huron, Pontiac, was present to represent the 
petitioner.  Ms. Youngerman, a certified property manager for Arnold Becker for 
17.5 years, said the primary purpose of the proposal is to create an overflow 
parking area and square off the property to make it more of a viable location for 
tenancy.  She said the perceived lack of parking by potential tenants has resulted 
in a vacant building for a very long time.  Ms. Youngerman said the project 
engineering team is also present this evening should the members wish to 
address any questions to them. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Nancy Haynes of 1046 Henrietta, Troy, was present.  Ms. Haynes, who lives east 
of the proposed parking lot, said she has talked extensively with Ms. Youngerman 
about the proposal.  Ms. Haynes says she does not want to live next door to a 
parking lot or to two vacant lots, and said it is a “catch 22” situation.  She voiced 
concerns with respect to potential flooding, potential users of the parking lot (i.e., 
restaurant customers), and noise.  Ms. Haynes said the petitioner has tentatively 
agreed to put up signs that the parking lot is for office users only and to keep the 
dumpster in its current location closer to the office building.   
 
Chair Strat informed Ms. Haynes that she would have an opportunity to voice her 
concerns again at the time of site plan approval.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 

Ms. Drake-Batts asked if Ms. Haynes would prefer the property remain as is or 
have it rezoned.   
 
Ms. Haynes said she was not sure.  She reflects on last summer when the weeds 
were growing and the mosquitoes were breeding.  Ms. Haynes said she would 
prefer the masonry wall as opposed to the berm.  Ms. Haynes confirmed she was 
opposed to the rezoning originally, but thinks she has just come to terms with the 
matter.   
 
Mark Kozlow of 1058 Henrietta, Troy, was present.  Mr. Kozlow said he would like 
to see a plan that takes care of the residences in the area as well as the office 
building property owner.  He said the houses are surrounded by industry and are 
limited with respect to building out and market appeal for resale.  Mr. Kozlow also 
noted industrial development is limited because of the size of the lots.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he is not comfortable with rezoning the area from residential to a 
parking lot and that there is no control after the property is rezoned.  Mr. Vleck 
said screen walls are not appropriate buffers because they are not decorative.  
He said the City is shortchanging residents by slowly letting commercial in the 
area and suggested that it might be appropriate to conduct a special study on the 
area.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said a study is not necessary on the area because there is a 
plan in place.  The Future Land Use Plan designates the area as something 
other than residential.  Mr. Chamberlain addressed the piecemeal development 
in the area.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts asked if there was a guarantee the screen wall would be erected 
should the property be rezoned.  
 
Mr. Miller said there would be no guarantee because (1) the property might be 
rezoned but never built and (2) the petitioner might seek a variance or waiver 
from the Board of Zoning Appeals.  Mr. Miller said the Planning Commission 
would review the proposed development at the time of site plan approval.  He 
noted the minimum Zoning Ordinance requirements would have to be met, and 
the Planning Department would encourage the petitioner to provide additional 
landscaping for a better transition.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she does not think the property should be rezoned until 
there is a tenant in the building.   
 
Mr. Schultz recapped that should the rezoning request be approved, there is no 
guarantee that the screen wall would be constructed, and the property owner has 
the right to leave the property as it currently is with no improvements; therefore 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 

the adjacent resident would still have a weed pile next to her and no screen wall 
for years to come in the future. 
 
Chair Strat commented on the office vacancy in the City and said it would be 
easier to lease the building with an approval already from the City to build the 
parking lot.  He also noted that there would be a continuous straight line of 
zoning along the southern and northern property lines, so the rezoning would not 
be considered “spot” zoning.  Chair Strat indicated he would be voting in favor of 
the rezoning for those reasons.   
 
Mr. Khan indicated support of the rezoning because it would be difficult to lease 
the building if parking is insufficient.  Mr. Khan said to give the petitioner the 
benefit of the doubt that the property would be improved.   
 
A brief discussion was held with respect to the current parking requirements on 
the site. 
 
Mr. Miller said the general parking requirements for retail is 1:200, and that the 
site currently meets the minimum parking requirements.  Mr. Miller confirmed that 
should the parking lot be built, it would allow expansion opportunities for the 
existing building. 
 
Mr. Vleck cited previous developments that were rezoned to parking because the 
petitioners claimed there was not enough parking for the buildings; and upon 
approval of the rezoning requests, the property owners used the option to add to 
their existing buildings and ended up with the same amount of parking.  Mr. Vleck 
said that City Council requested the Planning Commission to look at the potential 
installation of an E-P zoning buffer.  Mr. Vleck said he would be more 
comfortable utilizing the State law to allow the condition of rezoning approvals 
upon specific use and design conditions.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said it appears the additional parking would be just a plus in 
leasing the property because the current parking is sufficient for the existing 
building.  Ms. Drake-Batts said she would consider the rezoning request when 
there is a plan; and in her perspective, what was submitted is not a plan. 
 
Mr. Miller said the petitioner has the right to request the rezoning and the request 
should be reviewed in relation to the City’s Future Land Use Plan.  Mr. Miller 
reviewed the Future Land Use Plan with respect to the residential use and the 
planned commercial-type uses.  It is Mr. Miller’s opinion that the rezoning request 
is appropriate as configured.   
 
Chair Strat said he is hopeful that should the rezoning request be approved, it 
would act as a catalyst to expand the facility and improve the appearance of the 
existing building.  He addressed the significance of the site because of its 
gateway location.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 

Resolution # PC-2005-04-047 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1E to P-1 (Z-695) rezoning request located on the south side 
of Henrietta and east of Rochester, within Section 27, being 0.25 acres in size, 
be granted, for the following reason:  
 
1. It is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat 
No: Drake-Batts, Vleck, Wright 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck stated that the City Council sent the rezoning request back to the 
Planning Commission for consideration of an environmentally protected zone and 
that option was not discussed.  Mr. Vleck said he believes expanding this 
particular area next to residential at this point in time is not the appropriate 
action.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said her opinion has been made clear from her previous 
comments.  
 
Mr. Wright agreed with the comments of Mr. Vleck.  Mr. Wright said the request 
is premature at this time and he would like to see some consolidation of parcels 
in this area that would realize a better plan.   

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final August 9, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

C-2 Rezoning Application (Z-#402-C) – North Side of Big Beaver, West of John R Road, 
Section 23 – E-P to O-1 and R-1E to E-P  

 
Resolution #2004-08-392 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the E-P to O-1 and R-1E to E-P rezoning request, located on the north side 
of Big Beaver Road, west of John R Road, Section 23, being 11.08 acres in size, is hereby 
GRANTED, as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
C-3 Rezoning Application (Z-#695) – South Side of Henrietta Avenue, South of Big 

Beaver Road and East of Rochester Road – Section 27 – R-1E to P-1 (Z-#695) 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1E to P-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of Henrietta 
Avenue, south of Big Beaver Road and east of Rochester Road, Section 27, being 10,880 
square feet in size, is hereby DENIED. 
 
Proposed Amended Resolution by Substitution 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Beltramini    
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED BY STRIKING it in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTED with, “RESOLVED, That the R-1E to P-1 rezoning request, located on the south 
side of Henrietta Avenue, south of Big Beaver Road and east of Rochester Road, Section 27, 
being 10,880 square feet in size, is hereby RETURNED to the Planning Commission.” 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Proposed Amended Resolution by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2004-08-393 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Amendment to the Amended Resolution by Substitution be 
further AMENDED by INSERTING, “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council 
INSTRUCTS the Planning Commission to look at the potential installation of an E-P zoning 
buffer located between the proposed rezoning property and the adjacent residences with 
attention given to grade as it might affect development.” 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final August 9, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

Vote on Amendment Resolution as Amended to Proposed Amended Resolution by 
Substitution  
 
Resolution #2004-08-394 
Moved by Eisenbacher     
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED BY STRIKING it in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTED with, “RESOLVED, That the R-1E to P-1 rezoning request, located on the south 
side of Henrietta Avenue, south of Big Beaver Road and east of Rochester Road, Section 27, 
being 10,880 square feet in size, is hereby RETURNED to the Planning Commission; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council INSTRUCTS the Planning 
Commission to look at the potential installation of an E-P zoning buffer located between the 
proposed rezoning property and the adjacent residences with attention given to grade as it 
might affect development.” 
 
Yes: All-7 
  
Vote on Substituted Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2004-08-395 
Moved by Lambert      
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1E to P-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of Henrietta 
Avenue, south of Big Beaver Road and east of Rochester Road, Section 27, being 10,880 
square feet in size, is hereby RETURNED to the Planning Commission; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council INSTRUCTS the Planning 
Commission to look at the potential installation of an E-P zoning buffer located between the 
proposed rezoning property and the adjacent residences with attention given to grade as it 
might affect development. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  
 
D-1 Authorization for the City Manager to Work with the Planning Commission Relative 

to Neighborhood Compatibility Issues 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Manager is AUTHORIZED to work with the Planning Commission to 
develop ordinance language that will address the relationship of accessory and/or add-on 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 11, 2004 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 11, 2004 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z-695) – Proposed Becker 
Overflow Parking Area, South Side of Henrietta, East of Rochester Road, Section 
27 – From R-1E to P-1 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Strat asked why consideration is not being given to rezoning the parcel to O-
1.  He said there is potential to having a parking area surrounded by light 
industrial or office buildings.  Mr. Strat said it seems more appropriate to use the 
entire site. 
 
Mr. Miller replied that the City is responding to the petitioner’s request for a 
rezoning to the P-1 classification, and the Planning Department would review 
other alternative zoning classifications should they be submitted.   
 
Mr. Vleck questioned the parking calculations in relation to the building size.   
 
Discussion followed with respect to the parking calculations in relation to the 
existing building and the potential expansion of the existing building.  Mr. Miller 
did not know if the existing building could be expanded, given the size of the lot.   
 
Mr. Wright said the petitioner might be requesting a parking zoning classification 
instead of office because the property as a parking lot would most likely be 
assessed at a lower value.   
 
Mr. Vleck said that residents are generally not in favor of office or parking 
developments adjacent to their residences.  Mr. Vleck asked for details on the 
required screening to the residents.  
 
Mr. Miller said the subject parcel is designated as non-center commercial on the 
Future Land Use Plan.  He said the designation has a primary correlation with 
the B-3 zoning classification and a secondary correlation with the H-S zoning 
classification.  Mr. Miller said there is no correlation to office zoning, but noted 
there is some office zoning in the area.  Mr. Miller confirmed the west side of 
Rochester Road is zoned B-2.  
 
Mr. Wright said if memory serves him correctly, the intent of the Master Plan for 
that area is to consolidate the individual pieces of property to one large piece that 
would accommodate a large commercial center, the same intent for the parcels 
on the west side of Rochester Road.   
 
The petitioner, Eileen Youngerman of 35 W. Huron, Pontiac, was present.  Ms. 
Youngerman, property manager for Arnold Becker, has worked for Mr. Becker for 
almost 17 years.  She said that Mr. Becker is requesting the rezoning to provide 
off-street parking as an attraction to prospective tenants.  Ms. Youngerman 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 11, 2004 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 11, 2004 

stated the screening wall to the adjacent residential homes would be consistent 
with the previous wall and would provide the residents with more of a buffer from 
the office use.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Nancy Haynes of 1046 Henrietta, Troy, was present.  Ms. Haynes voiced 
objection to the rezoning because the parking lot would be right up against her 
living room and bedroom.  She said the existing office building has been empty 
for almost two years, with the exception of the sale of Persian rugs for a short 
period of time.  Ms. Haynes referenced the parking lot that connects with the 
American Transmission parking lot.  She said today she counted 25 cars in 
various stages of decay that she is afraid will overflow into the proposed parking 
lot.  Ms. Haynes objected to the lights, noise and overall nuisances from the 
existing restaurant and bar.  She said the proposed parking lot is not necessary 
because the office building is not currently occupied.   
 
Mr. Miller said the screening wall would be poured concrete at a height of 4.5 
feet.   
 
Chair Waller stated the zoning ordinance contains specific language relating to 
the shielding of lights from residential property, and informed Ms. Haynes to 
notify the Building Department with lighting concerns.   
 
Mark Kozlow of 1058 Henrietta, Troy, was present.  Mr. Kozlow voiced objection 
to the proposed rezoning because he would like to see a plan to cover the whole 
area, and he would like to maintain the fair market value of his home.  Mr. 
Kozlow noted that the existing building has been vacant for approximately two 
years, and it appears that the petitioner has no plans for the use of the property.  
Mr. Kozlow said the previous business at this location did not require additional 
parking.  
 
Jena Carrington of 1062 Henrietta, Troy, was present.  Ms. Carrington, the only 
homeowner on Henrietta with children, moved specifically to the area so her 
children could attend Troy schools.  Ms. Carrington emphasized that this is their 
home.  Ms. Carrington voiced objection to the proposed rezoning.  She said there 
is no reason to put in a parking lot for a building that has been sitting empty for 
two years.  She said there is plenty of space for a business to come in and there 
is no need to add parking until there is a plan.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Discussion continued on the lot configuration, setback requirements for the 
building and screening wall, and parking requirements for the existing building 
and potential buildout of the existing building.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he does not see P-1 zoning as a transition zone to residential.  Mr. 
Vleck said that should the property be rezoned to P-1, there is a potential for 
building expansion and a more intense use.  
 
Mr. Strat said he is not in favor of the proposed rezoning because the petitioner 
has not demonstrated a need or a plan for the rezoning.  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 11, 2004 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 11, 2004 

Ms. Drake-Batts asked the petitioner why she is requesting the rezoning now.  
She asked if there is a prospective tenant or if there are plans for redevelopment.  
 
Ms. Youngerman responded that one of the reasons the building is vacant is 
because they got caught up in the “S” curve of Rochester Road.  She said Mr. 
Becker, who owned Corey Dinette, put the store in that location so the building 
would not remain vacant.  Ms. Youngerman indicated the real estate agent is 
having difficulty getting a prospective commercial tenant (preferably office) 
because of the lack of parking adjoining the building.  She pointed out that a 
prospective tenant goes elsewhere when he/she sees inadequate parking for a 
potential of 25 to 30 employees.  Ms. Youngerman said it is proposed to provide 
a 20-foot greenbelt between the screening wall and the parking lot.   
 
Mr. Khan said he does not think the proposed rezoning would be suitable with 
respect to the small lot size of the adjacent residential homes and the required 
screening wall.  He said doing piecemeal rezoning of the parcels would not solve 
the matter.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he is vehemently against rezoning both parcels because there 
would be no control of the parcels.   
 
Mr. Wright agreed that the proposed rezoning is premature and he would like to 
see the parcels developed as one big area.  Mr. Wright said that should the 
parcel be rezoned to P-1, the result would be a parking classification in the 
middle of other zoning classifications. 
 
Mr. Miller reported the schematic site plan shows a 20-foot setback from the 
proposed parking area.  Mr. Miller reminded the Commission that the Planning 
Department does not review schematic site plans at the time of rezoning 
submissions, and noted the City cannot require any conditions on schematic site 
plans.  Mr. Miller stated that the schematic site plan was not included in the 
Commission’s meeting packet.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-05--- 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1E to P-1 (Z-695) rezoning request located on the south side 
of Henrietta and east of Rochester, within Section 27, being 0.25 acres in size, 
be denied, for the following reason:  
 
1. Such rezoning is premature at this time. 
 
Discussion on the motion. 
 
Mr. Vleck asked that the motion be revised to read that the P-1 zoning’s close 
proximity to the existing residential area is an inadequate buffer zone when 
compared to the residential. 
 
Mr. Wright and Ms. Drake-Batts had no objection to the revision. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 11, 2004 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MAY 11, 2004 

Resolution # PC-2004-05-059 (as amended) 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1E to P-1 (Z-695) rezoning request located on the south side 
of Henrietta and east of Rochester, within Section 27, being 0.25 acres in size, 
be denied, for the following reasons:  
 
1. Such rezoning is premature at this time. 
 
2. The P-1 zoning’s close proximity to the existing residential area is an 

inadequate buffer zone when compared to the residential.   
 
Vote on the motion as amended. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

 









 
 
 
 
May 2, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (MAY 16, 

2005) FOR ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – 
Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory 
Buildings Definitions and Provisions 

 
City Council participated in a Special/Joint Meeting of the City Council and Planning 
Commission on March 28, 2005.  City Manager John Szerlag moderated an interest-
based discussion related to accessory building footprint ratios, garage door height and 
commercial vehicle regulations.   
 
The Planning Commission intends to discuss this item at the May 3, 2005 Special/Study 
meeting.  They will discuss a revised draft ZOTA 215-A based on the convergence of 
opinion achieved at the March 28 Special/Joint Meeting.  Further, a Public Hearing has 
been scheduled for this item at the May 10, 2005 Planning Commission Regular meeting.  
The purpose of this aggressive schedule is to expedite this item, at the request of City 
Council. 
 
A draft ZOTA is not available at this time because the Planning Commission has not made 
a recommendation on a draft ZOTA. 
 
A Public Hearing has been scheduled for May 16, 2005 to solicit public comment on this 
item. 
 
 
cc: File/ ZOTA 215-A 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\Announcement of CC Public Hearing ZOTA 215A 05 09 05.doc 

morrellca
Text Box
G-01d



CITY OF TROY 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI on Monday, May 16, 2005, at 7:30 P.M., or as soon 

thereafter as the agenda will permit, to consider amending the text of Article IV 

Definitions and Article XL General Provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

The proposed amendments would revise the text with regard to the definition of 

Accessory Buildings, Accessory Supplemental Buildings and Accessory Structures and 

revise the text with regard to the regulation of Accessory Buildings, Accessory 

Supplemental Buildings and Accessory Structures including placement, height and area. 

 

 

 

 
 
You may express your comments regarding this matter by e-mail to 
planning@ci.troy.mi.us, by contacting the Planning Department at (248) 524-3364, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 

      
 ____________________________________ 

       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk  
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 



holmesba
Text Box
G-02a



DATE:   May 3, 2005 
  

TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/ Finance & Administration 

Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk  

   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Revisions to Chapter 97 and Chapter 60 

Of the Troy City Code  
   Coin Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades 
 
Staff has been working with representatives of CEC Entertainment, the parent company 
of Chuck E. Cheese, who are interested in opening up one of their facilities in the City of 
Troy.  They are looking at occupying a portion of the existing commercial building 
located at 740 John R, that was most recently occupied by a Gateway Computer store.  
Since a significant portion of their business is generated from coin operated amusement 
devices, the provisions of Chapter 97 of the Troy City Code are applicable.  In reviewing 
those provisions, they have identified some regulations that would require substantial 
deviations from their operation of other facilities in the region.  They have asked that 
City Council consider possible revisions to Chapter 97, in order to address their 
concerns. 
 
A revision to Chapter 97 that was approved in 2004 basically divided facilities that have 
coin operated amusement devices into three categories.  They are: 

1. Facilities that generate less that 5% of their income from coin operated 
amusement devices.  (A retail facility, restaurant, or bar that has a few machines but is 
not an arcade) 

2. Facilities that generate between 5% and 33% of their income from coin operated 
amusement devices.  (commonly referred to as a family entertainment center such as 
Chuck E. Cheese, Major Magic, Ceasarland, etc.) 

3. Facilities that generate more than 33% of their income from coin operated 
amusement devices.  (typical arcades, as well as Jillian’s, Dave and Buster’s, etc.) 
 
In reviewing their data from other similar facilities in the State, they have found that their 
current percentage of income from the coin operated amusement devices is 32.7%.  
While at this percentage they would qualify for the second category of arcades, they 
have some concern since they are just tenths of a percentage point from the third 
category.  They have asked your consideration of modifying the ordinance to use 35% 
as the upper limit for the second category. 
Another provision of the 2004 amendment was to eliminate the 300-foot separation 
requirement between facilities and residentially zoned properties for the second 
category of arcades.  However, when this revision was made, no modification was 
made to the companion restriction that prohibited other arcades from being located 
within 1,500 feet of another arcade.  CEC’s proposed location on John R is within 1,500’ 

morrellca
Text Box
G-02b





PROPOSED REVISIONS TO CHAPTER 97 OF THE TROY CITY CODE 
 
4.  Location.  
 

A.  No arcade is permitted on any property unless the property is zoned B-3 
(Commercial) as defined in the Zoning Ordinance for the City of Troy.  

B.  No arcade, where the income from coin-operated amusement devices 
exceeds thirty-three five (33%35%) percent of the income of the principal 
business, is permitted in any part of a building when the building is within 
three hundred (300) feet of a residential zoning district.  

C.  No arcade, where the income from coin-operated amusement devices 
exceeds thirty-five (35%) percent of the income of the principal business, 
is permitted on any part of a lot which is within fifteen hundred (1500) feet 
of a building containing another arcade where the income from coin-
operated amusement devices exceeds thirty-five (35%) percent of the 
income of the principal business.  

D.  No license for an arcade or coin-operated amusement device shall be 
issued for any place, premises, establishment or room unless located 
within a building in which persons assemble for amusement, 
entertainment, or recreation, classified as an Assembly Use Group in the 
current edition of the Michigan Building Code, as adopted in Chapter 79, 
Section 8.1-1 of the City of Troy Ordinance.  

 
 

7  D.  Only one license for each coin operated amusement device per one 
hundred (100) square feet of floor area of the area where the coin-
operated amusement devices are located may be issued for a facility, 
when they are to be located in an arcade unless the facility it is located in 
a wholly enclosed shopping mall that contains ing more than four hundred 
thousand (400,000) square feet of gross floor area, as long as provided 
the arcade does not have a public entrance directly to the outside of the 
shopping mall, and that the shopping mall has a uniformed security guard 
on duty at all times in the shopping mall, and further that the hours of 
operation of the arcade do not exceed the hours of operation of the 
shopping mall. Licenses may be issued to an arcade located in a wholly 
enclosed shopping mall as follows:  

 
Licenses per 100 Sq. Ft.  

Floor Area (Sq. Ft.)  of Floor Area  
0 - 800   1.0  
800 -1400   1.5  
1200 1400 - Up   2.25. (maximum 120 devices)  

 
8. C.  (8) Permit the possession or use of any alcoholic beverage on the 

premises, nor shall the licensed premises be accessible with any place where 
alcoholic beverages are kept, sold, distributed, or given away unless the 
licensed premises possesses a Michigan Liquor Control Commission license.  



 
8. C.  (9)  Permit the possession or use of a controlled substance, 
including marijuana, on the premises.  
 
8. C. (10) Permit noise or music to emerge from the licensed premises  
which is disturbing to the persons in the surrounding area.  
 
8. C. (11) Permit the premises to become a nuisance.  
 
9.  Hours of Operation. No person shall operate or cause to be operated in 

the City any mechanical amusement device between the hours of 2:00 
a.m. and 7:00 a.m. of the official time of the City, except on Sundays when 
the prohibited hours shall be between 2:00 a.m. and 12:00 noon9:00 a.m.. 
In establishments other than arcades, the hours of operation shall coincide 
with the hours of the principal use. 

 
14.  Counting Devices. Coin-operated amusement must be equipped with a 

counting device so that the amount of revenue from the coin-operated 
amusement can be ascertained, so that  a determination can be made that 
the enterprise falls within the five (5%) percent or thirty-three five 
(33%35%) percent limitation by correlation of gross receipts there from 
with the financial statement of the business. The licensee shall be required 
to record, certify and maintain such records for a period of two (2) years. 

 







CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 97 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 97, Coin-
Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment
 
Section 4 of the Ordinance shall be amended to read as follows: 
 
4.  Location.  
 

A.  No arcade is permitted on any property unless the property is zoned B-3 
(Commercial) as defined in the Zoning Ordinance for the City of Troy.  

B.  No arcade, where the income from coin-operated amusement devices 
exceeds thirty-five (35%) percent of the income of the principal business, 
is permitted in any part of a building when the building is within three 
hundred (300) feet of a residential zoning district.  

C.  No arcade, where the income from coin-operated amusement devices 
exceeds thirty-five (35%) percent of the income of the principal business, 
is permitted on any part of a lot which is within fifteen hundred (1500) feet 
of a building containing another arcade where the income from coin-
operated amusement devices exceeds thirty-five (35%) percent of the 
income of the principal business.  

D. No license for an arcade or coin-operated amusement device shall be issued 
for any place, premises, establishment or room unless located within a 
building in which persons assemble for amusement, entertainment, or 
recreation, classified as an Assembly Use Group in the current edition of the 
Michigan Building Code, as adopted in Chapter 79, Section 8.1 of the City of 
Troy Ordinance.  

 
Section 7 of the Ordinance shall be amended to read as follows: 

 
7  D.  Only one license for each coin operated amusement device per one 

hundred (100) square feet of floor area  where the coin-operated amusement 
devices are located may be issued for a facility, unless the facility  is located in a 
wholly enclosed shopping mall that contains  more than four hundred thousand 
(400,000) square feet of gross floor area, as long as  the arcade does not have a 
public entrance directly to the outside of the shopping mall, and that the shopping 
mall has a uniformed security guard on duty at all times, and  that the hours of 
operation of the arcade do not exceed the hours of operation of the shopping 



 

  

mall. Licenses may be issued to an arcade located in a wholly enclosed shopping 
mall as follows:  

 
Licenses per 100 Sq. Ft.  

Floor Area (Sq. Ft.)  of Floor Area  
0 - 800   1.0  
800 -1400   1.5  
1400 - Up   2.25. (maximum 120 devices)  

 
Section 8 of the Ordinance shall be amended to read as follows: 

 
8. C.  (8) Permit the possession or use of any alcoholic beverage on the 

premises, nor shall the licensed premises be accessible with any place where 
alcoholic beverages are kept, sold, distributed, or given away unless the 
licensed premises possesses a Michigan Liquor Control Commission license.  

 
8. C.  (9)  Permit the possession or use of a controlled substance, 
including marijuana, on the premises.  
 
8. C. (10) Permit noise or music to emerge from the licensed premises  
which is disturbing to the persons in the surrounding area.  
 
8. C. (11) Permit the premises to become a nuisance.  
 

Section 9 of the Ordinance shall be amended to read as follows: 
 
9.  Hours of Operation. No person shall operate or cause to be operated in 

the City any mechanical amusement device between the hours of 2:00 
a.m. and 7:00 a.m. of the official time of the City, except on Sundays when 
the prohibited hours shall be between 2:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m.. In 
establishments other than arcades, the hours of operation shall coincide 
with the hours of the principal use. 

 
Section 14 of the Ordinance shall be amended to read as follows: 
 

14.  Counting Devices. Coin-operated amusement must be equipped with a 
counting device so that the amount of revenue from the coin-operated 
amusement can be ascertained, so that a determination can be made that 
the enterprise falls within the five (5%) percent or thirty-five (35%) percent 
limitation by correlation of gross receipts therefrom with the financial 
statement of the business. The licensee shall be required to record, certify 
and maintain such records for a period of two (2) years. 

 
 



 

  

Section 3.  Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the 
extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  Savings
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 5.  Severability Clause
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
______ day of ____, 2005. 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
      City Clerk    



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Section 60.03, Fee Schedule shall be amended to incorporate the following:    

 

ITEM/SERVICE: FEE: 
Amusement Devices (Chapter 97)  
Application $100.00 
Coin-Operated Amusement Device – 2 to 5 units $100.00 each 
Coin-Operated Amusement Device – More than 5 units $50.00 each 
Arcade $500.00 each
Rides Mechanical  
Per day $20.00 
Annual Fee $100.00 
Annual Fee: Amusement Place - Not otherwise specified $50.00 
 
Section 3.  Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 

 



Section 5.  Severability Clause
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ______ day of ____, 2005. 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
      City Clerk    
 

 



Troy Local Development Finance Authority  - MINUTES June 29, 2004 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) was held on Tuesday, 
June 29, 2004 at 12:00 P.M., at City Hall in the Council Board Room.  Mayor Pro Tem Beltramini 
called the meeting to order at 12:08 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
PRESENT: Robin Beltramini, Mayor Pro Tem 
 Doug Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Dennis Toffolo 
 John Szerlag, City Manager 
ABSENT: Mike Adamczyk 
 Keith Pretty 
  
ALSO PRESENT: Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney 
 Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
 
 
ROLL CALL AND EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution # LD-2004-06-004 
Moved by Smith  
Seconded by Toffolo 
 
RESOLVED, That Adamczyk and Pretty be excused. 
 
Yes:   All - 4 
No:   None 
Absent:  2: Adamczyk, Pretty 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
Resolution # LD-2004-06-005 
Moved by Smith  
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of June 1, 2004 be approved. 
 
Yes:   All - 4 
No:   None 
Absent:  2: Adamczyk, Pretty 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01a



Troy Local Development Finance Authority  - MINUTES June 29, 2004 
 
 

 2

 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Update of State Treasurer Ratification of Automation Alley TIF 
B. Signage for Automation Alley Technology Park:  

  Two sign samples were on display in the parking lot.  Smith will work with Tom 
 Anderson to work up general specifications and to get a feel for the price range.   
 To send letters to Oakland County and Liberty re: possibility of sharing sign costs. 
C. Models and Tools Financial Incentives:  

Per State of Michigan, reimbursement for moving fixed equipment is not an eligible 
expenditure for the LDFA.  Staff will keep working with the company. 

 
 
INFORMATION ITEM ATTACHMENTS 
 
Smith reviewed the following: 

 Automation Alley Coordinating Council October 9, 2003 Minutes 
 Automation Alley Coordinating Council June 23, 2004 Minutes 
 Approval of Recommendation for Marketing 

 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 12:54 p.m. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Mayor Pro Tem Robin Beltramini, Meeting Chair 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



FINAL 
BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

MINUTES 
December 16, 2004 

 
 

A Meeting of the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority was held on Thursday, 
December 16, 2004 in Conference Room C at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan. The meeting was called to order by Bruce Wilberding at 3:05 p.m.    
 
 
PRESENT:  Art Cotsonika – Arrived 3:27 PM 

Larry Goss 
Katherine Lee 
Victor Lenivov 
Robert Swartz 
Lon Ullmann 
Bruce Wilbering (Chairman)  

 
ABSENT:  None 
 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 

Doug Smith, Secretary/Treasurer 
Jim Nash, Financial Services Director 

 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # BRA 2004-08 
Moved by:  Lenivov 
Seconded by:  Ullmann 
 
Resolved, that the BRA approve the minutes of the April 15, 2004 meeting. 
 
Yeas:  All (7) 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Update on Masco Corporation /Preston Trucking  
Doug Smith indicated nothing new on Masco and Preston Trucking.  They were 
under consideration to be purchased by a local developer. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Jim Nash presented the audited financial statements. 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01b



Audited Financial Statements – June 30, 2004 
 
Resolution # BRA 2004-09 
Moved by:  Swartz 
Seconded by:  Lee 
 
Resolved, that the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2004, 
were received and filed. 
 
Yeas:  All (7) 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:45 p.m. 
 
The next meeting scheduled is January 20, 2005. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bruce Wilberding, Chairman 
 
 
__________________________ 
Doug Smith, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
BRA Minutes  
12-16-04 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – AMENDED – Final  February 9, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, February 9, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:15 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 David A. Lambert 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 John Szerlag  
 
ALSO PRESENT: Laura Fitzpatrick 
   
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 02 - 005 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the January 12, 2005 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
AMENDED ITEM - RETIREMENT REQUEST 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 02 – 005A 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Houghton 
 
RESOLVED, That the following retirement requests be approved: 
 
William Scyphers, Department of Public Works, DB, 3/19/05, 31 years, 2 months 
Marlene Haack, Assessing, DB, 4/23/05, 16 years, 2 months 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01c



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – AMENDED – Final  February 9, 2005 
 
 

 2

OTHER BUSINESS – ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 02 - 006 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board elect Thomas Houghton as Chairman and Steven A. Pallotta 
as Vice chairman. 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 02- 007 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That the following investments be purchased and sold: 
Purchase:  $5,000 Ford Motor Credit, 5% due 2/20/08; 5,000 shares Kimeo; 3,000 shares 
Lowe’s; 10,000 shares Oracle; 5,000 shares O’Reilly Automotive. 
Sell:  Lancaster Colony; Liberty Media International; Liberty Media International A; 
Matthews International; Medco Health Solutions and sell Alliance Technology Fund and 
Purchase shares of Seligman Communication & Info Mutual Fund. 
 
5,000 shares Goldman Sachs; 5,000 shares Hartford Financial Services; 5,000 shares 
Honeywell International; 5,000 shares Independent Bank Corp; 5,000 shares Jack Henry 
and Associates 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
The next meeting is March 9, 2005 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:00 p.m.  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Houghton, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2005\2-09-05 Minutes_Amended - Final.doc 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISTION MINUTES–FINAL FEBRUARY 15, 2005 
 
A specially scheduled Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was held 
Tuesday, February 15, 2005 at the Troy Museum. Dean Blythe called the meeting to 
order at 7:40 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Dean Blythe 
  Marjorie Biglin  
  Ann Partlan 
  Paul Lin 
  Barbara Chambers 
  Robert Hudson 
  Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
  Yilin Zhang, Student Representative 
 
  ABSENT: Muriel Rounds 
 
The members welcomed new Historic District Commissioner, Robert Hudson. While 
Council has approved Mr. Hudson, he has not yet signed the oath book and will not vote 
at this meeting.     
     
Resolution #HDC-2005-02-001 
Moved by Chambers 
Seconded by Partlan 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Rounds be excused. 
Yes: 5 Blythe, Biglin, Partlan, Lin and Chambers 
No: 0 
Abstain: 1Hudson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution #HDC-2005-02-002 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Chambers 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the November 30, 2004 meeting be approved. 
Yes: 5 Blythe, Biglin, Partlan, Lin and Chambers  
No: 0 
Abstain: 1Hudson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Election of New Officers 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01d



2 

Resolution #HDC-2005-02-003 
Moved by Blythe  
Seconded by Biglin 
 
RESOLVED, That Anne Partlan be selected the new Historic District Commission 
Chairperson. 
Yes: 4 Blythe, Biglin, Lin and Chambers  
No: 0 
Abstain: 2Partlan, Hudson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution #HDC-2005-02-003 
Moved by Biglin  
Seconded by Partlan 
 
RESOLVED, That Barbara Chambers  be selected the new Historic District 
Commission Secretary. 
Yes: 4 Blythe, Biglin, Lin, and Partlan  
No: 0 
Abstain: 2Chambers, Hudson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
B. “Big Beaver” Community 

Designation of the old “Big Beaver” neighborhood might present a situation 
where the homeowners embrace preservation for economic and preservation 
reasons.   
 

C. Walk-ins 
None. 

 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Strategic Plans Reports 
1. Certified Local Government 

Loraine Campbell presented the draft application. She will forward it on to 
the SHPO office for final review. 
 

Resolution #HDC-2005-02-004 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Biglin 
 



3 

RESOLVED, That upon favorable review by the State Historic Preservation Office, 
the application for Certified Local Government be submitted to City Council per 
the attached memo.  
Yes: 5 Blythe, Biglin, Lin, Partlan and Chambers  
No: 0 
Abstain: 1, Hudson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

2. Preservation Workshops  
There are currently not reservations for either workshop. 
 

3. Plaques for Historic Properties 
The Commission favors Modified Design #6. Dean will make changes. 

 
B. Update Historic District Study Committee 

The Study Committee has completed the final report for de-listing 2356 E. 
Long Lake and has submitted it to the Dept. of History Arts and Libraries for 
final review.  A follow-up letter has been mailed to Mr. William Davis of 5875 
Livernois. The Committee is finalizing their workflow for updating the 
inventory of historic resources 
 

C. Discussion: Notification process to HDC on proposed modifications to 
historic structures 
Barbara Chambers and Bob Hudson will speak with Alan Motzny and Mark 
Stimac regarding additional restrictions to new designations and new owners. 
 

D. Discussion: Historic Designation for Nature Center Barn 
Loraine updated the Commission on efforts to stabilize the “Little Barn” at the 
Farm Site. The HDC will discuss with the City attorney any limitations on 
historic designation of a city property. 
 
 

The Troy Historic District Committee Meeting was adjourned at 9:35 p.m.  The next 
regular meeting will be held Tuesday, March 15, 2005 at 7:30 p.m. at City Hall 
Conference Room C. 

 
                  
Ann Partlan 
Chairperson 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            March 3, 2005 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, March 
3 2005 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at 
10:10 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Jo Rhoads, Member 
 David Ogg, Member       Pauline Noce, Member 
 Bud Black, Member James Berar, Member 
 Merrill Dixon, Member    Marie Hoag, Member 
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent:   Bill Weisgerber, excused  
   
Visitors:    Mary Beth Halushka, Janet Jopke, Wendy Underwood, Art Gregory, Elaine 

Torvinen  
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-03-001 
Moved by Merrill Dixon 
Seconded by David Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of February 3, 2005 be approved as amended:  Mr. Berar would 
like to see benches installed by the tees at the driving range.  Jo Rhoads reported that Medi-
Go gave over 13,000 rides last year. 
 
Yes: 8        
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Carla introduced Elaine Torvinen, the senior program coordinator.  She is in charge of creative 
arts, sports, fitness, speakers, the flu shot clinic and the expo, and several other programs 
including emergency cell phones, the monthly movie, and bingo.   
 
Old Business 
 
Troy Senior Council Name Change:   JoAnn Thompson reported again that the City Attorney 
is willing to help them with the name change.  
 
Senior Centers in Neighboring Cities:  JoAnn Thompson reported that she had visited the 
Rochester Senior Center, and that it is very nice.  Committee members plan on visiting other 
centers when the weather gets better.       
 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01e



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            March 3, 2005 

2 

 
Shuffleboard:  The committee reviewed the letter that JoAnn Thompson wrote for submission 
to the Park Board regarding shuffleboard and bocce ball courts at the Community Center.  The 
letter and signatures will be forwarded to the Park Board for their March meeting.    
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Kim Haveraneck, President of Emerald Food 
Service, sent a letter to Committee members in lieu of attending the meeting (copy attached).  
Committee members agree that Emerald’s banquets are good, but that is not the issue.  They 
would still like to know what Emerald’s profit is from non-profit groups for SNACKS only, 
contending that groups that meet at the Community Center on a weekly or monthly basis do 
not have the funds to hire a caterer for their snacks and therefore do not use a caterer for this 
purpose.  The committee would like Kim to attend their April meeting so they can clarify their 
position.  Carla will invite her to the meeting. 
 
New Business 
 
School Board Tax Renewal:  Janet Jopke discussed the upcoming millage renewal, stressing 
that it will not increase taxes. The election will be held on May 3. 
 
Aging in Place:  The Committee discussed the information that Dave Lambert forwarded to 
them at their last meeting about aging in place, which is the current trend in elder care. 
 
Troy Daze:  Marie Hoag reported that there will not be a Senior Sensation day on 2005 due to 
budget cuts. 
 
WTRY:  James Berar reported that he has trouble reading the printing on the City’s cable TV 
station.   
 
 Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that the Park Board did not meet in February. 
 
Medi-Go:   Jo Rhoads reported that everything is going fine. 
 
Nutrition:  No report.  
    There were 1356 meals served on 22 days at the Community Center in September.   
Senior Program:  Carla reported that January sales at Creative Endeavors were up 111% 
over last year.   We do have enough seniors to start a new golf league at Sanctuary Lake. Both 
TESA workshops are full.  We are combining the craft show and garage sale into a flea 
market. 
    
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that they had a speaker from a medical supply company.  
 
Suggestion Box:   Carla reported that there were two suggestions – one about bringing a 
sack lunch into the lunchroom:  This is okay with the Area Agency on Aging.  Carla will check 
the catering contract.  There was a request to add another party bridge group.  Carla will check 
with group today to see if there is enough interest.   
 
JoAnn reported that she had received a suggestion to have real silverware in the lunchroom.   



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            March 3, 2005 

3 

There was also a suggestion that the newsletter be available for pick-up before the 1st of the 
month since those who get it by mail and email get it sooner.  Carla will make the newsletter 
available beginning the 27th of the month. 
 
Comments 
Jo Rhoads reported that room 302 was cold during the movie and during the PAL meeting. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at noon. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair      
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final March 9, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, March 9, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:10 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 
ABSENT: David A. Lambert 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 John Szerlag  
  
ALSO PRESENT: Laura Fitzpatrick 
  
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 03 - 008 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Houghton 
 
RESOLVED, That Lambert, Pallotta and Szerlag be excused. 
 
Yeas:  All 4 
Absent: Lambert, Pallotta, Szerlag 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 03 - 009 
Moved by Calice 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the February 9, 2005 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All 4 
Absent: Lambert, Pallotta, Szerlag 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01f



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final March 9, 2005 
 
 

 2

RETIREMENT REQUEST 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 03 - 010 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Houghton 
 
RESOLVED, That the request of Judith Ann Haselhuhn, DC, 5/13/05, 25 years, 8 months 
be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All 4 
Absent: Lambert, Pallotta, Szerlag 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – SUSPENDED PENSION CHAPTER 10 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 03 - 011 
Moved by Houghton 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney and Van Overbeke, Michaud & Timmony review the 
provisions of Chapter 10. 
 
Yeas:  All 4 
Absent: Lambert, Pallotta, Szerlag 
 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 03- 012 
Moved by Calice 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the following investments be purchased and sold: 
Purchase:  2,000 shares Schlumberger; 1,500 shares Reuters Group; 1,000 shares Roper 
Industries. 
Sell:  Superior Industries; Smuckers; Delphi 
 
Yeas:  All 4 
Absent: Lambert, Pallotta, Szerlag 
 
 
The next meeting is April 13, 2005 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:10 p.m.  
 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Final March 9, 2005 
 
 

 3

 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Houghton, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2005\3-09-05 Minutes_Final.doc 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                       March 14, 2005 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, March 14, 
2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman 
Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
   
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of February 14, 2005 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-004 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the February 14, 2005 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, L.L.C. (A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel 
licensed business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit 
(food), located at 200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, 
requests to transfer all membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01g



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                       March 14, 2005 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Delaware Limited Liability Company), wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as 
sole member through the transfer of 100% of the General and Limited 
Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to WHP Mezz 
Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby 
resulting in WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel 
Owner-2A, L.L.C.   [MLCC REQ ID# 190498]  “Paper” change in ownership only 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Brian Andrew, attorney for WHP 
Hotel Owner. 
 
Mr. Andrew stated that this paperwork transfer is to add Marriott International as a 
licensee of WHP Hotel Owner, a large hotel holding company.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-005 
Moved by Bennett 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, 
L.L.C. (A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel licensed 
business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit (food), located at 
200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, be allowed to transfer all 
membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability 
Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), 
wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as sole member through the transfer of 100% of 
the General and Limited Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to 
WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby resulting in 
WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. 
[MLCC REQ ID# 190498].  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2.   LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Distributor license, located 

at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in conjunction 
with proposed new Specially Designated Merchant license.   [MLCC REQ ID# 
276918]  Red Wagon Shoppe 

 
         LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Merchant license, located 

at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County.   [MLCC REQ ID# 276917]  



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                       March 14, 2005 
 

Page 3 of 3 

Present to answer questions from the Committee was Larry Farida.   
 
Before this agenda item was heard, Committee Chairperson, Max Ehlert, stated that he 
and Mr. Farida had a business relationship.  Thus, Mr. Ehlert elected to abstain from 
voting on this agenda item. 
 
Mr. Farida explained to the Committee that he owns the Wine Cellar in Clawson and 
intends to move his business across Maple Road into Troy (the former TCF Bank 
location).  He plans to request a variance to expand the building.  He will utilize the 
former bank vault as a temperature controlled room for his higher-priced wines. 
 
Sgt. Gordon stated that the City inspections had not yet been completed. 
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-006 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that LUV SUN, INC. be granted a new Specially Designated Distributor 
license, located at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in 
conjunction with proposed new Specially Designated Merchant license, subject to the 
approval of City inspections.  [MLCC REQ ID# 276918]. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Abstain: Ehlert 
Absent: None 
 
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-007 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Larry Farida. 
 
RESOLVED, that LUV SUN, INC. be granted a new Specially Designated Merchant 
license, located at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, subject to the 
approval of City inspections.   [MLCC REQ ID# 276917]. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Abstain: Ehlert 
Absent: None 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                       March 14, 2005 
 

Page 4 of 4 

3. TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., requests to transfer ownership of a 
2004 Class C license business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday Sales, 
located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.   “Paper” change for Bailey’s Pub and Grille 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for Fox & 
Hound of Michigan. 
 
Mr. Carlin explained to the Committee that this request was merely a paper transfer of 
ownership shares.   There will no be change in name or management.  
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-008 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., be allowed to transfer 
ownership of a 2004 Class C license business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday 
Sales, located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
4. BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 12 Months 

Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, Michigan 
48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under 
MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   [MLCC REQ ID# 267215]  Result of 
bankruptcy of Cooker’s restaurant 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for 
Cooker’s. 
 
This transfer will put Cooker’s liquor license in escrow.  Bank of America will then be 
able to sell the license in Oakland County at any location other than 5460 Corporate 
Drive.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-009 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Peard 
 
RESOLVED, that BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., be allowed to transfer ownership of 2004 
12 Months Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, 
Michigan 48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                       March 14, 2005 
 

Page 5 of 5 

MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   [MLCC REQ ID# 267215] 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 

 
Sgt. Gordon stated that there were nine sale-to-minor violations on March 3 & 4, 2005.  
The following establishments received the violations: 
 

• Café Sushi   1933 West Maple Road 
• Champps Americana 301 West Big Beaver Road 
• Ashoka Indian Cuisine 3642 Rochester Road 
• Portabella Restaurant 2801 West Big Beaver Road 
• Mon Jin Lau   1515 East Maple Road 
• Maggiano’s   2089 West Big Beaver Road 
• Jumbo Buffet   1555 East Maple Road 
• Mayur Indian Cuisine 5113 Rochester Road 
• Corradi’s Sports Bar 1090 Rochester Road 
 

 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

The Chairman, Matthew Kovacs, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, March 15, 2005, in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Lynn Drake-Batts 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 

Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
    
ABSENT:  Michael Hutson 
 
Motion by Fejes 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Hutson from this meeting as he is out of town. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. HUTSON CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF FEBRUARY 15, 2005 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of February 15, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Fejes, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 – Drake-Batts 
Absent: 1 – Hutson 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 15, 2005 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – RENEWAL REQUEST.  K-MART, 100 E MAPLE, for renewal of relief which 
will allow for an outdoor display of plant material in front of K-Mart along the north side 
of the fenced area and a four-foot section of the sidewalk at the west end of the 
building, adjacent to the building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by 
this Board on a yearly basis since 1978, which allows for an outdoor display of plant  

 1

morrellca
Text Box
J-01h



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
materials in front of K-Mart along the north side of the fenced area and four-foot section 
of the sidewalk adjacent to the building, at the west end of the building.  This display 
area is used for plants and flowers, and the variance is valid during the months of April 
through July.  This request has previously been subject to the petitioner providing a 
corral type fence to both enclose the area of the display and maintain a safe sidewalk at 
the same time.  This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of March 16, 
2004 and was granted a one-year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same 
and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
The petitioner was not present. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant K-Mart, 100 E. Maple, a one-year renewal of relief that will allow for 
an outdoor display of plant material in front of K-Mart along the north side of the fenced 
area and a four-foot section of the sidewalk at the west end of the building, adjacent to 
the building. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT RENEWAL OF VARIANCE FOR ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 –INTERPRETATION REQUEST.  GEORGE REED, BETTY REED & 
THOMAS KRENT, 3129 ALPINE, appealing the issuance of a building permit to 
construct a garage at 3129 Alpine. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are appealing the issuance of a building permit 
to construct a garage a 3129 Alpine.  In support of that appeal they are requesting 
interpretation of Sections 1.30.00, 2.30.00, 2.50.02, 4.20.01, 4.20.03, 4.20.65, 4.20.71, 
4.20.139, 10.10.00, 3.40.03 and 40.57.02 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance as they apply to 
that structure.  The permit for this structure was issued in 2003 because the structure 
was found to be in compliance with the requirements of the Troy Zoning Ordinance.  
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of February 15, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow City Staff to present a rebuttal to the petitioners’ objections to the 
construction of this building. 
 
The Building Department has received a written request from Howard & Howard 
Attorneys, representing the petitioners asking that this item be postponed until the 
meeting of April 19, 2005. 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he would like something in writing from the City Attorney’s 
Office indicating why this Board has the right to deal with this question of interpretation.  
Mr. Courtney further stated that he does not understand how this Board has the right to 
hear this item.  Mr. Courtney also said that if this Board is going to go back, after the 
fact, there are other buildings in Troy that he would like to act on.  Mr. Courtney believes 
this Board can only act on interpretation of uses for a building and not on the actual 
building itself. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that this was something the Attorneys planned to give to this Board 
regarding interpretation. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone this item until the meeting of April 19, 2005 as requested by the 
petitioner’s attorney. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Stimac had the City’s rebuttal ready at this time.  Mr. Stimac 
said that at the last meeting City Staff had indicated that they would provide a written 
response to this Board once they had the opportunity to review the petitioner’s 
submittal.  The City has not received this submittal at this time and City Staff is still 
awaiting a copy of the presentation that was done at the last meeting, which will also 
provide a copy for the public record.  In addition several Board members had requested 
a summary of the petitioner’s case and this has not been submitted yet.  Mr. Kovacs 
asked if Mr. Stimac had any discussion with the petitioner’s attorney indicating why 
there was a delay in receiving these documents.   Mr. Motzny indicated that he had 
been informed that Mr. Kingsepp recently had surgery and this could account for part of 
the delay.   
 
Mr. Kovacs feels that there is no reason not to honor the request of the petitioner to 
postpone this item. 
 
Vote on the motion to postpone this item until April 19, 2005. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF APRIL 19, 2005 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ROBERT KAGE, 718 ECKFORD, variance request 
for relief to maintain two (2) covered storage structures and a lean to attached to the 
existing pole building, constructed without first obtaining building permits. 
 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
two (2) covered storage structures and a lean-to attached to the existing pole building.  
These structures were constructed without first obtaining building permits.  The site plan 
submitted indicates an existing 1,829 square foot pole building with a 337 square foot 
lean-to attached to the rear and two covered storage buildings that are 200 square feet 
and 320 square feet in area.  The total area of all accessory buildings on this site is 
2,686 square feet.  Section 40.57.04 limits the total area of all accessory buildings on a 
site to 600 square feet or one-half of the ground floor area of the main building 
whichever is greater.  The ground floor area of the main building is 3,782 square feet; 
therefore, the total area of accessory buildings cannot exceed 1,891 square feet. 
 
The site plan submitted further indicates that the lean-to structure constructed on the 
rear of the pole building results in a 3’ setback to the rear property line.  Section 
40.57.05 requires a 6’ minimum setback from an accessory structure to any property 
line. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the pole barn on the property was done properly.  Mr. Stimac stated 
that this pole barn did comply with the requirements of the Ordinance.  Mr. Kovacs also 
stated that the structures that are housing this wood are very tall and asked if there was 
any type of regulation regarding the stacking of wood.  Mr. Stimac said that the height of 
accessory structures is limited to 14’.   
 
Mr. Courtney clarified that all three of these structures were built without Building 
Permits.  Mr. Stimac said that the original storage building does comply with the 
Ordinance; these three (3) additional accessory structures do not comply. 
 
Mrs. Jackie Kage was present and said that they burn a lot of wood both in their home 
and camping.  A couple of years ago they were scrambling for wood and got the 
opportunity to get this wood from a tree cutting company.  If they had to take the roofs 
off of the bins that store the wood, the alternative would be tarps, which Mrs. Kage 
thinks would be very unsightly.  The roofs over these bins keep the wood dry so they 
are able to use it.  The lean-to structure in the back is to keep items under it and out of 
the weather and once again, if they have to take it down the alternative would be tarps. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how they get the stacks of wood up and down.  Mr. Kage stated 
that they have a forklift that they use.  Mr. Courtney said that this does not sound like a 
normal residential vehicle. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if they would take the structures down when they use up all this wood.  
Mrs. Kage said that they plan on using wood all the time so they would remain full.  Mrs. 
Kage said that this company could keep bringing the wood.  Mr. Fejes asked what the 
wood was used for.  Mrs. Kage indicated that they burn the wood in their fireplace and 
also when camping.  Mr. Fejes then asked how they were built without first obtaining the  
 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
proper permits.  Mrs. Kage said that they did not believe these would be considered 
buildings, as they do not have sides.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if these structures could turn into another pole barn if a variance was 
granted.  Mr. Stimac said that the Zoning Ordinance identifies a building as a “roofed 
structure”.  Whether these structures have walls or not, does not impact the application 
of the Zoning Ordinance regarding the maximum allowable area.  Consideration of the 
request could place reasonable stipulations on the request.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if these structures were considered accessory buildings.  Mr. Stimac 
said that by definition of the Ordinance if they are used as an accessory to the main 
home, they are considered to be accessory structures.  Mr. Maxwell also said if the 
Board approved this, the variance for square footage of accessory structures would 
result in a variance of 795 square feet and a variance regarding the rear yard setback 
for the lean-to.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that a restriction could be placed on the 795 square foot variance 
indicating that it could not have walls.  He also indicated that he thinks this site is over-
built and there are a lot of accessory structures on the property.  Mr. Kovacs asked what 
kind of reasonable restrictions could be placed on this request so that these structures 
were not turned into more garages.  Mr. Stimac said that whatever restrictions are 
placed on this request must be clear both for the petitioner and the record.  If you want 
to restrict that it does not have sides on it that would have to be part of the motion; as 
well as the fact that it is used only to store firewood.  Mr. Stimac said that if a restriction 
was placed on the request that these structures must remain in their present state, that 
is something that would be difficult to interpret and enforce. 
 
Mrs. Drake-Batts asked what the hardship was.  Mrs. Kage said that if these structures 
were taken down, the wood would have to moved into the wooded area of the property 
and covered with tarps.  Mrs. Drake-Batts said that she does not feel this is a hardship.  
Mrs. Kage said that their neighbors don’t want to see this wood sitting with tarps on it.  
Mrs. Drake-Batts informed Mrs. Kage that the neighbors objected to what is in the yard 
now.  Mrs. Kage said that she brought in a petition with 26 signatures indicating that 
they would rather look at what they have than woodpiles covered with tarps. Mrs. 
Drake-Batts said that Mr. & Mrs. Kage could use up the wood that is presently on the 
site and take these structures down.  Mrs. Kage indicated that they would like to 
continue receiving a supply of wood and last winter burned four (4) bins of wood. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that Mrs. Kage stated she went through four (4) bins of wood this 
winter and asked how many bins were on the property.  Mr. Kage said that there are 
about forty 40-bins of wood on the property.  Mr. Kage said that there are also large 
bins and small bins and stated that there are about 100 face chords of wood on the 
property.  Mr. Kage also said that he uses the bins to keep the wood separated and 
eventually the bins would empty but he hoped it wouldn’t be for the next 10 or 15 years.   

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kage also has about seventy (70) trees on his property that need to come down, so 
he does not believe these bins will ever empty.  Mr. Kovacs said that basically there is 
about a five-year supply of wood on the property and asked Mr. Kage if he thought that 
was reasonable.  Mr. Kage said he thought it was and said the only reason he bought 
the forklift was to move the wood around.  If he has to take the structures down, he is 
going to move the wood off of the cement and put it on the ground and cover it with 
tarps.  Mr. Kage also said that he felt a lot of the wood would rot & create a problem 
with animals living in it.   
 
Mr. Kovacs also said that when he looked at this site, he saw two (2) motor homes, 
some ski-doos and wondered why these vehicles could not be moved into the pole 
barn.  Mr. Kage said that he farms and has a lot of equipment that he stores in this pole 
barn and likes to bring tools home to work on them.  Mr. Kovacs asked why the farm 
equipment was not kept up north, on the farm.  Mr. Kage said that he does not own any 
land, he rents the property he farms on. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked what Mr. Kage would have done if he had come to the Building 
Department, before he constructed these structures and was told that he was limited to 
1829 square feet.  Mr. Kage said that he knew he was at the maximum square footage 
allowed and did not believe he needed a Building Permit for these structures because 
they do not have walls.  Mr. Fejes said that there are complaints against them and the 
neighbors are worried about de-valuing their property, and asked if these structures 
could be brought more in line without requiring a variance.  Mr. Kage said that without a 
variance he would only be allowed sixty square feet and he does not consider that 
helpful at all.  Mr. Fejes said that he is having a problem with this request as it is a very 
large variance request and he does not see a hardship with the land.  Mr. Kage said 
that the hardship would be all the people around them that would have to look at the 
woodpiles covered with tarps.  Mr. Kage also said that one of his neighbors could not 
see the structures at all.  Mr. Kage indicated that he would like to see if the neighbors 
that were complaining also signed Mr. & Mrs. Kage’s petition indicating approval of 
these structures.  Mr. Fejes said that he is the one that is having a problem with this 
variance request as the variance runs with the land.  Mrs. Kage said that she felt the 
size of their property should be taken into consideration as it is four (4) acres and not in 
a subdivision. 
 
Mr. Kage said that no one can see into the yard during the summer because of the 
number of trees on the property.  Mr. Kage also said that he would be willing to take one 
of the buildings out as it would be relatively easy to remove, the other building was built 
around the trees.  The lean-to has a fiberglass roof and Mr. Kage believes the people 
behind him would rather see that than wood with a tarp.  Mr. Kage said that the problem 
is that he would only be allowed an additional sixty square feet with a variance and that 
does not give him enough room. 
 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked why the wood storage could not be reduced from five years to two 
years.  Mr. Kovacs said that right now there is a five-year capability of storing wood on 
the property and he understands that the neighbors would rather see structures than 
tarps all over the property, however, in his opinion he thinks the neighbors would also 
rather not see wood stored in bins all over the property.  The neighbor directly behind 
this property can see the lean-to and the barn.  Mr. Kovacs also said that there is an 
1829 square foot pole barn on the property that is larger than some peoples’ houses,  
and if he wants to have the wood and the farm equipment, he may have to choose 
between which he would like to store in the barn.  Mr. Kovacs said that he does not see 
a hardship that runs with the land.  Mr. Kage said that they were out of wood for several 
years and have now gotten the opportunity to get this wood and he would like to keep 
storing it in case they cannot get wood in the future.  Mr. Kage also said that there is a 
hedge row along the back of the property as well as a six (6’) high fence, and the only 
time the neighbor can see into the yard is when they go upstairs and have nothing 
better to do than to look out of their window.  Mr. Kage said that his hardship is that he 
is going to have a bunch of neighbors looking at piles of wood on the property and 
complaining about it. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that this wood is normally stored on cement and asked if these 
structures have to be removed, why the wood would not still be stored on the cement?  
Mr. Kage said that if he has to remove the structures, he is going to park a different 
trailer on the cement.  Mr. Courtney said that he feels they are choosing to create a 
problem.  Mrs. Kage said whether they get the variance or not they are going to 
maintain the firewood.  If necessary they will keep it covered with tarps.  Mrs. Kage said 
that they are going to keep the firewood and they are either going to keep the structures 
and have the wood under them, or they are going to store the firewood on the ground 
and keep it covered with tarps.  Mrs. Kage also said that they think it looks much better 
stored this way rather than on the ground.  Mr. Kage said that he cannot take the forklift 
on the dirt. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if what they were saying was that they were going to take the five 
years of wood out of the bins and dump it on the ground.  Mr. Kage said he would get 
rid of the bins as he would no longer have any use for them. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that if they stored that much wood on the ground, not in bins and not 
raised off the ground, they would be in violation of the Property Maintenance Code and 
would be cited.  Mr. Kage asked how much wood could be stored on the ground.  Mr. 
Stimac said that he can store as much wood as he wants as long as it does not become 
a nuisance.  100 face chords of wood stored on the ground would become a nuisance.  
Mr. Kage said that the way the wood is stored now is not a nuisance.  Mr. Stimac said 
that the buildings that cover the wood violate the Ordinance. 
 
 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked why they burn this wood.  Mr. Kage said that their house is over 3,000 
square feet and it does help with the heat bills and also that it adds a certain ambience 
to the house.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Winkleprins of 650 Eckford was present and his property is technically next door to 
718 Eckford as their backyards have the same depth.  Mr. Winkleprins said that they 
like to burn a lot wood too and they go through quite a bit every year as it adds 
ambience to the house and is a nice touch.  Mr. Winkleprins said that he always thought 
that in order for a structure to be considered a building, it  would have to have walls.  He 
considers the roof over these structures as canopies that are much more attractive than 
the tarps.  They are very thankful that the wood is consolidated the way it is rather than 
spread over a large area.  Mr. Winkleprins uses tarps to keep his wood dry, but thinks 
these structures are more appealing.  Mr. Winkleprins said that they cannot see the 
lean-to at all so he cannot comment on that, although he would much rather see what is 
there now instead of tarps.  He is in favor of granting this variance.  Mr. Kovacs asked if 
he had signed the petition brought in by Mr. & Mrs. Kage.  Mr. Winkleprins indicated that 
his wife had signed the petition. 
 
Mr. Roger Panella of 682 Eckford was present and stated that his house is to the north 
of this property.  The south side of his home faces these two (2) structures and does not 
find them to be an eyesore and is in favor of the variance, rather than the alternative of 
putting up tarps.  Mr. Kovacs asked if his name was also on the petition and Mr. Panella 
said that it was. 
 
Mr. Gary Blanck, 655 Thurber was present and said that his home is south of this 
property.  Mr. Blanck said that he does not have an objection to these structures and 
thinks it would be an eyesore if the wood was on the ground.   Mr. Blanck said that he 
would be concerned if the wood was on the ground with tarps as not only would it be an 
eyesore, but would also attract animals.  Mr. Blanck said that he had signed the petition 
and would like to see this variance request granted. 
 
Mr. John Hansen, 683 Thurber was present and said that his property backs up to Mr. 
Kage’s property and he is the most affected by these structures.  Mr. Hansen brought in 
pictures taken from his home and feels that the main eyesore is the lean-to attached to 
the pole barn.  Mr. Hansen said that he has lived there approximately seven years and 
always thought that Mr. & Mrs. Kage were living quite comfortably without all this wood 
on the property.  There is also a structure that has a tarp over it.  Mr. Hansen believes 
this structure will have an impact on the value of his property and sees this lean-to 
every day and thinks that Mr. Kage could get rid of some of the wood.  The buildings are 
approximately 14’  to 16’ high and there are several stacks of wood outside of these 
buildings also.  Mr. Hansen said that he wished he had come to him as he would have 
told him not to build a lean-to and also to stack the bins below six (6) feet, so they would 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
not be visible above the privacy fence line.  Mr. Hansen also said that he had to 
overcome this visual line of site to the lean-to and wondered if the Fire Department had 
any issues with this wood stacked up in this structure.  Mr. Kovacs asked if he had 
signed the approval petitioner.  Mr. Hansen said that when Mrs. Kage came by she 
asked the question as to whether the neighbors would rather see a wood cage or a tarp.  
Mr. Hansen indicated that the consensus of opinion was that they would much rather 
see a structure than a tarp, although he did not realize it would result in a lean-to and 
there are still tarps on the property covering wood.   If Mr. Hansen had known that these 
structures were going to be put on the property, he probably would not have bought this 
home.  Mr. Hansen said he does not want to create any animosity but he would rather 
not have the lean-to on the property.  Mr. Hansen also said that he does not believe Mr. 
Kage needs a five-year supply of wood stored on the property.  Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. 
Hansen about his signature on the petition and Mr. Hansen once again stated that his 
wife had signed the petition based on the fact that Mrs. Kage asked if they would rather 
have a wood structure than a tarp covering the wood. 
 
Mr. Nick Vitale, 641 Thurber was present and stated that his home is behind and to the 
south of this property.  Mr. Vitale said that he does not see the lean-to or the other 
structures on this property as his property is heavily wooded.  Mr. Vitale is in favor of 
this variance request and is concerned that the number of rodents would increase if the 
wood was stored on the ground.  Mr. Vitale also indicated that he had signed the 
petition. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written objections on file.  The Kages submitted a petition with twenty-
five (25) signatures indicating approval of the structures. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that it is his opinion that the best alternative is less wood.  Mr. 
Maxwell also said that he does not believe this much wood is reasonable in the City and 
the petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship that runs with the land and also feels that 
a lot of things that were brought up were a self-imposed hardship. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not see a hardship that runs with the land and would be 
inclined to make a motion to deny. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if the approvals on the petition were for a variance for the square 
footage of accessory structures, or an approval for a structure versus a tarp.  Mr. 
Kovacs said that the wording on the petition indicated that it was “petition for allowing 
residents at 718 Eckford to retain two pavilions on property to cover firewood”.  Mr. 
Courtney said that the sales pitch was that it was indicated that the wood would be 
under tarps.  Mr. Kovacs thinks that there is too much wood on this property and 
believes that this is a self-imposed hardship.  Mr. Kovacs also said that he thinks this  
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
much wood will bring down property values and thinks it is obtrusive to other residents 
in the area.   
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he feels the hardship is self-created. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Robert Kage, 718 Eckford, for relief to maintain two (2) 
covered storage structures and a lean-to attached to the existing pole building, resulting 
in 2,686 square feet of accessory buildings where 1,891 square feet is allowed. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
• Amount of firewood proposed to be stored is more than what would be 

reasonable for a single family home. 
• Variance is obtrusive to surrounding neighbors. 
• Variance would have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO DENY VARIANCE REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ROBERT KLEINSTIVER, 2877 DALEY, for relief to 
maintain an addition constructed without first obtaining a building permit that results with 
9.5’ rear yard setback where Section 30.20.09 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 20’ 
rear yard setback in M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
an addition constructed without first obtaining a building permit.  The site plan submitted 
indicates that this 10.5’ x 25.9’ addition was constructed with 9.5’ rear yard setback.  
Section 30.20.09 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 20’ rear yard setback for 
buildings located in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District. 
  
Mr. Robert Kleinstiver and his Attorney, were present.  Mr. Kleinstiver’s Attorney stated 
that Mr. Kleinstiver had been a property owner in the City of Troy for many years.  
Approximately 20 years ago Mr. Kleinstiver hired a contractor and assumed that this 
contractor pulled the necessary permits and met the requirements of the City when he 
put up this structure.  During the process of trying to sell this building, it was found that 
the structure was put up without a Building Permit.  This structure is part and parcel of 
this building.  Mr. Kleinstiver would like to retire and is trying to sell this building.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the sale of this building would be affected if this storage building 
had to be removed.  Mr. Kleinstiver’s Attorney said that the buyer would not continue 
with the purchase of this property. 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if a Building Permit was required if this variance was granted.  Mr. 
Stimac said that it would be appropriate to issue a Building Permit, which would also 
create a record for this structure. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Robert Kleinstiver, 2877 Daley, relief of the Ordinance to maintain an 
addition constructed with first obtaining a Building Permit that results with a 9.5’ rear 
yard setback where Section 30.20.09 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 20’ rear 
yard setback in M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an effect to surrounding property. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  VITO MITCHELL HOMES, L.L.C., 996 ECKFORD 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief to construct a house that will result in a proposed 
26.07’ front setback from the Rochester Road right of way where Section 30.10.04 
requires a 30’ minimum front yard setback in R-1C Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a single-family residence.  This lot located on the southeast corner of Eckford and 
Rochester is a double front corner lot.  As such, it has front setback requirements from both 
Eckford and Rochester Road.  Section 30.10.04 requires a 30’ minimum front setback in R-
1C Zoning Districts.  The site plan submitted indicates a proposed 26.07’ front setback from 
the Rochester Road right of way. 
 
Mr. Vito Mitchell was present and stated that they are looking to keep this home exactly 
like the rest of the homes on this street and will have the same square footage.  If they 
had to take off 4’ off the home would have the appearance of a “shotgun” type of house 
and would not look the same as the homes in the area. 
 
 
 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how taking off 4’ of the house would create a “shotgun” 
appearance.  Mr. Mitchell said that although 4’ does not seem like a lot it will bring the 
house in and the rooms would come in 2’ on each side of the home. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked to see the plan of the home and Mr. Mitchell gave the Board a plan to 
examine.  Mr. Kovacs asked if this was going to be a two-story home and Mr. Mitchell 
said it would be one-story ranch.  Mr. Kovacs then asked if they had to take 4’ off of the 
house what would happen to the footprint of the house.  Mr. Mitchell said that 
aesthetically it would look as though you were walking through narrow hallways to get to 
the bedrooms.  Mr. Mitchell also said that it would not fit in with the other homes in the 
area.  They are trying to make sure that this home looks like the surrounding homes, 
which will keep the property values up. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if there was any future expansion planned for Rochester Road.  Mr. 
Stimac said that this is the existing right of way along Rochester Road, which happens 
to be at the current ultimate right of way that is shown on the City’s Master 
Thoroughfare Plan.  This already does take into account any known future widening of 
Rochester Road. 
 
Mr. Mitchell also said that in order to keep the house secluded from Rochester Road, 
they are going to put in a berm with pine trees.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if a variance would be required if this was not a double front corner 
lot.  Mr. Stimac said that the lot is 85’ wide and if it was not a double front corner lot, he 
would need 10’ on each side and basically could build a 65’ wide house.  Mr. Kovacs 
asked if the house could be rotated to face Rochester.  Mr. Mitchell said that if the 
house was turned it would not meet the rear yard setbacks. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked why this was not considered at the time these lots were split.  Mr. 
Mitchell said that in this Zoning District the minimum lot width is 85 feet.  Mr. Mitchell 
also said in order to get the maximum number of lots from this parcel, this is the way it 
was split with 85’ frontage and 130’ deep.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if they had built all the homes in this area and Mr. Mitchell stated that 
they had built the homes on the south side of the street.  Mr. Kovacs asked if a Colonial 
style home would fit on this parcel and Mr. Mitchell stated that it would not fit on this lot.  
Mr. Mitchell also said that the proposed home would be comparable to the other homes 
in the area. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to speak and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file.    
 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion this was a very small variance request and would not 
be obtrusive to other homes in the area.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thought this should have been taken into consideration when 
they were going to split the parcel.  Mr. Stimac said that the original property width was 
255’, the minimum lot width is 85’, and they could not have reduced the lot width on the 
adjoining lots without obtaining a variance. 
 
Motion by Fejes 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Vito Mitchell Homes, L.L.C., 996 Eckford (proposed address), for relief 
to construct a house that will result in a proposed 26.07’ front setback from the 
Rochester Road right of way where Section 30.10.04 requires a 30’ minimum front yard 
setback in R-1C Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance request in minimal. 
• Double front corner lot creates a hardship. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance does not create a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  RAM A. SHARMA, 2951 HOMEWOOD, for relief of 
the Ordinance to maintain a porch enclosure constructed without a permit on the east 
side of his home that results in a side setback of 5.6” where Section 30.10.01 requires a 
15’ setback in R-1A Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
maintain a porch enclosure constructed without first obtaining a building permit on the 
east side of his home.  The site plan submitted indicates that this structure was built 
with a 5.6’ side setback.  Section 30.10.01 requires a 15’ minimum side yard setback in 
R-1A Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that an error was made in the write up of this petition.  This 
subdivision was originally developed utilizing the open space option and the lot sizes 
were reduced.  In the R-1A Zoning District, in open space option developments, side 
yard setbacks are only 10’ and not 15’ as published, therefore this is a lesser variance 
request.  After conferring with Mr. Motzny it was determined that the Board could act on 
this request because the variance request is now a lesser variance than the request in 
the published notice. 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Ram Sharma was present and stated that if there were any objections on file he 
would be willing to take down this porch enclosure.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that we did have a written objection on file and asked Mr. Sharma what 
the purpose of this structure was.  Mr. Sharma said that it protects the door and keeps 
water from running down into the basement.  Mr. Sharma also said that he had signed a 
contract with someone, and found out later that he did not have a license.  Mr. Sharma 
had to take him to civil court and this contractor lost the case to Mr. Sharma.  Mr. 
Kovacs clarified that Mr. Sharma had indicated he would tear down the structure if there 
was an objection on file and Mr. Sharma said that he would.  Mr. Kovacs asked how this 
structure was attached to the house.  Mr. Sharma said that there were glass doors and 
a wood molding that makes up the frame. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the Board needs to find a hardship with this request.  Mr. Sharma 
said that that he does not have a hardship and if he knew it was a problem originally he 
probably would not have put it up. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Sharma wanted to withdraw his petition and he said if the 
Board decides he can keep the structure he will and if the Board indicates that it needs 
to come down, he will remove it.   
 
Mr. Fejes asked why Mr. Sharma built this enclosure.  Mr. Sharma said that there was a 
door there and water was draining inside.  Mr. Fejes said that if he takes it down, he will 
have water leaking into the basement.  Mr. Fejes said that he did not see a hardship. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the petitioner would be allowed to building some sort of canopy that 
would act as a rain deflector over this door.  Mr. Stimac asked Mr. Sharma if the door 
was added as part of this project.  Mr. Sharma said that the door was there about two 
years.  Mr. Stimac then asked if he had a problem with water running in through the 
door before he added the enclosure.  Mr. Sharma said that he did not. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Zoning Ordinance permits architectural features, one of which 
would include a small overhang that could encroach 2” per foot of setback.  In a 10’ 
setback you could have a 20” overhang that could cover the top of the door.  Mr. 
Kovacs said that right now it sits 11’ from the property line.  Mr. Stimac said that 
according to the mortgage survey, it is currently 11 ½’ and he can go 20” into the 
setback, which would take him to 8’-4” that would give him a 3’ overhang over the door.  
This overhang could not have walls.  Mr. Sharma said that without walls the water would 
go inside.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there was something that protected the front and back doors.  Mr. 
Sharma indicated that a large porch covered the front door.   
 
 

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion a small architectural overhang would be more 
appropriate and does not think this enclosure fits in with the surrounding area. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he did not see a hardship with this request and also felt that if Mr. 
Sharma decided he needed something to cover the door, he could put up an overhang 
without walls. 
 
Mr. Courtney suggested that Mr. Sharma determine if anything would be required once 
the structure was removed. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Ram A. Sharma, 2951 Homewood for relief of the 
Ordinance to maintain a porch enclosure constructed without a permit on the east side 
of his home that results in a side setback of 5.6’ where Section 34.20.03 requires a 10’ 
setback in R-1A Zoning Districts utilizing the open space option. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
• Structure does not fit in with surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 

 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  LARRY FRANDLE, 1142 BOYD, for relief of the 
Ordinance to reconstruct a fire damaged home.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits the 
reconstruction of a legal non-conforming structure destroyed by a means to an extent of 
more than 60% of its replacement cost unless the construction is in compliance with all 
provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
reconstruct a fire-damaged house.  This house is a legal non-conforming structure.  It 
has an existing 4.7’ side yard setback where 5’ is required and an existing 17.6’ front 
setback where 25’ is required in the R-1E Zoning District per Section 30.10.06.  A fire 
occurred on January 14, 2005 damaging this structure beyond 60% of its replacement 
cost.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits the reconstruction of a legal non-conforming structure 
destroyed by any means to an extent of more than 60% of its replacement cost unless 
the construction is in compliance with all provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 15



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if there were any plans submitted to rebuild.  Mr. Stimac said that 
there were not any plans submitted, but Montgomery & Sons did submit specifications 
as to the scope of the work.  Mr. Stimac also verified with the City Assessor, that the 
house on this property is valued at $46,344.00 for tax purposes and the cost estimates 
to repair is $123,000.00. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the rebuilt structure would be two stories instead of one and one-
half.  Mr. Stimac said that there are two sets of numbers, one to rebuild the structure 
and put it back the way it was is the $123,000.00 figure and the other to expand the 
structure to a full second floor which will exceed the $123,000.00 figure.  Mr. Courtney 
asked if granting a variance to rebuild this home would remove the non-conformity 
status of the home and if it were to be destroyed again could they rebuild without a 
variance.  Mr. Stimac said that if a variance is granted, it would be made a conforming 
structure with the reduced setbacks and would not have to come back to them.  Mr. 
Courtney asked what would happen if it were built larger.  Mr. Stimac stated that if the 
home was rebuilt in a way that increases the non-conformity or continue the non-
conformity it would have to come back to the Board.  If a structure was put on to the 
back of this home that met the side yard setbacks, it would not have to come back to 
this Board. 
 
Mrs. Drake-Batts asked if they were planning to rebuild on the existing foundation and 
Mr. Stimac indicated that this was correct. 
 
Mr. Frandle was present and stated that basically all they want to do is repair the house.  
The footprint of the home will stay the same.  Cost of repairs is estimated to be 
$120,000.00 and it was explained to Mr. Frandle by AAA that the cost of repair is limited 
to his liability.  If Mr. Frandle has to tear down the house, rebuild, and move the 
foundation to make it conforming, it would be twice as much and that money would have 
to come out of his pocket.  Mr. Frandle said that they are a one-income family and 
without a variance this would create a hardship for them.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked about expanding a non-conforming structure.  Mr. Stimac said that 
they are not going to expand this non-conformance but only to rebuild it without having 
to comply with the requirements of the Ordinance.  Because the cost of repairs is more 
than 60% of the value of the home, the Ordinance dictates that it can only be rebuilt in 
conformance with the guidelines of the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if making this home 2 stories instead of 1-½ stories would increase 
the non-conformity.  Mr. Stimac said that even though it would be 2 stories the non-
conformity would not be increased because the sidewalls would not be moved and 
therefore the side yard setback would not change.   
 
Mr. Frandle said that he had used the upstairs for living space and he wanted to raise 
the knee walls 5’.   

 16



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs also said that he thought this would be an expansion of a non-conforming 
structure because it is going from 1-½ stories to 2 stories.  Mr. Stimac said that the 
Board could allow the structure to be rebuilt exactly the way it was or they could allow 
the second floor to be expanded to take up the full width of the house.   
 
A discussion ensued regarding whether or not this would be considered an expansion to 
a non-conforming structure and a new Public Hearing notice would be required.  Mr. 
Courtney said that he is adding to the non-conformity.  Mr. Fejes stated that he did not 
think this was an addition to the non-conformity.  Mr. Stimac stated that the Public 
Hearing notice states specifically that the home has to be repaired in the same location 
but does not indicate if that is the same structure or a different structure.  Mr. Kovacs 
said that he feels this is a technicality and does not feel it would be appropriate to make 
the petitioner wait another month for a ruling.  Mr. Courtney asked Mr. Motzny for a 
ruling on this issue. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that if the structure is rebuilt exactly the same it is not really an 
expansion.  The burden of the Board is to grant a variance allowing for the same 
setback variance that is presently on the property.  If they don’t know for sure what he is 
going to build and the new structure is larger it could be construed as an expansion to a 
non-conforming structure.  If the Board grants a variance and the petitioner decides to 
build something different at a later date he would have to come back before the Board.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Frandle if he knew what he wanted to do at this point.  Mr. 
Frandle said he knows exactly what he wants to do and that is to repair his home and 
move his family back into it.  He would like to add additional living space by raising the 
knee walls.  The footprint of the house would not be changed at all. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if raising the walls by 5’ would increase the non-conformity.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked Mr. Frandle if he could start to rebuild exactly the same house now 
and then come back to the Board if he still wished to expand the second floor.  Mr. 
Frandle said he did not think the insurance company would go along with that type of 
situation. 
 
Mrs. Drake-Batts said that she did not have a problem with granting a variance and 
allowing Mr. Frandle to expand the second floor.   Mr. Courtney said that he did not 
have a problem granting this variance as long as the Public Hearing notice would cover 
this situation, as he does believe this is an expansion of a non-conforming structure. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked for an opinion regarding the non-conformity.  Mr. Maxwell said that he 
thinks the reason he is here is because essentially the non-conformity no longer exists 
and it is up to the Board to grant a variance that will allow for a new non-conformity.  If 
Mr. Frandle wants to ask for an addition to the height it could be part of the new non-
conformity.   

 17



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that if the Board is inclined to allow the petitioner to rebuild a structure 
damaged to this extent that is one issue and if part of that reconstruction includes 
raising the height of the roof on the second floor as part of that reconstruction, a 
resolution could be passed indicating that the variance is granted as long as he does 
not expand the walls outward.   
 
Mrs. Drake-Batts asked if someone were to build a new house they would not have to 
come before this Board.  Mrs. Drake-Batts said that all this Board is doing to giving him 
back his non-conforming status.  Mr. Kovacs said that in the past when you have 
additional square footage that is an increase to a non-conforming structure.  Mr. Stimac 
said that he believes what the petitioner is asking for is to take a 1 ½ story bungalow 
and alter it to become a full 2nd story home.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Frandle brought in several approval letters. 
 
John Lovell from Montgomery & Sons was present and said he is the contractor for this 
project.  Mr. Lovell explained that they were using the loft area as living space and the 
only reason they would raise the walls would be to meet the Residential Building Code.  
Basically this was a one-bedroom house.  His insurance policy will cover this area 
because he was using it as living space. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the distance from the knee wall on the north side of house would 
remain the same as the distance from the knee wall on the south side of the house.  Mr. 
Lovell said that they were going to raise the knee walls 5’ and also move them out to be 
in line with the first floor walls. 
 
Steve Giordanno a neighbor of Mr. Frandle was present and stated that he is in favor of 
granting this variance and does not see how reconstruction could create a problem.   
 
Mr. Frandle’s daughter was present and stated that she is in support of this request and 
also feels that the extra space on the second floor would be beneficial to everyone. 
 
Mr. Murray of 1128 Boyd was present and said that he lives next door to the petitioner.  
Mr. Murray said that the petitioner is basically trying to rebuild what he has and thinks 
the Board should grant this variance. 
 
Paula Ellis, 1205 Boyd was present and stated that this neighborhood has always 
looked the same.  Ms. Ellis said that the neighbors do not care if there is an extra 5’ on 
the top of the house; they just want this family back in their home. 
 
 
 

 18



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Tim Wiggins, 1186 Boyd was present and stated that he lives about three houses from 
the petitioner.  Mr. Wiggins said that he is in support of this variance and the proposed 
construction would not be any type of eyesore. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are eleven (11) written approvals on file as well as the approvals brought in by 
Mr. Frandle.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said he personally did not see a problem with rebuilding the structure. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Larry Frandle, 1142 Boyd, relief of the Ordinance to reconstruct a fire 
damaged home. 
 

• Reconstruction includes the expansion of the 2nd floor. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked when elections were held for officers on the Board of Zoning 
Appeals.  Mr. Stimac said that these elections are held in May. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:46 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Matthew Kovacs, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 19



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL MARCH 15, 2005 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
March 15, 2005 at City Hall due to lack of quorum. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, April 19, 2005 at 7:30 p.m. at City Hall. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  
Ann Partlan 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL JOINT MEETING - DRAFT March 28, 2005 
 
 

1 

A Special-Joint Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, March 28, 2005, at the Fire and 
Police Training Facility, 4850 John R – Troy, Michigan 48085. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to 
order at 7:48 PM. 

ROLL CALL: 

CITY COUNCIL PRESENT: PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling Gary Chamberlain 
Robin E. Beltramini  Lynn Drake-Batts 
Cristina Broomfield Larry Littman 
David Eisenbacher Robert Schultz 
Martin F. Howrylak  Fazlullah M. Khan 
David A. Lambert  Mark Vleck 
Jeanne M. Stine  David Waller 
 Wayne C. Wright 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-039 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That Thomas Strat is excused from attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mayor Schilling introduced John Szerlag as the moderator of the interest-based approach to 
bargaining.  Mr. Szerlag described the interest-based approach and the meeting format. 
 
Consensus was reached by a vote by voice to follow simple ground rules as described by John 
Szerlag. 
 
John Szerlag moderated an interest-based discussion with the City Council and Planning 
Commission on accessory building footprint ratios, garage door height and commercial vehicle 
regulations. 
 

1. Options for Regulating Attached Garages and Accessory Structures 
 
Mark Miller, Planning Director, provided an update on ZOTA 215 and the process to date. 
 
Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning, presented a brief history of commercial vehicle 
restrictions in Troy. 
 
Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle provided a regional perspective on commercial vehicles.  
 
Peggy Clifton recorded interests and options on easels located at the front of the room. The following 
interests and options regarding Options for Regulating Attached Garages and Accessory Structures 
were recorded based on individual input: 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL JOINT MEETING - DRAFT March 28, 2005 
 
 

2 

PLANNING COMMISSION INTERESTS: 
 
I. Footprint Ratios 
 

1. Enforcement not to be retroactive for legally constructed structures.  (Do not create non-
conforming structures.) 

2. Replacement structures must conform. 
3. Maintain residential character. 

 
II. Garage Door Heights 
 

1. Maintain residential flavor/appearance. 
2. Do not store recreational vehicles in residential areas.   

 
CITY COUNCIL INTERESTS: 
 
I. Footprint Ratios 
 

1. Footprint ratio that does not create non-conformance. 
2. Footprint of living area, not just first floor. 
3. Solution should address Alpine Street. 
4. Allow building size to be dictated by size of property. 
5. Be careful not to permit too big of structure based on lot size. 

 
II. Garage Door Heights 
 

1. Maintain residential character. 
 
CITY MANAGEMENT INTERESTS: 
 
I. Footprint Ratios 
 

1. Consistency 
2. Practicality of application of ordinance 

 
II. Garage Door Heights 
 

1. No height limit. 
 
OPTIONS: 
 
I. Footprint Ratios 
 

1. 100% of livable area calibrated with setbacks. 
2. 75% of the first floor living area. 
3. 125% of living area. 
4. Establish a ceiling. 
5. Calibration of larger attached buildings based on height. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL JOINT MEETING - DRAFT March 28, 2005 
 
 

3 

II. Garage Door Height 
 

1. 8’ for front entrances; larger in rear. 
2. No height restriction. 

 
GENERAL DIRECTION FROM CITY COUNCIL: 
 
 The option selected was 75% of first floor living area and larger with a greater setback than 

otherwise required, based on a formula created by the Planning Commission. 
 
 Do not limit garage door height  

 

2. Options for Regulating Commercial Vehicles 
Peggy Clifton recorded interests and options on easels located at the front of the room. The following 
interests and options regarding Options for Regulating Commercial Vehicles were recorded based on 
individual input: 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION INTERESTS: 
 
I. Commercial Vehicles  - (No comments) 
 
CITY COUNCIL INTERESTS: 
 
I. Commercial Vehicles 
 

1. Fix definition of commercial vehicle (weight, size, type). 
2. Make variance renewals automatic (if no changes). 
3. Exceptions considered for (1) Mile Road frontage; (2) Hardships (short-term); (3) Duration. 
4. Residentially zoned/utilized areas only. 

 
CITY MANAGEMENT INTERESTS: 
 
I. Commercial Vehicles 
 

1. Appropriate criteria be developed for variance to be granted. 
 
OPTIONS: 
 
I. Commercial Vehicles 
 

1. No change. 
2. Transfer authority to grant variances to BZA. 
3. Administrative approval of variance renewals. 
4. Change definition of commercial vehicles. 
5. Restrict indoor storage. 
6. Modify criteria – all 4 conditions must be met. 
7. Separate police power ordinance. 
8. Eliminate ability to appeal commercial vehicle storage provisions. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL JOINT MEETING - DRAFT March 28, 2005 
 
 

4 

 
GENERAL DIRECTION FROM CITY COUNCIL: 
 

 Transfer authority to grant variances to BZA. 
 
 Develop appropriate criteria for granting variances. 

 
Following the interest-based discussion, moderator John Szerlag handed control of the meeting back 
to Mayor Schilling. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Council Rules  #16 – Members of the Public & Visitors 
 
Resolution #2005-03-148a 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
RESOLVED, That Council Rules #16, Members of the Public & Visitors, be SUSPENDED and that 
Public Comment be reduced from five minutes to two minutes at the request of the Chair and by 
majority vote of City Council members elect. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:36 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Vice Chair 
 
 
 
       
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\03-28-05 Special Joint Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT APRIL 5, 2005 

 
 

I.  CALL TO ORDER 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, April 5, 2005 at 
Troy City Hall – Conference Room C. Meeting was called to order at 7:11 p.m. 
 
II.  MEMBERS PRESENT 
Present: 
     Flora Tan 
     Charles Yuan 
     Hailu Robele 
     Padma Kuppa 
     Amin Hashmi 
     Kara Huang 
     Jeff Hyun 
     Oniell Shah 
 
Absent: 
     Anju Brodbine 
     Tom Kaszubski 
 
Guest: 
     Jim Berar  
 
III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Amin Hashmi 
Seconded by Flora Tan 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the March 1, 2005 Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Meeting 
are approved.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
IV. CORRESPONDENCE 

• Proclamation Diversity Month 
 

V.   NEW BUSINESS 
 
VI. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Sights and Sounds – April 9, 2005 
• Set up begins at 10:00 a.m. 
• All EIA Board will be there 
• EIA table at entrance with resource guide and EIA Information Sheet 

 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01k



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT APRIL 5, 2005 

B. Resource List – updates to Cindy 
 

C. Troy Daze - EthniCity 
• Amin will go to April Meeting  
• Padma will remind Tom K to attend Troy Daze 

 
D. Diversity Month 

• Next year send information to schools in September regarding 2006 
• Diversity Month  - Padma will contact school board regarding making 

Diversity Month more consistent with schools 
• Athens May 3 event 
• Hill 3rd Graders  

 
• Thursday, April 14 Troy Interfaith Group 

First United Methodist 7:30 p.m. next meeting 
 
Padma gave an overview of the National Day of Prayer issue, locally as well as 
nationally 
 
Steering Committee 

• Pastor Peacock – Ministerial Alliance 
• Padma Kuppa – Temple 
• Michael Silverstein – Shir Tikvah 
• Nadine Robele – Bahai Faith 
• Puchard Beal – Unitarian 
• Mansoor Ahmad – IAGD 

 
Location to be determined for event on Thursday, May 5th 7:00 p.m. 
 
Padma has done research through the Pluralism Project and Americans United for the 
Separation of Church and State 

• Recommended reading “A New Religious America” by Diana Eck 
• Troy Interfaith Group will offer an event all-inclusive for people of many faiths.  

Padma said she never was asking for Lou Wagner’s permission to hold an 
event. 

• “We Gather Together” – article in Family Circle November 25, 2003 
 

E. Law Brochures – send text again to EIA Board 
F. Museum Brochure – Flora has person to translate in German, Kara still trying to 

translate in Spanish 
 

 
    
VII.  STAFF REPORT 
 

• Kara Huang graduates in June – going to study Chemical Engineering at 
Cal Tech.  Her last Meeting June 

 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT APRIL 5, 2005 

  
 
Moved by   Oniell Shah 
Seconded by Flora Tan 
 
RESOLVED that the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Meeting be adjourned at 8:18 p.m. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED     
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Padma Kuppa, EIA Co-Chair 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 5, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 6:00 p.m. on April 5, 2005 at 2038 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan.   
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lawrence Littman 
Lynn Drake-Batts Wayne Wright 
Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 6:14 p.m.) 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-040 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman and Wright are excused from attendance at 
this meeting for personal reasons.  
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: None 
Absent:  Littman, Vleck (arrived 6:14 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
3. SITE VISIT OF PUD 004 SITE 
 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01l



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 5, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 7:03 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Gary Chamberlain, Planning Commissioner 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\04-05-05 Special Meeting_PUD 4 Site Visit_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 5, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on April 5, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Gary Chamberlain 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-041 
 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the March 22, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01m



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 5, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on Council actions taken at its April 4, 2005 Regular Meeting. 
 
• Rezoning Application Z-700, Northeast corner of Livernois and Maple Road, 

Section 27, From B-1 to H-S – Approved. 
• Final Street Vacation SV 173, portion of Hanover Street, north of Wattles Road 

and east of Livernois, Section 15 – Approved. 
• Street Vacation Application SV 182, section of alley located south of Chopin and 

north of Maple, Section 27 – Approved. 
 
 

5. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 4) – Proposed The Monarch Private 
Residences, 209 units, 11,166 S.F. retail space and structured parking, North side 
of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure, Section 20 – O-1 (Low Rise 
Office), P-1 (Vehicular Parking) and R-1B (One Family Residential) District 
 
Comments were gathered from around the table on the site visit conducted at 6:00 
p.m. this evening.  It was the consensus of the members to request the presence of 
the petitioner and the project architect for the proposed Villa townhouse units at the 
April 26, 2005 Special/Study Meeting to discuss three major concerns:  (1) public 
benefit to the City, (2) design and density of the townhouses, and (3) the transition 
and landscape buffer on the north boundary.  
 
 

6. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212) – Freestanding 
Restaurants in the R-C (Research Center) and O-S-C (Office Service Commercial) 
Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the changes that were incorporated in the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment, as suggested by the members at a previous study 
meeting.  He asked if the members would like to consider adding architectural 
standards in relation to the existing office buildings.  Mr. Miller also addressed the 
proposed text that relates to outdoor dining and seating area with respect to current 
ordinance text in the O-M (Office Mid-Rise) and B (Business) districts. 
 
The members briefly discussed architectural standards, outdoor dining and seating 
area, childcare facilities and fast food restaurants. 
 
It was the consensus of the members to include zoning ordinance text relating to: 
• Architectural standards. 
• State childcare regulations. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:48 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:55 p.m. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 5, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – Commercial Indoor 
Recreation in the Light Industrial Zoning District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the revisions that were incorporated in the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment, as suggested by the members at a previous study 
meeting.  The revisions relate to permitting commercial indoor recreation by Special 
Use Approval in the M-1 District and the determination of off-street parking 
requirements based on the specific use proposed for the facility.   
 
The members briefly discussed parking accommodations, simplicity and readability of 
the zoning ordinance text amendment with respect to parking requirements, violation 
of Special Use Approval and shared parking.   
 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Building Definitions and Provisions 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-C) – Article 43.74.00, Article 
40.65.02 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals 
 
Mr. Miller reported that the draft minutes of the Special Joint City Council/Planning 
Commission Meeting held on March 28, 2005 should be available for review by the 
members at their next meeting.   
 
Mr. Wright requested information from the Assessing Department that determines the 
number of non-conforming structures that would result from using the formulas of 75% 
of ground floor area, or 50% of total square footage of living area, whichever is 
greater.  
 
Discussion points were:   
• Grandfathering non-conforming accessory structures. 
• Creation of different classes of grandfathering. 
• Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) consideration with respect to hardship. 
• Written opinion from Legal Department on grandfathering and BZA consideration. 
• Timetable of the administration. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04---(amended - refer to #PC-2005-04-043) 
 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone any action on this matter until review of the draft minutes 
of the Special Joint City Council/Planning Commission Meeting of March 28, 2005 
at the next Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission, at which time the 
Planning Commission would make its determination on what would be forwarded to 
City Council. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 5, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-04-042 
 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor to include in its review at the next 
Special/Study Meeting a package from the Legal Department with respect to (1) 
grandfathering non-conforming accessory structures and (2) consideration of hardship 
matters by Board of Zoning Appeals.     
 
Vote on the amendment of the motion. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on the motion as amended and to read as follows. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-043 
 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone any action on this matter until review of the draft minutes 
of the Special Joint City Council/Planning Commission Meeting of March 28, 2005 
at the next Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission, at which time the 
Planning Commission would make its determination on what would be forwarded to 
City Council; and 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission review at its next 
Special/Study Meeting a package from the Legal Department with respect to (1) 
grandfathering non-conforming accessory structures and (2) consideration of hardship 
matters by Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
(Mr. Waller exited the meeting at 9:15 p.m. for personal reasons.)   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 5, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 213) – Article 23.30.02, 
Service Stations in the H-S Highway Service District 
 
Mr. Miller reported that at an earlier Special/Study Meeting a general consensus 
was reached by the members that expanding the minimum lot size requirement for 
service stations would not solve the current problem of existing service stations.  
Mr. Miller requested confirmation of this consensus in the form of a resolution. 
 
A brief discussion was held with respect to a summary of service stations and site 
plan illustration provided by the Planning Department.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-044 
 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That there be no change to the minimum lot size requirement of 
15,000 square feet for H-S (Highway Service) district for the following reasons: 
 
1. Expansion of lot size requirement would create all existing service stations to 

non-conforming sizes.   
2. There is little demand, if any, foreseen for new service stations.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller (9:15 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

11. POTENTIAL ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Medical offices in the 
R-C Research Center District 
 
Mr. Miller asked for input from the members in consideration of allowing medical 
offices in the R-C (Research Center) district.   
 
Discussion points were: 
• Affect on commercial development and tax base.  
• Current vacancy rate in R-C district. 
• Objective in creating R-C zoning. 
• Rezoning property versus a zoning ordinance amendment.   
• Growth potential of medical field and functionality of existing buildings for 

medical use. 
• Mixed-use development.  
• Proposed amendment in relation to completion of Big Beaver Road Corridor 

Study and review of Master Land Use Plan and Zoning Ordinance. 
• Priority of the ZOTA.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 5, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

It was determined that related requests in the future would be handled 
administratively through rezoning alternatives.   
 
 

12. REVIEW OF APRIL 12, 2005 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Agenda items for the April 12, 2005 Regular Meeting were briefly reviewed.   
 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Dick Minnick of 28 Millstone, Troy, was present to address ZOTA 215.  Mr. Minnick 
said the homeowners in his subdivision are not creating a problem today and should 
not be made a part of the problem going forward.  Mr. Minnick addressed issues 
relating to footprint ratio, height, non-conformance disclosure, grandfathering, and 
recordkeeping by the City.  He suggested it would be best to use the footprint ratio 
method with no height restrictions in its determination of non-conforming accessory 
structures, should the City decide not to grandfather existing non-conforming 
accessory structures.   
 
Mr. Wright asked Mr. Minnick how many of his neighbors would be affected should 
accessory structures be evaluated on the 75% footprint ratio or 50% of the total 
square living area. 
 
Mr. Minnick replied that no one in his subdivision would be affected. 
 
Chris Komasara of 5287 Windmill, Troy, was present to address ZOTA 215.  Mr. 
Komasara expressed his concern with respect to the rebuild of an accessory 
structure should it be damaged or destroyed.  With the proposed change in the 
ordinance, the rebuild of an accessory structure would be up to 60% of its value.  
Mr. Komasara said the structure should be replaced at full value because insurance 
premiums for full coverage would have been paid up until the time it was damaged 
or destroyed.  Mr. Komasara spoke in favor of grandfathering existing non-
conforming accessory structures.  He said he heard a lot of personal opinions 
voiced at the joint meeting of City Council and the Planning Commission, and it is 
not fair to punish residents for one family’s decision to build a monster garage.  Mr. 
Komasara said he receives compliments on his house, and his garage has always 
been one of his dreams.   
 
Mr. Miller said there is consideration to passing an ordinance that would give the 
Board of Zoning Appeals the authority to allow an accessory building to be restored 
or expanded should it be destroyed more than 60% of its value. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 5, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Schultz referenced a recent news article on mixed-use residential development in 
downtown Rochester.   
 
Mr. Vleck commented on accessory structures.  He thinks it is very important for the City to 
identify the problem and to specifically address those homes that would become non-
conforming.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain complimented members on a productive meeting with respect to 
addressing several ZOTA’s.   
 
Chair Strat briefly commented on his recent attendance at the annual conference of the 
American Planners Association.  He said a full report would follow.  Chair Strat addressed 
his goal with respect to the revision of the Master Land Use Plan and the review of the 
Zoning Ordinance, to which he committed to discuss at the next study session.   
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\04-05-05 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  APRIL 6, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:32 A.M., on Wednesday, April 6, 2005 in the lower level 
conference room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   William Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MARCH 2, 2005 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of March 2, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SAFET STAFA, 3455 JOHN R., for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 40” high non-obscuring fence along the front property line of John 
R. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 40” 
high and 100’ long, non-obscuring fence along the front property line of John R.  
Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in front yards to no more than 30” in height.  The 
petitioner originally requested a variance to maintain a 6’ high privacy fence along the 
front property line of John R.  The Building Code Board of Appeals denied this request 
at the meeting of December 1, 2004.   
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of January 5, 2005 and was 
postponed until this meeting to allow the petitioner the opportunity to meet with Ron 
Hynd of the Parks and Recreation Department and bring in a landscaping plan for 
approval by this Board. 
 
Mr. Stafa was present and stated that he had contacted different landscaping 
companies but found the cost too prohibitive to add a berm and shrubbery.  Mr. Stafa 
cut the fence down as far as he could without destroying the entire fence and the fence 
is now between 32” and 33”.  If he were to cut the fence any lower he would have to 
remove the middle brace and the fence would be destroyed. 
 

 1

morrellca
Text Box
J-01n



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  APRIL 6, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Zuazo stated that it was his understanding that originally Mr. Stafa planned on 
adding landscaping.  Mr. Stafa said that was correct however, he found the cost too 
high.  Mr. Zuazo indicated that Mr. Stafa did not leave enough room between the fence 
and the sidewalk for landscaping.  Mr. Stafa said if the existing fence was still a problem 
he would be willing to take it down. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if Mr. Stafa had met with Ron Hynd.  Mr. Stafa said that he had met 
with someone from the City twice, but did not remember the person’s name.  Mr. 
Dziurman asked what kind of plan Mr. Stafa developed.  Mr. Stafa said that he wanted 
to put up 3’ of dirt to create a berm however; he could not afford the cost of the dirt.  Mr. 
Dziurman said that although he cut the fence down, he did not comply with the request 
of the Board to determine if an alternative plan was available. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the height of the fence is measured from the ground.  Mr. Stimac 
explained that the fence height is measured from the ground to the top of the fence.  Mr. 
Stimac said that the petitioner is basically asking for a 2” – 3” variance to keep the fence 
at its present height.   
 
Mr. Nelson clarified that the original request was to be able to leave the 6’ high privacy 
fence up.  Mr. Stimac agreed and stated that this item was postponed in order to allow 
the petitioner the opportunity to look at different options including landscaping. 
 
Mr. Stafa said that the fence is in exactly the same spot as the original fence, which he 
said is about 3’ from the sidewalk.  Mr. Stimac said that from looking at the pictures it 
would appear that the fence is closer than 3’ from the sidewalk.  Mr. Zuazo concurred 
agreeing that at the most it was 18” from the sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what the required distance from the sidewalk was.  Mr. Stimac said 
that assuming the right of way line from John R. is 1’ from the sidewalk this fence 
appears to be right at the right of way line.  Mr. Stimac also explained that a 30” high 
fence would be allowed to be placed at the front property line. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Safet Stafa, 3455 John R., relief of Chapter 83 to maintain a non-
obscuring fence along the front property line of John, that is between 32” and 33” high. 
 

• Location of fence is contingent on the distance that it is setback from the John R. 
right of way line. 

• Additional grading is required underneath the fence to make the grade uniform, 
but cannot create a drainage and/or ponding problem on the sidewalk. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  APRIL 6, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL OF REQUEST WITH STIPULATIONS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  BEAUMONT SERVICES COMPANY, L.L.C. 44201 
DEQUINDRE, for relief of the 2003 Michigan Building Code to omit smoke dampers in 
ductwork penetrating smoke barriers throughout William Beaumont Hospital Troy 
campus. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Building Code to omit smoke dampers in ductwork penetrating smoke barriers 
throughout William Beaumont Hospital, the Troy Campus, 44201 Dequindre.  Section 
716.5.5. of the 2003 Michigan Building Code requires dampers in ductwork penetrating 
smoke barriers. 
 
Mr. Joseph Malkoun and Mr. Chet Schroeder were present.  Mr. Schroeder stated that 
this is a community service operating 24 hours a day 7 days a week and one of the 
things they are trying to do is maintain consistency regarding safety.  Everything is 
dedicated to the same area and this helps to reduce the chance of human error.   
 
Mr. Malkoun explained that the reason for these dampers is for safety and they have 
already exceeding most standards regarding fire safety.  There is a fire alarm system, 
which is interconnected with the sprinkler system and the sprinkler heads used in the 
system are listed quick-response type.  The heating, ventilation and air-conditioning 
systems are fully ducted throughout the site.  The hospital is subject to a number of 
codes and inspections and they have exceeded the requirements of the code.  The 
Michigan Building Code requires the use of quick response sprinklers in patient sleeping 
rooms area within a smoke compartment and they have installed quick response 
sprinklers throughout the building. 
 
Furthermore, based on the Code they are required to have a fire drill for each shift and 
on each floor.  They exceed this requirement because we have two (2) fire drills per 
shift.  The hospital is constantly upgrading the training of their staff.  Also, the fire alarm 
system has a custom-messaging system built it that will announce the exact floor, exact 
area and exact smoke area, which enhances the quick response.  Mr. Malkoun said that 
their main concern is life safety and he believes that the omission of the smoke 
dampers will not compromise this safety of the people that use this facility.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked Mr. Nelson if the Fire Department had any type of problem with this 
request.  Mr. Nelson stated that Fire Prevention has looked at this proposal and does 
not see any problem with it at all. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked the petitioners if this type of request had been submitted to the 
International Code Council as an amendment to the Code.  Mr. Malkoun said that to the 
best of his knowledge it had not.  Mr. Malkoun further explained that the entire hospital 
is built from either non-combustible or limited combustible materials to increase safety. 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  APRIL 6, 2005 

ITEM #3  - con’t. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to grant Beaumont Services Company, LLC, 44201 Dequindre, relief of the 
2003 Michigan Building Code to omit smoke dampers in ductwork penetrating smoke 
barriers throughout William Beaumont Hospital Troy campus. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not compromise the public safety. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:03 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
  
 
 

 4



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            April 7, 2005 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, April 7 
2005 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at 
10:05 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Jo Rhoads, Member 
 Pauline Noce, Member Bud Black, Member  
 James Berar, Member Merrill Dixon, Member     
 Marie Hoag, Member Bill Weisgerber, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent:   David Ogg, Member  
   
Visitors:    Mary Beth Halushka, Connie Rasa 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-04-001 
Moved by Bill Weisgerber 
Seconded by Jo Rhoads 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of April 7, 2005 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 8        
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Mary Beth Halushka discussed the upcoming school district millage renewal. 
 
Old Business 
  
Senior Centers in Neighboring Cities:  Carla will compile the information that members 
gather from their visits.  Bud suggested that members call before visiting.      
 
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  The Park Board will discuss this issue at their April meeting 
and JoAnn suggested that committee members try to attend this meeting.  The Senior 
Advisory Committee would like to see both shuffleboard and bocce.  Mrs. Rasa suggested that 
an indoor bocce court could be used year round.  Mr. Dixon handed out court specifications 
(copy attached).      
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Kim Haveraneck, President of Emerald Food 
Service, could not attend the April meeting but said she would attend in May.  The issue is 
snacks, not meals, and JoAnn will prepare a letter to Kim to clarify that. 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01o



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            April 7, 2005 

2 

 
New Business 
None 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon did not attend the March meeting.  He reported that the Park Board 
was asked to review the task force plan (copy enclosed). 
 
Medi-Go:   Jo Rhoads reported SMART has been more than generous by setting up 
computers and insurance coverage.  Health care rides are top priority and seniors can 
schedule a ride as soon as they make their doctor appointment. 
 
Nutrition:  No report.  
    There were 1356 meals served on 22 days at the Community Center in September.   
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the TESA workshops went well and over 100 seniors 
participated.  A 12-week follow up Eat Better and Move More program is being offered 
beginning April 6.  We have had a good response to the new women’s softball program and 
Troy will have a team in the league.  Money Smart, an Aging Forum, and the spring Expo are 
three big programs coming up in April.  Mr. Weisgerber asked about the Adopt-Our-Senior-
Center program.  Carla will prepare a report for the May meeting.   
    
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that several home care service providers attended giving them a 
good chance to compare services.  Make sure that the service you use is licensed.  
 
Suggestion Box:  Regarding last month’s suggestions, Carla reported that anyone can bring 
their lunch into the lunchroom and eat it when the seniors are having the federally funded 
lunch.  The bridge group is not interested in meeting one additional time per week, and the 
lady who made the suggestion is moving to Texas.  The newsletter will now be available for 
people to pick up on or after the 27th of each month, and this is stated in the newsletter. 
 
Comments 
Jo Rhodes reported that having the meetings televised helps seniors know what is going on. 
 
Bill Weisgerber resigned his seat as vice-chair.  His term expires April 30 and he is not seeking 
reappointment. 
 
Merrill Dixon will ask the Park Board to take Mr. Berar’s suggestion about benches at the 
driving range under advisement. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:30 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair     Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        April 11, 2005 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, April 11, 
2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman 
Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of March 14, 2005 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2005-04-010 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the March 14, 2005 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     MORTON’S OF CHICAGO/TROY, LLC (A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY 

COMPANY), requests to transfer ownership of a 2004 Class C licensed business 
with official permit (food), located in escrow at 25938 Middlebelt, Farmington 
Hills, MI 48336, Oakland County, from Stearn & Company, L.L.C.; transfer 
location (governmental unit), (MCL 436.1531) to 888 W. Big Beaver Rd, Troy, MI 
48084, Oakland County, and requests a new SDM license to be held in 
conjunction.   [MLCC REQ ID# 280550] 

 
A representative of Morton’s of Chicago was not present at the meeting.  This item has 
been tabled. 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01p



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        April 11, 2005 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 
2.   DELAWARE CALIFORNIA PIZZA KITCHEN, INC. (A DELAWARE 

CORPORATION), requests to transfer ownership thru merger of a 2004 12 
months Resort Class C licensed business (MCL 436.1531(4); non-transferable) 
with official permit (food), located at Somerset Collection North, 2800 W. Big 
Beaver, Space N 126, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from California Pizza 
Kitchen, Inc. (A California Corporation).    [MLCC REQ ID# 274929]   

 
 
A representative of Delaware California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. was not present at the 
meeting.  Sergeant Thomas Gordon presented the issue.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-04-011 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that DELAWARE CALIFORNIA PIZZA KITCHEN, INC. (A DELAWARE 
CORPORATION), be allowed to transfer ownership thru merger of a 2004 12 months 
Resort Class C licensed business (MCL 436.1531(4); non-transferable) with official 
permit (food), located at Somerset Collection North, 2800 W. Big Beaver, Space N 126, 
Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. (A California 
Corporation). 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None    
Absent: None 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Resolution #LC2005-04-012 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that name changes or corporate reorganization license changes be 
allowed without the necessity of applicant or applicant’s counsel to attend the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting. 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None    
Absent: None 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        April 11, 2005 
 

Page 3 of 3 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on April 12, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain David T. Waller 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-045 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Waller is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

TABLED AND POSTPONED ITEMS 
 
3. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – 

Article 28.20.13 or 28.30.00  Arts and Dance Schools in Light Industrial Zoning 
Districts 
 
Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to 
postpone this matter and Public Hearing to the May 10, 2005 Regular Meeting in 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01q



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

order to provide the Planning Department an opportunity to continue developing the 
draft ZOTA.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
Chair Strat announced the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-046 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment ZOTA-201 requested by 
The Link School for the Arts and the Public Hearing are hereby postponed to the 
May 10, 2005 Regular Meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 695) – Proposed Becker 
Overflow Parking Area, South side of Henrietta, East of Rochester Road, Section 27 
– From R-1E to P-1 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report and a brief 
history of the proposed rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation 
of the Planning Department to approve the rezoning application because it is 
consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and is compatible with 
surrounding land uses and zoning districts.  He noted that the City Council asked 
the Planning Commission to consider zoning a strip of land along the eastern 
property line to E-P.   
 
Chair Strat said the grade difference shown on the site plan effectuates a 6.5-foot 
masonry wall on the residential side of the development, but he clearly noted that 
the site plan should not be a consideration in the approval process of the rezoning 
request.   
 
Mr. Schultz indicated that a potential water problem could result from the difference 
in grade.   
 
Mr. Savidant noted that the Engineering Department, upon a cursory review of the 
site plan, indicated the water problem could be addressed.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Eileen Youngerman of 35 W. Huron, Pontiac, was present to represent the 
petitioner.  Ms. Youngerman, a certified property manager for Arnold Becker for 
17.5 years, said the primary purpose of the proposal is to create an overflow 
parking area and square off the property to make it more of a viable location for 
tenancy.  She said the perceived lack of parking by potential tenants has resulted in 
a vacant building for a very long time.  Ms. Youngerman said the project 
engineering team is also present this evening should the members wish to address 
any questions to them. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Nancy Haynes of 1046 Henrietta, Troy, was present.  Ms. Haynes, who lives east of 
the proposed parking lot, said she has talked extensively with Ms. Youngerman about 
the proposal.  Ms. Haynes says she does not want to live next door to a parking lot or 
to two vacant lots, and said it is a “catch 22” situation.  She voiced concerns with 
respect to potential flooding, potential users of the parking lot (i.e., restaurant 
customers), and noise.  Ms. Haynes said the petitioner has tentatively agreed to put 
up signs that the parking lot is for office users only and to keep the dumpster in its 
current location closer to the office building.   
 
Chair Strat informed Ms. Haynes that she would have an opportunity to voice her 
concerns again at the time of site plan approval.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts asked if Ms. Haynes would prefer the property remain as is or have it 
rezoned.   
 
Ms. Haynes said she was not sure.  She reflects on last summer when the weeds 
were growing and the mosquitoes were breeding.  Ms. Haynes said she would prefer 
the masonry wall as opposed to the berm.  Ms. Haynes confirmed she was opposed 
to the rezoning originally, but thinks she has just come to terms with the matter.   
 
Mark Kozlow of 1058 Henrietta, Troy, was present.  Mr. Kozlow said he would like to 
see a plan that takes care of the residences in the area as well as the office building 
property owner.  He said the houses are surrounded by industry and are limited with 
respect to building out and market appeal for resale.  Mr. Kozlow also noted industrial 
development is limited because of the size of the lots.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he is not comfortable with rezoning the area from residential to a 
parking lot and that there is no control after the property is rezoned.  Mr. Vleck said 
screen walls are not appropriate buffers because they are not decorative.  He said 
the City is shortchanging residents by slowly letting commercial in the area and 
suggested that it might be appropriate to conduct a special study on the area.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain said a study is not necessary on the area because there is a plan 
in place.  The Future Land Use Plan designates the area as something other than 
residential.  Mr. Chamberlain addressed the piecemeal development in the area.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts asked if there was a guarantee the screen wall would be erected 
should the property be rezoned.  
 
Mr. Miller said there would be no guarantee because (1) the property might be 
rezoned but never built and (2) the petitioner might seek a variance or waiver from 
the Board of Zoning Appeals.  Mr. Miller said the Planning Commission would 
review the proposed development at the time of site plan approval.  He noted the 
minimum Zoning Ordinance requirements would have to be met, and the Planning 
Department would encourage the petitioner to provide additional landscaping for a 
better transition.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she does not think the property should be rezoned until there 
is a tenant in the building.   
 
Mr. Schultz recapped that should the rezoning request be approved, there is no 
guarantee that the screen wall would be constructed, and the property owner has 
the right to leave the property as it currently is with no improvements; therefore the 
adjacent resident would still have a weed pile next to her and no screen wall for 
years to come in the future. 
 
Chair Strat commented on the office vacancy in the City and said it would be easier 
to lease the building with an approval already from the City to build the parking lot.  
He also noted that there would be a continuous straight line of zoning along the 
southern and northern property lines, so the rezoning would not be considered 
“spot” zoning.  Chair Strat indicated he would be voting in favor of the rezoning for 
those reasons.   
 
Mr. Khan indicated support of the rezoning because it would be difficult to lease the 
building if parking is insufficient.  Mr. Khan said to give the petitioner the benefit of 
the doubt that the property would be improved.   
 
A brief discussion was held with respect to the current parking requirements on the 
site. 
 
Mr. Miller said the general parking requirements for retail is 1:200, and that the site 
currently meets the minimum parking requirements.  Mr. Miller confirmed that 
should the parking lot be built, it would allow expansion opportunities for the existing 
building. 
 
Mr. Vleck cited previous developments that were rezoned to parking because the 
petitioners claimed there was not enough parking for the buildings; and upon 
approval of the rezoning requests, the property owners used the option to add to 
their existing buildings and ended up with the same amount of parking.  Mr. Vleck 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

said that City Council requested the Planning Commission to look at the potential 
installation of an E-P zoning buffer.  Mr. Vleck said he would be more comfortable 
utilizing the State law to allow the condition of rezoning approvals upon specific use 
and design conditions.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said it appears the additional parking would be just a plus in 
leasing the property because the current parking is sufficient for the existing 
building.  Ms. Drake-Batts said she would consider the rezoning request when there 
is a plan; and in her perspective, what was submitted is not a plan. 
 
Mr. Miller said the petitioner has the right to request the rezoning and the request 
should be reviewed in relation to the City’s Future Land Use Plan.  Mr. Miller 
reviewed the Future Land Use Plan with respect to the residential use and the 
planned commercial-type uses.  It is Mr. Miller’s opinion that the rezoning request is 
appropriate as configured.   
 
Chair Strat said he is hopeful that should the rezoning request be approved, it would 
act as a catalyst to expand the facility and improve the appearance of the existing 
building.  He addressed the significance of the site because of its gateway location.  
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-047 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Chamberlain 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1E to P-1 (Z-695) rezoning request located on the south side of 
Henrietta and east of Rochester, within Section 27, being 0.25 acres in size, be 
granted, for the following reason:  
 
1. It is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat 
No: Drake-Batts, Vleck, Wright 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck stated that the City Council sent the rezoning request back to the 
Planning Commission for consideration of an environmentally protected zone and 
that option was not discussed.  Mr. Vleck said he believes expanding this particular 
area next to residential at this point in time is not the appropriate action.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said her opinion has been made clear from her previous 
comments.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Mr. Wright agreed with the comments of Mr. Vleck.  Mr. Wright said the request is 
premature at this time and he would like to see some consolidation of parcels in this 
area that would realize a better plan.   
 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 1) – Proposed 
Amendment to Woodside Bible Church / Northwyck Condominium P.U.D., East side 
of Rochester and South of South Blvd., Section 2 – PUD 1 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
amendment to PUD 1.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to postpone this matter to the May 10, 2005 Regular Meeting 
because the petitioner has not submitted revised plans to the Planning Department 
or made any contact to discuss the matter.  Mr. Miller noted that the petitioner 
forwarded a written request to postpone the matter, of which a copy was distributed 
to the members prior to the beginning of the meeting.  
 
Mr. Khan asked what action could be taken because the entry sign is currently up 
on Rochester Road and the mechanical equipment on the roof remains unscreened. 
 
Mr. Miller said the City could order the petitioner to remove the sign or the matter 
could be handled administratively as a code enforcement violation should the PUD 
Agreement be breached.  Mr. Miller confirmed that to date a final Certificate of 
Occupancy has not been issued. 
 
Note:  The Public Hearing was not opened, at the discretion of Chair Strat. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-048 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Proposed Amendment to Woodside Bible Church / 
Northwyck Condominium P.U.D., East side of Rochester and South of South Blvd., 
Section 2 – PUD 1, is hereby postponed to the May 10, 2005 Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, Should the petitioner make no progress toward remedies 
or negotiations on this matter in the next thirty (30) days, a resolution to deny both 
proposed amendments would be considered. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – 
Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-C) – 
Article 43.00.00, Article 40.65,00, Article 40.66.00 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to 
Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of ZOTA 215-A and 215-C.  Mr. Miller reported that 
it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to postpone the items to the 
May 10, 2005 Regular Meeting because the minutes from the March 28, 2005 Joint 
Meeting and a final draft ZOTA are not complete at this time.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-049 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That ZOTA 215-A and ZOTA 215-C, pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions and Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals, respectively, 
be tabled to the May 10, 2005 Regular Meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLANS 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Walnut Forest Site Condominium, 16 units/lots 
proposed, East of I-75, between Paragon and Hedgewood, Section 16, Zoned CR-1 
(One Family Residential Cluster) District 
 
Mr. Khan informed the members that approximately 12 years ago he worked for a 
company of which the petitioner was a 50% partner, and asked if the members had 
any objection to his consideration and vote on the matter.  He indicated he had no 
financial interest in the company or in the proposed development.   
 
The members voiced no objections to Mr. Khan’s consideration and vote on the 
matter.   
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Walnut Forest Site Condominium project.  He provided a history of the rezoning of 
the property to CR-1, in which a number of residents voiced opposition to the 
proposed rezoning at the Public Hearing.  The rezoning approval was conditioned 
on the owner providing and recording a restrictive instrument that there would be no 
vehicular access onto Paragon, and that all vehicular access would be off of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Hedgewood.  Mr. Miller noted that all departmental comments identified in the report 
have been addressed. 
 
Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to 
approve Walnut Forest Site Condominium subject to two conditions: (1) That the 
area delineated on the site plan as “park” and “preserved woodland” shall be 
identified as general common area and (2) that the applicant shall get a letter of no 
jurisdiction from the MDEQ prior to Final Site Condominium approval.   
 
There was discussion on access to the site condominium from Hedgewood Drive 
and the cul-de-sac layout to the east.   
 
The petitioner, Vincent DiLorenzo of D & T Construction Company, 46719 Hayes 
Road, Shelby Township, was present.  Mr. DiLorenzo said the road configuration 
was determined to appease the homeowners to the south and to comply with the 
conditions placed by the City Council and the Planning Commission at the time of 
the rezoning approval.  He indicated the original plan did have the road going 
through.  Mr. DiLorenzo noted they chose to make the road private in order to 
maximize the green space and to distance the residential homes from the 
expressway.  He said the proposed design is the least intrusive with respect to 
space and noise.  Mr. DiLorenzo addressed the Planning Department’s concerns 
with respect to the wetlands.  He said they were informed there are no wetlands on 
site, but he would work with the Planning Department and MDEQ to confirm that 
determination.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Debbie Sosa of 4523 Hedgewood, Troy, was present.  Ms. Sosa asked where the 
entrance for the construction vehicles and equipment would be located.  Ms. Sosa 
addressed the road extension to accommodate the new residents.  She is 
concerned with the increase in traffic and safety of the neighborhood children, as 
residents must drive more than one-half mile to get out of the subdivision.  Ms. Sosa 
questioned why Paragon could not be another access point because it is the most 
direct access.  She indicated the residents of Carlson Park are currently working 
with the City to control the existing problem of speeding traffic coming from Long 
Lake Road.   
 
Gordon Schepke of 328 Paragon, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schepke voiced strong 
opposition to the proposed development.  Mr. Schepke said the concern he and his 
neighbors have is there is only one portion of sidewalk on one side only between 
Virgilia and I-75 out of the three streets in the subdivision.  He said the covenant 
provided on the property at the end of Paragon at the time of the rezoning resulted 
from the homeowners collectively expressing their concerns to the developer.  Mr. 
Schepke also expressed concern with additional traffic that might result from the 
proposed I-75 interchange at Long Lake Road.  He referenced a conversation he 
had with a City planner regarding the preliminary plan with respect to the road 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

layout and building design.  Mr. Schepke stated the neighborhood never 
experienced any problem with snow removal.    
 
Mike Marrs of 144 Paragon, Troy, was present.  He expressed appreciation in the 
recognition that the neighbors came out in force over 1.5 years ago to oppose the 
development.  Mr. Marrs said the asphalt roads and lack of sidewalks in their 
subdivision would not properly handle the traffic   He challenged the Planning 
Commission members to come up with a holistic approach to the dynamics of the 
neighborhood; i.e., the expansion of I-75 to 4 lanes, the proposed Long Lake Road 
exit, the 20-acre school district property adjacent to the proposed development, and 
the subdivision roads that are over 35 years old with no sidewalks.  He challenged 
the City to take into consideration sound abatement as provided in other 
communities, to address the sidewalk matter, to work with the school district to 
protect property as park and wetlands, to determine how the proposed development 
would enhance the neighborhood they live in, and to look at the whole property, not 
just 6 acres.   
 
Shannon Johnstone of 50 Paragon, Troy, was present.  Ms. Johnstone expressed 
concern for the safety of the children with the additional traffic and no sidewalks in 
their subdivision.  She said the road is at least one-half mile long and one straight 
shot.  She noted the speed of drivers averages 35 to 40 mph to get to the end 
because it is such a long street.  Ms. Johnstone said it doesn’t take a scientist to 
determine that there are wetlands on site.  She said, as children, they would ice 
skate on the water formed back there, and asked that the City take a second look at 
the proposed development.   
 
Rick Bonin of 25518 Chernick, Taylor, was present.  Mr. Bonin is an Environmental 
Consultant and President of Scientific Management, Inc., the firm contracted to 
complete the wetlands determination for the subject property.  Charles Downing, 
B.S., Environmental Scientist and Army Corps of Engineers Trained Wetland 
Delineator, completed the wetlands delineation report.  Mr. Bonin said the wetlands 
have diminished over the years, specifically on the subject site, as a result of a 
lower water table and the elimination of source waters from the developments to the 
north and south.  He said there might be wetlands on the adjoining wooded parcel, 
but its proximity to the ditch located along I-75 has impacted the site to the point of 
losing the wetlands.  Mr. Bonin indicated that the trees identified on site by the 
City’s Environmental Specialist are wetland-type trees that are sustainable as the 
wetlands diminish.  The ponding water identified by the City’s Environmental 
Specialist was on site during the month of March, at which time the water would not 
have had time to go in the ground, as it normally would do.  Mr. Bonin is confident 
Scientific Management is accurate in its opinion that there are no wetlands on the 
property.  He stated the adjoining property would be an entirely different issue that 
would not impact this development.   
 
Eileen Heasly of 190 Paragon, Troy, was present.  Ms. Heasly spoke about how 
satisfied the residents were when their complaints voiced to the City Council 
previously were heard and a solution was reached with the developer.  She has 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

lived in her house for 32 years, and would like to keep their street the way it has 
been for many years.  Ms. Heasly asked the members to keep to the solution that 
was made years ago.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Mr. Schultz said it appears from the topographical survey and wetlands delineation 
report that there could be water problems on the property, and he personally would 
like to see them officially delineated before moving forward on the project.   
 
Chair Strat said it would be preferable to have an as-built survey provided for 
review.   
 
Mr. Littman asked if the Planning Department is aware of any regulated wetlands on 
the school district property. 
 
Mr. Miller responded that he did not know.  Mr. Miller confirmed that the Planning 
Department’s recommendation is subject to receiving a letter of no jurisdiction from 
the MDEQ prior to final site condominium approval because the Planning 
Department is not sure if there are regulated wetlands on the subject site.   
 
Mr. Vleck stated concern with respect to City maintenance of the private road at the 
end of the public road.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said that not having heard the arguments in support for not 
opening both roads to the development at previous meetings, she would like to see 
both roads used as access to the development because it would more evenly 
distribute the traffic.  Ms. Drake-Batts said the developer has a right to build on his 
property.  She said the residents have an option to buy the property from the 
developer should they want to keep the property as a park.   
 
Mr. Wright provided a brief history on the project.  He said the primary reason to not 
open up the development to Paragon was because Paragon is a narrow asphalt 
street with a ditch and no sidewalks.  It was thought that traffic would cut through 
Carlson Park subdivision to Paragon to Wattles.   
 
It was agreed that discussion on Paragon’s access to the development is a mute 
point because the rezoning was conditioned on it being closed.  Comments 
continued on traffic control, maintenance issues, construction access, public utility 
easement, and setbacks with respect to public and private road.   
 
Mr. DiLorenzo said it is proposed to provide a temporary construction access from 
Paragon.  He indicated that a stub street was provided at the recommendation of 
the Planning Department at the time Carlson Park subdivision was developed.  Mr. 
DiLorenzo said he would make the road public should that be the City’s 
recommendation.  He noted a private road would save trees and provide a better 
buffer.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-04-050 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development), as requested for Walnut Forest Site Condominium, 
including 16 units, located east of I-75 between Paragon and Hedgewood, Section 16, 
within the CR-1 zoning district, be tabled to the May 10, 2005 Regular Meeting, so 
the petitioner can present to the Planning Department and subsequently to the 
Planning Commission at a Special/Study Meeting prior to the Regular Meeting how 
the following issues can be resolved:    
 
1. Private versus public street, the Planning Commission would prefer a public 

street. 
2. Location of public utility easement on the west side or south side of the street.  
3. Provide drawings on the setback from the sidewalk on the east side to the 

buildings; i.e., public versus private street so a determination can be made 
whether there is enough space to park cars in driveways without intruding on 
sidewalks. 

4. Maintenance and snow removal on a public street that ends into a private street. 
5. Use of Paragon as a construction entrance; i.e., Paragon is an asphalt street 

that might disintegrate under heavy construction use and liability responsibility 
should damage occurs.   

 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Revision to Proposed Hidden Forest Site Condominium, 37 
units/lots proposed, South side of Wattles, West of Jennings, Section 22, Zoned R-
1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Hidden Forest Site Condominium.  The petitioner is incorporating an additional 
0.82-acre parcel on the east side of Wattles Road that allows him to add three units 
to the development.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the Hidden Forest Site Condominium plan as 
revised.   
 
The petitioner, Gary Abitheira of 178 Larchwood, Troy, was present.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
M. J. Molnar of 462 E. Wattles, Troy, was present.  Mr. Molnar lives next door to the 
parcel recently acquired by the petitioner.  Mr. Molnar said the City told him at the time 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

he purchased his home that there would be no building on the subject 18-acre parcel 
because it is in a floodplain.  He said after the property was purchased, all the trees 
were cut, the stumps were ground, all vegetation was stripped and the land was 
disked so that there was nothing but dirt.  He said the property was then graded and 
canals were put in, all of them leading to his back yard.  Mr. Molnar said his backyard 
floods whenever it rains.  He said the massive amount of trees and vegetation that 
were destroyed and left in the working ditch along the property line eventually decayed 
and turned into compost.  Mr. Molnar said he has two sump pumps running 24 hours a 
day; one sump pump burned out; and his utility bills have increased significantly.  Mr. 
Molnar said the property owner has promised to redirect water and correct the flooding 
situation, but nothing has happened to date.  Mr. Molnar referenced the discussion at 
a previous Planning Commission meeting on the site condominium project going in on 
the north side of Wattles, as relates to the concern of potential flooding from the 
difference of grading.  He expressed similar concerns with this proposed development.   
 
Mr. Khan strongly encouraged Mr. Molnar to discuss the flooding problem with the 
Engineering Department.  He also informed Mr. Molnar that floodplain maps have 
been recently revised and suggested that he check the current status of his property.   
 
Mr. Molnar said he has been working with the City Engineering Department for the last 
two years.  He had asked the field engineer if it was legal for the property owner to 
cause a creek to run through his backyard every time it rains.  The field engineer 
indicated it was not legal, and Mr. Molnar asked why the matter continues to exist for 
two years.  Mr. Molnar said the response from the field engineer was “It’s in who you 
know.” 
 
Mr. Miller asked Mr. Molnar to contact him directly and he would arrange a meeting in 
which he would act as mediator with the City Engineer to resolve the issue.  Mr. Miller 
said if Mr. Molnar’s comments are true, the existing situation should not be occurring 
and the City should require the developer to fix it.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said it is obvious that Mr. Molnar’s property is the lowest property 
within the whole area, and the City owes it to him to resolve the matter.  
 
Mr. Abitheira was agreeable in meeting with the City and Mr. Molnar to work on a 
solution to the problem.   
 
Bruce Baker of 380 E. Wattles, Troy, was present.  Mr. Baker lives adjacent to the 
subject property on the west side.  Mr. Baker expressed similar concerns with the 
flooding problem.  He asked how he could get a copy of the revised site plan.   
 
Mr. Miller informed Mr. Baker that he could receive a copy of the revised site plan from 
the Planning Department during regular business hours.  [A copy of the revised site 
plan was provided to Mr. Baker from a Planning Commission member.] 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Dan McCatty of 3721 Jennings, Troy, was present.  Mr. McCatty addressed the water 
problem.  He asked if the storm drainage easement would be used for utilities or if the 
trees would remain.  Mr. McCatty also asked if the petitioner could replace the trees 
should they be removed.   
 
Mr. Miller indicated it might not be possible to save any trees or vegetation along the 
storm drainage easement. 
 
Discussion followed on: 
• Authority of the Planning Commission to request the petitioner to replace cut trees. 
• The existence of trees near the drainage easement. 
• Acceptable trees according to the City’s tree ordinance. 
 
Mark Harrison of 3621 Jennings, Troy, was present.  Mr. Harrison referenced his 
previous comments with respect to access from Troywood.  Mr. Harrison said, in 
retrospect, that access might not be a good idea.   
 
Enrique Aguilar of 3741 Jennings, Troy, was present.  Mr. Aguilar voiced concerns 
with potential water problems, the increase of traffic and the safety of neighborhood 
children.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Comments followed with respect to (1) tabling the matter until the existing water 
problem is resolved and (2) forwarding a design recommendation to the Engineering 
Department as relates to the asphalt pathway.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-051 
 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Hidden Forest Site Condominium, including 37 units, 
located south of Wattles Road and east of Livernois Road, Section 22, within the R-1C 
zoning district be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. That the petitioner prior to City Council approval meet with the neighbors on 

Wattles directly east and west, the City Engineer and the City Planner to resolve 
storm water problems and issues and the debris brought by the storm water 
issues.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

2. That the petitioner prior to City Council approval meet with the Engineering and 
Planning Departments, the Fire Department and emergency vehicle people to 
determine rather than using asphalt pavement for the emergency access and 
pedestrian access to Troywood and the school, to be some kind of pervious 
pavers that would hold the largest emergency vehicles the City has. 

 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:40 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:52 p.m. 
 

___________ 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 683-B) – Proposed Medical 
Building, North side of Big Beaver, between John R and Rochester, Section 23 – 
From R-1E to E-P, From R-1E to P-1 and From E-P to P-1  
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that the request is compatible with 
surrounding land uses and zoning districts and is consistent with the intent of the 
Future Land Use Plan.  As a courtesy, a copy of a protest petition in opposition to 
the proposed rezoning was provided members prior to the beginning of tonight’s 
meeting.  Mr. Savidant indicated that the petition would be considered at the time of 
City Council review.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested that all of the R-1E area be rezoned to E-P, not just the 
50 feet as proposed by the petitioner.  He said that would line up all of the 
properties.  
 
Mr. Schultz concurred.  He would like to see the 33.75 feet included in the E-P 
zoning so all of the lots would be the same depth.  Mr. Schultz said the high-
pressure transmission line that runs under the piece of property would most likely 
inhibit building a parking lot.   
 
The petitioner, Najim Saymuah of CDPA Architects, 26600 Telegraph, Southfield, 
was present.  Mr. Saymuah asked to see the protest petition.  He explained the 
hardship as relates to the proposed rezoning.  Mr. Saymuah, in reviewing the site 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

plan, acknowledged the existence of a gas line easement.  He said the 
development does not encroach on the easement and indicated the easement stops 
the development from moving further north.   
 
Chair Strat stated that the site plan provided serves as clarification in the rezoning 
request but should not be considered in the review process of the rezoning request.   
 
Dr. Kheir Al-Zouhayli, owner of the property, was also present.   
 
Mr. Saymuah and Dr. Al-Zouhayli did not fully understand the concept proposed by 
the members.   
 
A lengthy and detailed discussion and review of the site plan followed in an attempt 
to clarify the members’ position on the proposed rezoning.     
 
Mr. Saymuah indicated they would have no opposition to rezone the 33.75-foot 
property to E-P.   
 
It was the consensus of the members to table the rezoning request so that the 
boundaries could be better clarified.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Shih Hwang Wu (“John”) of 1577 Boyd, Troy, was present.  Mr. Wu said the protest 
petition submitted was signed by approximately 66% of residents who would be 
affected and are opposed to the proposed rezoning.  He shared the major concerns 
of the residents:  (1) Safety of the young children of the 70 families in the West 
Oaks Subdivision.  (2) Encroachment of commercial and industrial development into 
residential areas, as relates to property values of their homes.  (3) Flood lights from 
the commercial buildings. (4) Preservation of the existing natural barrier, beauty and 
balance to the neighborhood.  (5) Increase of noise.  Mr. Wu asked why commercial 
development could go on the gas line easement, but not residential.   
 
Sanjay Dixit of 1590 Hartland, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dixit expressed concern with 
the parking lot being extended further into single family residential.  He said the 
proposed rezoning request would spoil a well-planned subdivision.  He questioned 
when commercial development from the Big Beaver Road corridor would stop 
extending into the residential area.  Mr. Dixit said the residents cannot fight 
business owners and developers and rely on the Planning Commission and City 
Council members to protect their interests.   
 
Ashtiaq Khokhar of 1566 Hartland, Troy, was present.  Mr. Khokhar has a wooded 
lot behind his home and he said the proposed development would destroy the 
beauty of the subdivision.  Mr. Khokhar’s request to build a gazebo was denied 
because of the gas line easement, and he questioned why a parking lot could be 
built on top of it.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Chair Strat informed the audience that there would be no parking lot on the gas line 
easement.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Saymuah asked that he be provided the names and addresses of the residents 
who spoke this evening.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-052 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the R-1E to 
E-P, R-1E to P-1 and E-P to P-1 rezoning request, located on the north side of Big 
Beaver Road, between John R and Rochester, within Section 23, be tabled to the 
May 10, 2005 Regular Meeting, for the following reason: 
 
1.  Review the request for further definition where the boundaries are and how 

they might line up with surrounding areas. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the request be reviewed at a Study Session Meeting 
prior to the May 10, 2005 Regular Meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

11. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 323-B) – Proposed Restaurant Addition, Northeast corner 
of Big Beaver and Crooks (888 W. Big Beaver), Section 21, Zoned O-S-C (Office 
Service Commercial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Morton’s Restaurant.  The petitioner was asked to bring in sample 
building materials for the Planning Commission review.  Mr. Savidant provided a 
detailed explanation between the parking space layout preferred by the petitioner 
(dated April 6, 2005) and the layout preferred by the Planning Department (dated 
March 31, 2005).  He noted that the petitioner submitted an alternate parking space 
layout today, and the Planning Department has not had the opportunity to review it.   
 
Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to 
approve the site plan as submitted with the conditions to add a 5-foot wide sidewalk 
on the west side of Wilshire and provide an off-street parking space layout on the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

south side of the restaurant building as preferred by the Planning Department and 
dated March 31, 2005.   
 
Mr. Miller stated that the petitioner has committed to 145 air banked parking spaces 
should they be needed in the future for construction of a deck.   
 
David Richards, Architect, Rossetti and Associates, Two Towne Square, Southfield, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Richards said the parking space layout 
is proposed on the south side of the drive because (1) to date, after 25 years, it has 
not been necessary to implement the landbanked parking spaces; and (2) the 
proposed tenant desires to have a clean building front.  Mr. Richards displayed the 
alternate parking space layout that combines the landbanked parking with the 
proposed aisle on the south side, increases the size of the green space, and 
provides a convenient approach. 
 
Members were provided drawings of the alternate parking space layout.   
 
Mr. Richards displayed several renderings and detailed the approach to the design 
and how the restaurant addition is a natural extension of the existing facility.  Mr. 
Richards circulated samples of the precast and granite chip for review by the 
members.  He noted the windows in the restaurant addition are near the entry of the 
existing building and clarified the proposed and existing landbanked parking.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Discussed at great length were: 
• Handicapped parking; i.e., number of spaces, location. 
• Appearance of building front. 
• Landscaping; i.e., adequacy and beautification of City, perimeter landscaping, 

hedgerow similar to Kelly Services building. 
• Landbanked parking. 
• Appearance of parking structure. 
 
Mr. Richards asked the members to consider the retail and restaurant use in 
relation to the visibility of the building.  He said it was their intent to create a minimal 
design so the addition would have a low impact on the site.  Mr. Richards briefly 
addressed the landscaping and landbanked parking modifications.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 18 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-04-053 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Restaurant Addition, located on the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Crooks, 
located in Section 21, within the O-S-C zoning district, be tabled to the May 10, 2005 
Regular Meeting, for the following reasons, and that the Planning Department 
provide an updated report at a Special/Study Meeting in May:  

 
1. That the petitioner submits one set of plans for the parking.  
2. That the petitioner work with the Planning Department and the Parks and 

Recreation Department on the landscaping plan.   
 
Scott Wortman of Redico Management, One Towne Square, Southfield, was 
present.  Mr. Wortman said he is just as confused as the members.  He originally 
thought the proposed restaurant addition would be approved administratively, and it 
would not be necessary to go through the formal site plan review process.  Mr. 
Wortman said the different parking space layouts were submitted because the 
petitioner, architect and tenant did not agree with the Planning Department’s 
recommendation.  Mr. Wortman said their intent was to make a modest addition to 
the building that would comply with all the City’s Zoning Ordinances and Codes.  
Mr. Wortman addressed the proposed design layout as relates to handicapped 
parking, and said security of the building was a consideration in the location of 
handicapped parking spaces.  He said they are very familiar with the parking space 
counts and worked with Mr. Miller to come up with alternate plans on landbanking 
options.  Mr. Wortman said they are willing to work with the appropriate City 
departments on a landscape plan that would satisfy the needs of the City.  Mr. 
Wortman stressed the desire of Morton’s Restaurant to have an opening date no 
later than Thanksgiving Day and asked the members’ consideration in expediting 
the procedure.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Strat, Vleck, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Schultz 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the landscaping issue could be handled administratively.  She 
said the City is not addressing the needs of a tenant that she thinks the community 
would like to have in the City.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he thinks what he heard from the petitioner is that they want to 
build it as their plans show and not give any consideration to the proposed 
alternatives.  Mr. Schultz agreed that the landscaping issue could be handled 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 19 - 
 

administratively.  He said it appears the petitioner plans to provide the minimum 
required landscaping, and he does not see where 30 days would buy the City 
anything on the proposed development.   
 
Discussion followed with respect to expediting the approval process.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-054 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution # PC-2005-04-053 be reconsidered.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Chamberlain, Khan, Vleck 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-055 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To review the matter [SP 323-B] at the April 26, 2005 Special/Study 
Meeting. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Chamberlain, Khan, Vleck 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Messrs. Vleck, Chamberlain and Khan said the site plan is being rushed through the 
planning review and approval process, and that the City would not get a quality 
product in that short of a time frame.  
 
 

12. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 914) – Proposed Amberwood Condominium, South side 
of South Blvd., West of Rochester Road, Section 3, Zoned R-1T (One Family 
Attached) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Amberwood Condominium.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted 
subject to five conditions as identified in the Planning Department report.   
 
The petitioner, Ted Berlinghof of Architects International, Inc., Detroit, was present.  
Mr. Berlinghof provided renderings of the proposed development.  He said they 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 20 - 
 

would be more than happy to continue to work with the City of Troy to get the 
development approved.  Mr. Berlinghof confirmed that there are no windows on the 
ends of the units and that landscaping would be provided.  Mr. Berlinghof briefly 
addressed the design of the buildings.   
 
Mr. Schultz indicated the landscape plan does not show landscaping at the ends of 
the buildings.   
 
Mr. Berlinghof said he would be more than happy to work with the landscape 
analyst on the matter. 
 
Chair Strat asked why a turnaround was provided in lieu of a “T”. 
 
Mr. Berlinghof replied that the turnaround allows for a larger retention area and 
more green space.  He indicated the turnaround meets all the requirements of the 
Fire Department.   
 
Mr. Schultz said the proposed development is a classic example why the Planning 
Commission should not give consideration to proposed site plans provided at the 
time of rezoning requests.  He said the site plan provided for this development at 
the rezoning level bears no resemblance to the site plan submitted for approval.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-04-056 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Amberwood Condominium, located on the south side of South Boulevard and west of 
Rochester Road, located in Section 3, containing 12 units on approximately 2.31 
acres, within the R-1T zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Provide deceleration lane as per Traffic Engineer. 
2. Indicate the 40-foot wide easement for private road on site plan. 
3. Indicate 5-foot easement for sidewalk and public utility purposes adjacent to the 

40-foot wide private road easement on site plan. 
4. The berm shall be at least 50 feet in width and with slopes no greater than 1:4, 

and landscaped as per Section 12.60.03 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
5. Label detention basin correctly. 
6. Work with the landscape analyst to include landscaping on the ends of the units. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz, Vleck, Wright 
No: Khan, Strat 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 21 - 
 

Mr. Khan said the project is not befitting to the City of Troy.   
 
Chair Strat said the project lacks creativity and will not be an asset to the 
community.   
 
Mr. Schultz said the development meets the requirements, but he personally thinks 
it is going to be atrocious looking.  He said if he could have voted against it, he 
would have.  
 
 

13. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 388-B) – Proposed Restaurant Re-Build, Southeast 
corner of Big Beaver and I-75 (585 W. Big Beaver), Section 28, Zoned O-S-C 
(Office Service Commercial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed T.G.I. Fridays Restaurant.  The petitioner was asked to bring in samples 
of building materials for the Planning Commission review.  Mr. Savidant reported 
that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the site plan 
as submitted with the condition that a shared sidewalk easement over the sidewalk 
on the property to the east is executed prior to Final Site Plan approval.   
 
Tim Germain, project engineer, Nowak & Fraus, Royal Oak, was present.  Mr. 
Germain introduced the petitioner Tim Poole of Carrell Poole & Yost Architecture, 
Dallas, Texas.  He explained the existing O’Grady’s restaurant would be taken 
down and replaced with a T.G.I. Fridays Restaurant.  Mr. Germain said they would 
bring the remainder of the site into compliance.   
 
Mr. Savidant asked the petitioner to briefly explain the reason for the reduction in 
parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Germain said the new restaurant would have more seats than the previous one.  
He said, based on the documentation provided to the Planning Department, the 
shortage of 14 spaces is minor with regard to the consideration that many of the 
hotel users would remain at the hotel to dine and would already be parked.  He said 
a parking space would be freed up should a hotel visitor choose to dine elsewhere.  
Mr. Germain said the petitioner and the owner of Drury Inn do not view the shortage 
of parking spaces as a problem.  Mr. Germain said records indicate an average of 
87 rooms an evening remain vacant, and it is assumed that those 87 parking 
spaces would far outweigh the shortage of 14 parking spaces required by the 
Zoning Ordinance for both the hotel use and restaurant use.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if the brick on the front of the restaurant is the same brick or a 
compatible brick with the hotel.   
 
Mr. Poole responded that the restaurant brick is the same brick as the hotel brick.  
He noted that the color of the EFIS would also match the hotel.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 22 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-04-057 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required parking spaces to three hundred eighty seven (387) when 
a total of four-hundred one (401) spaces are required on the site based on the off-
street parking space requirements for restaurants and office uses, as per Article XL.  
This reduction meets the standards of Article 40.20.12 and will assist the Drury Inn 
and T.G.I. Fridays in minimizing the amount of storm water runoff on the site. 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission has made a determination that the 
applicant has met the standard of Section 26.25.01 of the Zoning Ordinance, which 
requires that restaurants in the O-S-C be permitted “provided they are included in 
the office use structure or other principal structures…or are attached to such 
structures by means of a fully enclosed structural attachment, and therefore shall 
not be permitted as freestanding structures.  Such secondary structures shall be 
designed so as to provide a logical extension of the floor plan of the principal 
structures, and shall utilize exterior materials similar to or harmonious with such 
principal structures”.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested 
for the Proposed Restaurant Re-Build, located on the southeast corner of Big Beaver 
and I-75, located in Section 28, within the O-S-C zoning district, is hereby granted, 
subject to the following condition: 
 
1. A shared sidewalk easement over the sidewalk on the property to the east shall 

be executed prior to Final Site Plan Approval.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

14. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested to members to walk the Somerset Collection skywalk across 
Big Beaver Road between the hours of 5 p.m. and 6 p.m. to experience the view as it 
relates to building heights, green space and traffic.  He said the proposed Monarch 
Residences will be a very good attraction in that area with respect to building height and 
the need for traffic control will be evident.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT APRIL 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 23 - 
 

Mr. Miller announced that he and Chair Strat would be meeting with the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study selection committee to make a final recommendation to the DDA.   
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 12:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\04-12-05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft April 13, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, April 13, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:07 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 John Szerlag  
 
 
ABSENT: David A. Lambert 
  
   
ALSO PRESENT: Lori Grigg Bluhm 
 Laura Fitzpatrick 
 Rebecca Sorensen, UBS 
  
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 04 - 013 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That Lambert be excused. 
 
Yeas:  All 6 
Absent: Lambert 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 04 - 014 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the February 9, 2005 as amended and the March 9, 2005 
meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All 6 
Absent: Lambert 
 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01r



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft April 13, 2005 
 
 

 2

OTHER BUSINESS – PRIOR GOVERNMENTAL SERVICE 
 
The Board Received and filed the requests of Marvin Moore, Jeffrey Stacey and Michael 
Lyczkowski. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – DECEMBER 31, 2004 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
Rebecca Sorensen of UBS reviewed the performance results of December 31, 2004 with 
the Board. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – SUSPENDED PENSION CHAPTER 10 
 
The Board reviewed a letter from Vanoverbeke, Michaud & Timmony and a memo from 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney regarding Chapter 10, Section 52 Pension suspending 
language.  The Board will consider amending that section at their next meeting. 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 04- 015 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the following investments be sold: 
Sell:  Allegheny Energy; BMC Software; Cambrex Corp. and AT & T. 
 
Yeas:  All 6 
Absent: Lambert 
 
 
The next meeting is May 11, 2005 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:43 p.m.  
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2005\4-13-05 Minutes_Draft.doc 



TROY CAC ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT April 21, 2005 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
The regular meeting for April 21, 2005 was called to order at 7:07 p.m. in Conference 
Room C at City Hall. 
 
 
II.  ROLL CALL 
Present: 
Bryan Wehrung 
Alan Manzon 
Kent Voigt 
Penny Marinos 
Richard Hughes 
Fan Lin 
Cindy Stewart 
 
Absent: 
Jerry Bixby 
 
III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Resolution 
Moved by:  Richard Hughes 
Seconded by:  Alan Manzon 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of the January 19, 2005 regular meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
IV.  CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Comcast Communicator – Not sure if this is being mailed to residential customers 
(Cindy Stewart will check).  News related to Comcast services, technology and 
diverse programming options. 

 
B. Comcast Cable Guard – Maintenance Service Plan begins 5/1/05 and will include 

Comcast telephone wiring, video and /or High Speed Internet cable wiring at no 
additional charge for $1.49/month fee. 

 
C. WOW – new phone service:  Launched in April as well as their new name “WOW! 

Internet*Cable*Phone.  If have voice over VOIP must go and sign up on website for 
911 

 
D. Comcast:  Channel Lineup for March:  Making program listings more consistent 

throughout Michigan.  Pay per view channels are no longer available with the 
analog service. 

 
E. Comcast – change to High Speed Internet product:  current 3Mbps 

downstream/256kbps upstream will be upgraded to 4Mbps/384kbps.  50% increase 
in speed. 

 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01s



TROY CAC ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT April 21, 2005 
 
 

 2

V.  ARTICLES 
 

A. Citywide WiFi network pondered – Chicago Tribune March 9, 2005:  Chicago took 
first steps toward installation of a City-wide wireless network that would allow 
residents to connect to the internet from home, office, school and provide City Hall 
with a major source of new revenue. 

 
B. Troy should pursue selection as Wireless Oakland Pilot City – Troy Eccentric March 

27, 2005:  Oakland County is seeking to become the first county  (910 square miles) 
in the nation to go wireless.  (There are still a lot of questions that need to be 
answered related to this project.  Troy will submit an application to be considered 
one of the pilot cities.) 

 
C. Royal Oak wired about Internet Access – Daily Tribune March 31, 2005. 

 
D. Comcast says demand overwhelmed its servers – Free Press April 15 2005:  With 

approximately one million subscribers locally, Comcast is Michigan’s largest 
provider of high-speed internet connections.  During the past couple of weeks, 
demand has overwhelmed the centralized server locations in NJ and CO.  Reasons 
are unclear (poor equipment?). 

 
E. Odds Are:  WI-FI on its way to a site near you – Free Press April 15, 2005:  larger 

number of WI-FI sites popping up all over the metro area. 
 
VI.  OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Cable Complaint Logs:  no reports sent for this quarter yet. 
 

• Kent – has anyone noticed the volume level differences on WOW? 
Kathy Kisle talked about this two meetings ago and was going to respond 
back to Kent, but never did.  Cindy S will check into this matter. 
Specific channels –  
TBS 
QVS 
HBO 
Music Channel 
 

• Vacancy - Bob Victor interested or not?  If not, see who else is interested. 
 

B. Report on web publications 
• Bryan will remind members 2 and 4 weeks before next meeting. 
• If anyone finds an interesting site, please email Bryan and he will keep list 

updated and active. 
 



TROY CAC ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT April 21, 2005 
 
 

 3

 
 
VII.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Certificate of Recognition for Fan Lin – student rep to CAC for past two years.  
Accepted into the MSU Honors program 

 
B. Comcast Local – check if CMN has contacted Comcast regarding any programs 

they might like to air (music awards/sporting events) 
 
VIII.  STAFF REPORT 
 
Continue to tape “Talking History” series with longtime Troy residents. 
 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
 
Resolution 
Moved by:  Penny Marinos 
Seconded by:  Alan Manzon 
 
RESOLVED, that the CAC meeting be adjourned at 8:25 p.m. on April 21, 2005. 
 
Yeas:  All 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
     _____________________________________ 
      Bryan Wehrung, CAC Chairman 
 
     _____________________________________ 
      Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT APRIL 26, 2005 

 
A.  CALL TO ORDER 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, April 26, 2005 at the 
Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:30 pm. 
 
B.  MEMBERS PRESENT 
Present: 

Jim Cyrulewski     
Marilyn Musick      
Cecile Dilley  
Kessie Kaltsounis  
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski     
Bill Hall 
Mike Gonda 
Jeff Stewart   
Bob Preston 
 
Bob Berk (absent) 

 
City Staff Present: 

Bob Matlick 
Gerry Scherlinck 
Laura Fitzpatrick 
  
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
Resolution # TD-2005-04-14 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
Seconded by Cecile Dilley 
 
RESOLVED that absent member is excused. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Resolution # TD-2005-04-15 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Cecile Dilley 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the March 22, 2005 Troy Daze Advisory Committee are 
approved.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
EVENT CHAIRPERSONS 
Resolution # TD-2005-04-16 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01t



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT APRIL 26, 2005 
 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
Seconded by Mike Gonda 
 
RESOLVED that Alison Miller (Teen Event) and Shannon DeVries (Talent Show) are 
approved as event chairpersons.  
 
ADJOURN MEETING 
Resolution # TD-2005-04-17 
Moved by    
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting be adjourned at 7:33 p.m. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED     
 
_____________________________ 
Kessie Kaltsounis, Vice Chairperson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Recording Secretary 
 
 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT APRIL 26, 2005 
 

TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE  
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Tuesday, April 26, 2005 at 
the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:33 pm. 
 
A.  ROLL CALL 
 
Present*:

Leonard Bertin  
Mike Gonda  
Bob Preston 
JoAnn Preston 
Cecile Dilley  
Bill Hall  
Kessie Kaltsounis  
Jim Cyrulewski 

 Shannon DeVries 

  Jeff Stewart  
Marilyn Musick* 
Sandy Macknis* 
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski  
Lois Cyrulewski  
Tarcisio Massaini  
Jeffrey Super 

   Tom Tighe           Doris Schuchter  
       
City Staff Present:

Bob Matlick  
   Gerry Scherlinck  
   Laura Fitzpatrick 
    
B.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Change to March 22, 2005 meeting minutes 
 Ability Expo – change draft to craft 
 
Moved by Leonard Bertin 
Seconded by Sandy Macknis 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes with correction from the March 22, 2005 Troy Daze Festival 
Committee are approved. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C.  TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
Revenue: $166,500 
Exp: $171,894 
 
2005 Event Budget distributed 

• Reminder – Make sure your event comes in at or under budget 
• Reviewed budget – question from Matlick regarding Fire Department change 
• Add #3 to OLD BUSINESS -  “Senior Sensation Day” 

 
 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT APRIL 26, 2005 

D.  CORRESPONDENCE 
• Check with Cindy – summer bulletin (TROY TODAY) 
• TSD agreed to placement of lawn signs 
 

 
E.  CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT 

• Bertin/Ability Expo - will not take place due to lack of volunteers and interest on part of 
vendors 

• Fitzpatrick/Race – Flyer ready late May; Online registration ready June 15th 
• Gonda/Ops – Good 
• Musick/Cauldron – Good 
• Scherlinck  – Police Department won’t have a booth 
• DeVries/Talent Show - getting started 
• Cyrulewski/Sunday Entertainment – Good – got a band 
• Matlick/Fire Department – probably won’t have a booth 
• Schuchter/EthniCity – New Chair 
• Bob Preston – have contacted schools and already signed up 65 people 
• Tom Tighe – KOC 50/50 
• Stewart/Special Children – would prefer not to serve hot dogs; delete from suggestion 

list:  “charge a fee”   
Special Adult –  Buscemi’s provides for kids 

Message/invite for Senior Citizens in Troy Today 
Will make flyers and distribute @ Community Center Events 
Seeking an Elvis impersonator for special needs adults 

• Macknis – has signed up 65 student volunteers 
• Dilley/Booths – Applications in mail 
• Hall/Mr. Troy – No entertainment yet 

Check on Helium – how do they order it? (who do they contact on staff) 
• Super/Shuttles 

 
Advisory Committee wants copies of monthly detail $ sheet to all Advisory Board Members 
(in packets) 
 
Having a “Senior Sensation Light” Event 

• Donuts and coffee 
• No free lunch/no lunch served 
 

ADJOURN MEETING 
 
Moved by Bill Hall 
Seconded by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Festival Committee Meeting be adjourned at 9:01 p.m. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 



morrellca
Text Box
J-02a



To:  Mayor and City Council 
  cc:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
         Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
From:  Robin Beltramini, Mayor Pro Tem 
Subject: The Power of Democratic Governance:  Engaging Citizens as Partners, New 

Orleans, LA, April 21-23, 2005 
Date:   May 2, 2005 
 
 
I learned so much during these two days.  In small groups, and large, there was extensive 
discussion about the changes in government, and relationships with and of citizens.  The 
overwhelming theme was that times have changed and we must change in how we do 
business in order to regain the trust of our citizens.  As I was listening to the various 
speakers and participating in the dialogue, it occurred to me that this was about taking to 
government, Mary Kay Ash’s mantra “People support that which they help create.”  Great 
emphasis was put on working directly with citizens, not just representing (what we believe 
are) their interests. 
 
Benjamin Barber, Professor at University of Maryland and principal of the Democracy 
Collaborative, really set up the big picture.  We live in a dramatically different world than we 
did even 50 years ago.  Our major influencers are no longer mayors, teachers and clergy, but 
private media—internet, television, movies, cellular communication, etc.—all peddling the 
benefit of profit.  These small “sound bites” create what Barber calls an Attention Deficit 
Syndrome which precludes sustained participation.  And, citizenship takes time.  Secondly, 
there is widespread movement toward privatization and minimization of government.  While 
this may save a few tax dollars, it could undermine broad democratic participation through its 
very limitations.  Thirdly, we now are globally interdependent.  Issues are interdependent 
while resources are locally limited.  Therefore, interrelationships between cities must be more 
than ceremonial. 
 
Through a question and answer period, Barber stressed finding ways to create a sense of 
community and interdependence to reinvigorate democracy in our cities.  Letting citizens 
debate with each other solutions to various challenges would prove helpful in getting the 
entire argument into the discussion.  Traditionally, we are “one issue citizens.”  Citizens must 
be given the opportunity to partner and create their own destiny as a community.  
Government must become the facilitator, more than the doer. 
 
Angela Glover Blackwell, CEO of PolicyLink, gave us a discourse on the conditions of 
democracy.  Generally, those conditions: are a fair and equitable opportunity structure; broad 
economic participation; broad civic participation, and public policies aligned with democratic 
practice.  Blackwell’s theme that opportunity is dictated in large part by where one lives was 
illustrated through various examples—including the availability of reliable public 
transportation in metropolitan Detroit.  In Troy, the conditions are present.  However, we 
need to educate that democratic participation is not just voting.  Citizens and residents need 
to be engaged throughout the decision-making process—a particular ingredient to narrowing 
the gap between “the haves and have-nots.”  We have both ends of that spectrum here in 
Troy. 
 
John Ott, attorney and former faculty member in Public Policy Studies at Duke University, 
shared methodology for facilitating community change.  While showcasing much of Stephen 
Covey’s theory, “All change is inside out,” Ott talked specifically about where to start.  In our 

morrellca
Text Box
J-02b



case, we would look first to strengthening the sense of community among our very diverse 
citizenry.  The first question to answer is, “Who are we?”  Get the answer to that question 
through relationships and interconnectedness of our citizens and residents.  We all need to 
move beyond talking primarily to/about folks like us.  What about talking to the rest of the 
community?  Get secondary motives out on the table so that they can be engaged early.  If 
not, they will reassert later and undermine the process and decisions.  Self-interest is not in 
and of itself a bad thing, nor is secondary interest, or shadow interest.  But, in discussions we 
must recognize the difference between “my vision” and “our vision” (which may not be fully 
articulated and decided).   Most of all, for democratic decision-making and visioning to occur, 
government must create a space for citizen relationships to grow, for folks to share their 
stories without judgment, a safe place for the conflict that makes decision-making messy, but 
valid and sustainable.   
 
Much of the time was spent reviewing specific case studies of cities and villages that had 
engaged their citizens to effect change in their communities.  The overarching themes, or 
values, in all successful efforts were partnering and “elbow grease.”  Citizens, businesses, 
and residents, in all cases met together, discussed together, and came to a shared vision.  
Then, they worked together, not just to get the local government to recognize and validate 
their vision, but to help that vision become a reality.  These folks gave time—time for long 
discussions with each other to find the uncommon, common ground for their efforts; time to 
fan out into the community to further the vision, and tweak it if necessary; time to formulate a 
broad-based vision; time to put forth the effort to make that dream a reality.  It is not just 
citizens telling government what they want.  It is citizens, with government, deciding what 
they want, and determining the role each will play in attaining the goal.  It is an investment of 
personal capital (i.e., time and effort) by all participants. 
 
The following are some of my own concluding thoughts on why such a process would be 
good for Troy, and how we might make it work.  I believe that without putting into place such 
a process, elected leadership in this community will continue to second-guess and revisit 
decisions. 
 
First, we illustrate all three of Barber’s “symptoms” of a changed world.  We have a growing 
ethnic population which needs recognition.  While this brings us a well-educated workforce to 
tout, it can create conflict from the contradictory value systems such diverse cultures bring to 
the community.  Ethnic culture is homogenous.  The American community is not.  However, 
such first-hand familiarity with global forces can be used to strengthen us. 
 
Second, we have a natural tendency to want to reinvent government to be more like a 
business, with greater emphasis on efficiency and customer service even while showing 
empirically that we are already a very efficient city by almost any measure.  There is a 
current feeling of alienation from government, not just generally, but right here in Troy shown 
through a growth of the “say no” citizen groups and political candidates.  To the extent that 
we think of citizens as customers, and treat them as such, we will encourage them to think of 
themselves only as taxpayers.  This vending machine mentality can actually magnify the 
sense of alienation.  Additionally, we need to guard against thinking that “no news is good 
news” or that the citizenry is apathetic.  I don’t think that is the case at all.  More citizens 
don’t vote because they don’t believe it will make a difference.  Groups don’t get more folks 
to a meeting because, more often than not, it leads to another meeting, not to action. 
 
Third, while we have a well-educated population and 53 faith institutions in town, it is the 
media that influence our citizens.  Some weeks it is the City Council meeting on cable 



television, others it is a letter to the editor or front page story in the newspaper, or it is the 
automated phone call or email from a group/business/individual promoting some action or 
value.  As community leaders this can lead to influences that make us second-guess. 
 
Representative democracy and participatory democracy are neither mutually exclusive, nor 
are they wildly compatible.  There is a natural tension there.  Our challenge is to build 
bridges within the tension because we have electors, citizens, and residents who fall firmly, 
almost exclusively, into one theory or the other.   Communities operate best when there is a 
place for both interests.  
 
We have talked about a new community visioning process.  We have initiated and even 
completed many items in the Troy Futures report of 1993.  However, our community has 
changed since then.  Even decisions we are making now to enhance that vision are running 
into vocal opposition, at the Council table and from the residents.  When listening to the 
reasons for opposition, some are based on need, some on cost, and some on vision.   This is 
illustrative of how our community has changed within the last decade and how the Troy 
Futures vision is no longer relevant to significant numbers of stakeholders.  The 1993 report 
has become a “wish list” that is no longer accurate. 
 
This Democratic Governance initiative is way we can create places and methods for citizens, 
decision-makers, and other stakeholders to formulate policy—together.  It is more than 
simply enabling citizens who want to affect the political process.  Democratic Governance 
provides ways for weighing all policy options, not just the potentially “winnable” ones.  It gives 
government a process to facilitate citizens having those crucial conversations with each other 
to build partnerships and understanding that ultimately build community, giving credibility to 
all points of view and frames of reference.  It is collaboration, on the ground, among citizens, 
residents, businesses and leadership.  This empowers our citizens by truly linking 
deliberation and decision.   This method turns a wish-list into a sustainable set of interests 
and the policies and mechanisms to realize community goals. 
 
Thomas Jefferson once stated, “The remedy for problems and deficits is more democracy.”  
Troy has fiscal and social challenges.  I believe more democracy, of the participatory kind, 
will lead us to sustainable positive resolution of these issues.  There will be a continuing 
place for representative democracy, but it will be secondary to the participatory kind.  Our job 
is two-fold.  First, we must facilitate the stakeholder discussions that build vision and ways to 
carry it out.  Second, we must recognize that in some instances, it is our job to lead and to 
decide—and to stick with that decision.  This second part has become difficult because our 
stakeholders have not validated the vision recently, nor put much recent effort into its 
realization—either one would have assured us of the consistent propriety of our actions.   
 
As always, I have much anecdotal information as well as further factual data and am happy 
to share.  I wanted to get this to you quickly because of the relevance I see for this process in 
our future visioning.  I learned quite a bit, and made a plethora of contacts to act as 
resources if we need them.  I’m happy to answer any questions this brief synopsis may 
generate.  Obviously, I believe that adopting Democratic Governance principals would be 
highly beneficial to the citizenry in general and to the efficacy of our local government.   
 
Thank you for this learning opportunity.  
 
 
R.E.B. 



May 4, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 
RE:  AGENDA ITEM – Responses to Council Questions raised at the  

May 2, 2005 Study Session 
 
The following are responses to various questions that were raised at last 
Monday’s Special/Study Session. 
 
How are housing/zoning inspections prioritized? 
An allegation of a violation of the City ordinance requires an immediate response.  
Comparatively, apartment/rental inspections are conducted to confirm 
compliance.  As a result resident complaints receive a higher priority than 
apartment/rental inspections.  Any complaints regarding the condition of an 
apartment would receive a high priority. 
 
With the additional staff-hours afforded by employing two part-time positions, 
versus one full-time position, City staff anticipates providing continued service to 
code violation complaints and increasing the number of apartment/rental 
inspections. 
 
Can we utilize some other space for videotaping meetings, rather than 
purchasing cameras for the Lower Level Conference Room? 
While there are alternate locations with remote video capabilities that could 
house committee meetings, the work for the Lower Level conference room was 
to use PEG funds.  The PEG funds must be used for government cable related 
expenditures. 
 
City staff explored alternatives for using the PEG funds.  The funds could also be 
used for the installation of a remote camera system at the Community Center.  
With the remote cameras at the Community Center, the City could readily tape 
committee meetings and Community Center programming held in the facility. 
 
If the money is not spent this fiscal year, the monies remain in the Capital fund 
for future CAVT related expenses. 
 
How do we prioritize road maintenance/repair funds? 
Road priorities are currently based on age and condition of the road, through 
visual inspection.  The inspections are conducted on an annual basis.  Following 
the inspections, a list is developed and incorporated into the budget.  Once fully 
operational, the Hansen program will provide additional empirical data to 
determine priorities and repair alternatives. 

morrellca
Text Box
J-02c



Responses to Council Questions 
May 4, 2005 
Page 2 
 
 
Are there alternatives to delivering Council packets? 
City staff is currently reviewing alternatives to eliminate the use of overtime for 
packet delivery.  Some of the options currently being discussed include: Council 
and committee members pick up their packets from City Hall or the Police front 
desk, electronic delivery mechanisms and earlier agenda submission deadlines 
so that packets can be delivered during regular business hours.  Staff will report 
on the alternatives at a future date. 
 
Please let me know if I can be of further assistance with these questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BPM/bt\agenda items\2005\05.09.05 – Responses to Council Questions raised at the May 2, 2005 Study Session 



morrellca
Text Box
J-02d







morrellca
Text Box
J-03a



morrellca
Text Box
J-03b



morrellca
Text Box
J-03c



morrellca
Text Box
J-03d



morrellca
Text Box
J-03e



morrellca
Text Box
J-03f





morrellca
Text Box
J-03g



morrellca
Text Box
J-03h



morrellca
Text Box
J-04a



morrellca
Text Box
J-04b







mccombca
Text Box
J-05







morrellca
Text Box
J-06









April 29, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Re: Agenda Item –  Report & Communication.  SAD Interest Rate 
 
Currently, the City charges 6% interest on Special Assessment projects.  This is set by 
Chapter 5, Section 1.162 of the City Ordinances, and has been in place since 1978. 
 
If bonds are to be used to pay for any portion of a Special Assessment project, the City 
may charge 1% above the bond interest rate, or 6%. 
 
Citizens are also free to finance the debt privately, and pay the assessment amount in 
full, if they are able to obtain more favorable financing.   
 
This activity happens in economic climates like the current climate.  In the eighties, 
when interest rates were particularly high, the citizens looked upon the City’s interest 
charge as the best market, and did not privately finance the assessment levy. 
 
Below is a listing of some comparable cities, and the interest rates they charge for their 
Special Assessment projects: 
 
Farmington Hills:  +1% above bond rate (8% until sale of bond) 
 
Livonia: 6% interest 
 
Madison Heights: 6% interest 
 
Novi: 6% interest, may not exceed 8% by ordinance 
 
Rochester Hills: +1% above bond rate (only bond above $2,000,000) 
 
Royal Oak: 6% interest 
 
Sterling Heights: 6% interest 
 
Southfield: 6% interest 
 
Warren: 6% interest paving & sewer (3% sidewalk, trees) 
 
NL/nl 

morrellca
Text Box
J-07



 

 

April 20, 2005 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 

William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM- William Beaumont Hospital Research Study 
 
 
Attached is a letter and PowerPoint handout from Dr. Robert Swor of William 
Beaumont Hospital describing a study to be conducted involving field evaluation 
of two devices used during CPR.  Dr. Swor indicates that several communities 
will be participating in the study including Birmingham, Royal Oak, and Sterling 
Heights.  Alliance Mobile Health has indicated interest in participating with the 
EMS units assigned to Troy.  
 
A requirement of this field test is a period of "community consultation" designed 
to make community leaders aware of the study, provide an opportunity to ask 
questions, and receive input from the community.   Beaumont will be holding 
several informational meetings in May.  I support the field trial and recommend 
that this be provided to council as an informational item.  If you have any 
questions, please contact me.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: William Nelson 

morrellca
Text Box
J-08





















April 15, 2005 
 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Action on Budget 
 
 
At the April 14, 2005 meeting of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board the following 
actions were taken:   
 
Resolution # PR-2005-04-008 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by Dixon 
 
Resolved, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommend to City Council 
approval of the Parks and Recreation budget.   
 
Yeas:  All   Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PR-2005-04-009 
Moved by Stewart 
Seconded by Dixon 
 
Resolved, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommend to City Council 
approval of the Golf Course budget. 
 
Yeas:  All   Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PR-2005-04-010 
Moved by Edmunds 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
Resolved, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommend to City Council to 
approve the Aquatic Center budget.   
 
Yeas  All   Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

morrellca
Text Box
J-09



 
 
Resolution #-PR-2005-04-011 
Moved by Zikakis 
Seconded by Stewart 
 
Resolved that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends to City Council to 
approve the Parks and Recreation, Golf Course and Aquatic Center Capital budgets.   
 
Yeas:  All   Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  CKA/mw 


	AGENDA: May 9, 2005
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	ROLL CALL:
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Jamie Martone – 2005 State Swimming Champion – 50 Yard Frees
	National Association of Letter Carriers – Food Drive Day – M


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 No Public Hearings Scheduled

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations
	Jamie Martone – 2005 State Swimming Champion – 50 Yard Frees
	National Association of Letter Carriers – Food Drive Day – M
	Arson Awareness Week – May 1 – 7, 2005

	E-4  Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bi�

	E-5 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Storm
	E-6 Request for Acceptance of Three Permanent Easements for 
	E-7 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sanitar
	E-8 Request for Acceptance of a Regrading and Temporary Cons
	E-9 Request for Acceptance of Conditioned Purchase Offer for
	E-10 Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreements
	E-11 Requested Partial Release of Retained Public Utility Ea
	E-12 Proposed Rezoning (Z-680) – Proposed Choice Cluster Dev
	E-13 Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor L
	E-14 Private Agreement for Troy Medical Offices – Project No

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Cable Advisor
	F-2 Proposed Membership Contract Between the City of Troy an
	F-3 Proposal From Mr. Ed Barlow to Facilitate a Futuring and
	F-4 Big Beaver Corridor Study
	F-5 Options/Ramifications for Proposed I-75 Crooks / Long La
	F-6 Temporary Aid Agreement
	F-7 Final Site Plan Approval – Proposed Maplewood Site Condo
	F-8 Flags
	F-9 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Process Awa
	F-10 Sole Source – US Filter HRR Enhancer and Pulsar Plus Br
	F-11 Bid Waiver – Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal fo
	F-12 Bid Waiver – Skate Park Equipment
	F-13 Petition Analysis, Paving of Tacoma SAD #05.202.01
	F-14 Petition Analysis, Paving of Olympia SAD #05.201.1
	F-15 Charter Revisions – 2005 Proposed Charter Committee Ref

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal, Renewal – 6881 Westaway - May 16,
	Parking Variance – 3290 W. Big Beaver – May 16, 2005
	Rezoning Application – South Side of Henrietta Avenue, South
	Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 2150-A) – Article 04.2

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Purchase of Jensen Property Sidwell #88-20-16-478-027
	Revisions to Chapter 97 and Chapter 60 of the Troy City Code


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Troy Local Development Finance Authority/Draft – June 29, 20
	Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – December 16, 2004
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Amended/Final
	Troy Historic District Commission/Final – February 15, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizen/Final – March 3, 2005
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – March
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 14, 2005
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – March 15, 2005
	Troy Historic District Commission/Final – March 15, 2005
	Planning Commission Special-Joint Meeting/Draft – March 28, 
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – April 5, 2005
	Planning Commission Special Meeting/Draft – April 5, 2005
	Planning Commission Special-Study Meeting/Draft – April 5, 2
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – April 6, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – April 7, 2005
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – April 11, 2005
	Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Draft – April 12, 2005
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – April
	Troy Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – April 21, 2005
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – April 26, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Councilmember Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for the Nat
	Councilmember Beltramini’s Report from “The Power of Democra
	Memorandum from City Management Answering Questions Raised b
	Bidcorp On-Line Auction – Workstations – Parts/Fixtures – Un

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Officers Mark Cole and Rick Sewell from 
	Letter of Thanks to Officer Kaptur from the Troy Middle Scho
	Letter of Thanks to Detective James Mork from David J. Easte
	Letter of Appreciation to Officers Scott LaMilza and Steve Z
	Letter of Thanks to Detective James Mork from Rabbi Aaron St
	Letter of Appreciation to the Troy Community Center From Sta
	Letter of Appreciation to Carol Anderson from Ryan Mandziara
	Letter of Thanks to Detective James Mork from Schroeder Elem

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	Resolution from City of Royal Oak Calling on Governor Jennif
	Resolution from City of Rochester Hills Supporting of Munici

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Troy Chamber Economic Development Master Plan
	J-7  SAD Interest Rate
	J-8  William Beaumont Research Study
	J-9 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Action on Budget

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT
	SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:
	Tuesday, May 10, 2005: 7:30 PM Special/Study City Council
	Monday, May 16, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, May 23, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, June 6, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, June 20, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, July 11, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, July 18, 2005 Regular City Council





